STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
3/21/2017 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY

JACK MCGUFFEY
VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modity, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for March 21, 2017.




CONSENT AGENDA

I

II

III

IV

For possible action: Approval of contract renewal for Mark Stafford, for services of
independent contractor to assess property in Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

For possible action: Approval to begin the April 4, 2017 Board of County
Commissioners meeting at 9:00am to allow adequate time for budget hearings.

For possible action: Approval of the Treasurer's report for February 2017.

For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $891,392.03 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $925,337.23.

For possible action: Approval of business licenses first readings:

A.R.F. MACDONALD COMPANY - Contractor / 25920 Eden Landing Rd ~
Hayward, CA (boilers)

B. DURR ECOCLEAN, INC. - Contractor / 26801 Northwestern Hwy ~ Southfield,
MI (ind. machinery)

C. EBZSYSTEC, INC. - General / 22251 Diesel Dr ~ McCalla, AL (supplier)

D. WAX ON WAX OFF MOBILE DETAIL - General / 2225 Elcrest Dr. ~ Reno
(mobile car wash)

E. W.W. CLYDE & CO. - Contractor / 869 North 1500 West ~ Orem, UT (contractor)
F. TRADESMEN INTERNATIONAL, LLC - General / 9760 Shepard Rd ~
Macedonia, OH (staffing)

G. AUTOMATION LOGISTICS CORP - Contractor / 331 Scarlet Blvd ~ Oldsmar, FL.
(machine install.)

H. Keith Wallace dba A-SNAP - General / PO Box 3293 ~ Turlock, CA (mobile
mechanic)

I. KING CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 2040 Farm District Rd ~ Fernley
(construction)

J. LADA CUBE, LLC - General / 101 Canary Lane ~ Grand Jet, CO (furniture
delivery)

K. TEKNO, INC. - Contractor / One Wall Street ~ Cave City, KY (automation
equip.)

L. BASTIAN AUTOMATION ENG., LLC - General / 10585 N. Meridian ~
Indianapolis, IN (equip sales)

M. BANNER INDUSTRIES OF N.E., INC. - General / 1 Industrial Drive ~ Danvers,
MA (distribution)

N. TRUMPYF, INC. - Contractor / 111 Hyde Rd ~ Farmington, CT (mfg equip)

O. NEVADA BARRICADE & SIGN CO., INC. / Contractor - PO Box 20459 ~ Reno
(road const.)

P. CME PROFESSIONAL SVCS., LLC / General -- 7100 Cave Creek Rd ~ Cave
Creek, AZ (staffing)

Q. INDUSTRIAL KINETICS, INC. - Professional / 2535 Curtiss St ~ Downers Grove,
IL (matl handl equip)




10.

11.

12.

R. KDDI AMERICA, INC. - General / 21241 S. Western Ave ~ Torrance, CA
(translation svcs.)

S. UL, LLC - General / 333 Pfingsten Road ~ Northbrook, IL (safety training)

T. BLACK GOLD INDUSTRIES dba BGII - Transportation / 527 North Rice Ave ~
Oxnard, CA (hazardous waste transportation)

U. OUT WEST BUILDINGS, LLC - General / 7450 Reno Hwy ~ Fallon (deliver
portable sheds)

V. HIRATA CORPORATION OF AMERICA - Contractor / 5625 Decatur Blvd ~
Indianapolis, IN (equipment manufacturing)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):

Discussion and direction to staff regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed
by legislators or by other entities permitted by the Nevada State Legislature to submit
bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by the Chairman or the
Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific bills will include SB 57
which staff has expressed full support.

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Accept bid submitted by Corrie Zam-Northan and A. Perry in the amount of
$11,000.00 to design and create a wall mural in the Courthouse Slammer & Museum
along the upper west and north walls. Also, authorize the County Manager and
District Attorney to execute a contract to facilitate this.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Application for refund of property taxes in the amount of $19,189.58, requested by
Stormo Investments LLC. Supporting documents can be found at:
http:/ /storeycounty.org/ AgendaCenter/ViewFile/ Agenda/ 03212017-694

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with the Nevada Division of
Forestry for participation in the Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consent agreement and mutual release between Storey County Fire Protection District
and James Hardie Building Products settling disputed fire code violations.




13.  ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONER
14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Business Licenses Second Readings:

A. COBHAM WIRELESS - Professional / 15950 N Dallas Pkwy ~ Dallas, TX
(consulting)

B. VISOTEC AMERICA - Contractor / 1955 Vaughn Road ~ Kennesaw, GA
(equipment)

C. CAPITOL BUILDERS HARDWARE, INC. - Contractor / 4699 24th St ~
Sacramento (contractor)

D. TEKNO IC-DISC, INC. - Contractor / 2654 W Horizon Ridge ~ Henderson, NV
(equipment)

E. NEDCON USA, INC. - Contractor / 10053 Simonson Rd ~ Harrison, OH (racking)
F. WEDCO, INC. - General / 450 Toano Street ~ Reno (distributor)

G. MATSUI MACHINE, LTD - Contractor / 4-10-11 Kawaguchi Osaka-shi JAPAN
(machinery)

H. MITSUBISHI CHEMICAL ENGINEERING CORP. - Professional / 2-2 Nihonbashi
Tokyo JAPAN

I. ROBERT MCKINNEY-LISA MCKINNEY dba The Power Company - Contractor /
25 Brushland Court ~ Reno (electrical contractor)

J. MAAK CORPORATION - Professional / 401 Ryland ~ Reno (consultant)

K. TEAMTECHNIK CORPORATION - Contractor / 5155 Sugarloaf Pkwy ~
Lawrenceville, GA (equip)

L. NORTHERN ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 12789 Emerson St ~ Thornton, CO
(contractor)

M. SYSTEM?, INC. - Professional / 301-B North Detroit ~ West Liberty, OH
(consultant)

N. PANASONIC INDUSTRIAL DEVICES ENGINEERING CO., LTD - Professional /
800 Higashiyama Toyama, JAPAN (consultant)

O. TECH USA, LLC - General / 8334 Veterans Hwy ~ Millersville, MD (staffing)

P. SIERRA SCALES, LLC - Home Business / 237 Martin Lane ~ Dayton (home office
only)

Q. EFFICIENT INDUSTRIAL INSTALLATION, LLC - Contractor / 3608 Esper ~ El
Paso (equipment)

R. NEW EARTH CONCEPTS - Professional / 801 Belfair Ave ~ Orting, WA
(consultant)

S. MALEKO PERSONNEL - General / 32108 Alvarado Blvd ~ Union City, CA
(staffing)

T. TEMARRY RECYCLING, INC. - General / 476 Tecate Rd ~ Tecate, CA (on-site
recycling)

15. CORRESPONDENCE

Storey County Fire Protection District Report for February 2017.




16. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

17.  ADJOURNMENT

18.  CLOSED SESSION
Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4227 and Storey County
Sheriff’s Office Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will
commence immediately following the regular commission meeting.

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:




(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 3/15/2017; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Meeting date: 3/21/17

Agenda: Consent [x | Regular agenda [ ]

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Estimate of time required: 1 min

Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Mark Stafford Contract Approval

2. Recommended motion Approve

3. Prepared by: Jana Seddon
Department: Assessor

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: See Attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Telephone: 775-847-0961

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head

County Manager
9. Board action:

[] Approved
[ Denied

-
Al bt

Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Other agency review:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No. 4 I



EXTENSION OF CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
TO ASSESS PROPERTY IN
TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER

A Contract Between Storey County, Nevada
Acting By and Through Its

Board of County Commissioners
P.O. Box 176 Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: (775) 847-0968 Fax: (775) 847-0949

And

Mark Stafford Real Estate Appraiser
685 Sienna Park Ct., Reno, NV 89512
775-750-9078

WHEREAS, NRS 284.173 authorizes elective officers, heads of departments, boards, commissions or institutions to
engage services of persons as independent contractors; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the service of Contractor is both necessary and in the best interests of Storey County;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by the Board of
County Commissioners.

2. DEFINITIONS. “County” means the County of Storey, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada. “State” means
the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein, its officers, employees and immune contractors as defined
in NRS 41.0307. “Independent Contractor” means a person or entity that performs services and/or provides goods for
the County under the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract. “Fiscal Year” is defined as the period beginning
July 1 and ending June 30 of the following year.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2021, unless sooner
terminated by either party as specified in paragraph ten (10).

4. NOTICE. Unless otherwise specified, termination shall not be effective until 30 calendar days after a party has served
written notice of default, or without cause upon the other party. All notices or other communications required or
permitted to be given under this Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered
personally in hand, by telephonic facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, retum receipt
requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the address specified above.

5. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the scope of work shall be specifically described. This
Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of constructive precedence:

ATTACHMENT A: COUNTY SOLICITATION OR RFP;
ATTACHMENT B: INSURANCE SCHEDULE; AND
ATTACHMENT C: CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSE

Revised 01/17
Page 1 of 13



A Contractor's Attachment shall not contradict or supersede any County specifications, terms or conditions without
written evidence of mutual assent to such change appearing in this Contract:

6. CONSIDERATION. The parties agree that Contractor will provide the services specified in paragraph five (5) with
the total Contract or installments payable: semimonthly upon receipt of invoice. The County does not agree to reimburse
Contractor for expenses unless otherwise specified in the incorporated attachments. Any intervening end to an
appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic renewal (not changing the overall Contract term) or a termination as
the results of the Board of County Commissioners’s appropriation may require.

7. ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of this Contract are also
specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective order of precedence and any limitations
specified.

8. TIMELINESS OF BILLING SUBMISSION. The parties agree that timeliness of billing is of the essence to the
contract and recognize that the County is on a fiscal year. All billings for dates of service prior to July 1 must be
submitted to the County no later than the first Friday in August of the same year.

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.

a. Books and Records. Contractor agrees to keep and maintain under generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) full, true and complete records, contracts, books, and documents as are necessary to fully disclose to the
County, the State or United States Government, or their authorized representatives, upon audits or reviews, sufficient
information to determine compliance with all state and federal regulations and statutes.

b. Inspection & Audit. Contractor agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic, computer related or
otherwise), including, without limitation, relevant accounting procedures and practices of Contractor or its
subcontractors, financial statements and supporting documentation, and documentation related to the work product
shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office or
location of Contractor where such records may be found, with or without notice by the County Auditor, State Auditor,
the relevant state agency or its contracted examiners, the Department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada
State Attorney General's Office or its Fraud Control Units, the State Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any
federal funding, the relevant federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office of
the Inspector General, or any of their authorized representatives. All subcontracts shall reflect requirements of this
paragraph.

c. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract must be retained a
minimum three (3) years, and for five (5) years if any federal funds are used pursuant to the Contract. The retention
period runs from the date of payment for the relevant goods or services by the County, or from the date of termination
of the Contract, whichever is later. Retention time shall be extended when an audit is scheduled or in progress for a
period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to complete any administrative and judicial litigation which
may ensue.

10. CONTRACT TERMINATION.
a. Termination Without Cause. Any discretionary or vested right of renewal notwithstanding, this Contract may be
terminated upon written notice by mutual consent of both parties, or unilaterally by either party without cause.
b. Termination for Non-appropriation. The continuation of this Contract beyond the current fiscal year is subject
to and contingent upon sufficient funds being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available by the Board of
County Commissioners, state and/or federal sources. The County may terminate this Contract, and Contractor waives
any and all claim(s) for damages, effective immediately upon receipt of written notice (or any date specified therein)
if for any reason the Contracting Agency’s funding from State and/or federal sources is not appropriated or is
withdrawn, limited, or impaired.
c. Cause Termination for Default or Breach. A default or breach may be declared with or without termination. This
Contract may be terminated by either party upon written notice of default or breach to the other party as follows:
i. If Contractor fails to provide or satisfactorily perform any of the conditions, work, deliverables, goods, or
services called for by this Contract within the time requirements specified in this Contract or within any granted
extension of those time requirements; or

Revised 01/17

Page 2 of 13



ii. If any state, county, city or federal license, authorization, waiver, permit, qualification or certification required
by statute, ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by Contractor to provide the goods or services required by this
Contract is for any reason denied, revoked, debarred, excluded, terminated, suspended, lapsed, or not renewed; or
iti. If Contractor becomes insolvent, subject to receivership, or becomes voluntarily or involuntarily subject to the
jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court; or
iv. If the County materially breaches any material duty under this Contract and any such breach impairs
Contractor's ability to perform; or
v. If'it is found by the County that any quid pro quo or gratuities in the form of money, services, entertainment,
gifts, or otherwise were offered or given by Contractor, or any agent or representative of Contractor, to any officer
or employee of the County with a view toward securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to
awarding, extending, amending, or making any determination with respect to the performing of such contract; or
vi. I it is found by the County that Contractor has failed to disclose any material conflict of interest relative to the
performance of this Contract.
d. Time to Correct. Termination upon a declared default or breach may be exercised only after service of formal writ-
ten notice as specified in paragraph four (4), and the subsequent failure of the defaulting party within fifteen (15)
calendar days of receipt of that notice to provide evidence, satisfactory to the aggrieved party, showing that the
declared default or breach has been corrected.
e. Winding Up Affairs Upon Termination. In the event of termination of this Contract for any reason, the parties
agree that the provisions of this paragraph survive termination:
i. The parties shall account for and properly present to each other all claims for fees and expenses and pay those
which are undisputed and otherwise not subject to set off under this Contract. Neither party may withhold
performance of winding up provisions solely based on nonpayment of fees or expenses accrued up to the time of
termination;
ii. Contractor shall satisfactorily complete work in progress at the agreed rate (or a pro rata basis if necessary) if so
requested by the Contracting Agency;
iii. Contractor shall execute any documents and take any actions necessary to effectuate an assignment of this
Contract if so requested by the Contracting Agency;
iv. Contractor shall preserve, protect and promptly deliver into County possession all proprietary information in
accordance with paragraph twenty-one (21).

11. REMEDIES. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of the parties shall
not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity, including, without
limitation, actual damages, and to a prevailing party reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. It is specifically agreed that
reasonable attorneys' fees shall include without limitation one hundred and twenty-five dollars ($125.00) per hour for
County-employed attorneys.

12. LIMITED LIABILITY. The County will not waive and intends to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability
limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. Liquidated damages
shall not apply unless otherwise specified in the incorporated attachments. Damages for any County breach shall never
exceed the amount of funds appropriated for payment under this Contract, but not yet paid to Contractor, for the fiscal
year budget in existence at the time of the breach. Damages for any Contractor breach shall not exceed one hundred and
fifty percent (150%) of the contract maximum value. Contractor’s tort liability shall not be limited.

13. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented from
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military authority, act
of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or
storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and
the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after the intervening
cause ceases.

14. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend,
not excluding the County’s right to participate, the County from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses,
and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or
willful acts or omissions of Contractor, its officers, employees and agents.

Revised 01/17
Page 3 of 13



15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Contractor is associated with the County only for the purposes and to the extent
specified in this Contract, and in respect to performance of the contracted services pursuant to this Contract, Contractor
is and shall be an independent contractor and, subject only to the terms of this Contract, shall have the sole right to
supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Contract.
Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create
relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for the County whatsoever
with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of Contractor or any other party. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for, and the County shall have no obligation with respect to: (1) withholding of income taxes, FICA or any
other taxes or fees; (2) industrial insurance coverage; (3) participation in any group insurance plans available to
employees of the County; (4) participation or contributions by either Contractor or the County to the Public Employees
Retirement System; (5) accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave; or (6) unemployment compensation coverage
provided by the County. Contractor shall indemnify and hold County harmless from, and defend County against, any
and all losses, damages, claims, costs, penalties, liabilities, and expenses arising or incurred because of, incident to, or
otherwise with respect to any such taxes or fees. Neither Contractor nor its employees, agents, nor representatives shall
be considered employees, agents, or representatives of the County. The County and Contractor shall evaluate the nature
of services and the term of the Contract negotiated in order to determine "independent contractor” status, and shall
monitor the work relationship throughout the term of the Contract to ensure that the independent contractor relationship
remains as such.

16. INSURANCE SCHEDULE. Unless expressly waived in writing by the County, Contractor, as an independent
contractor and not an employee of the County, must carry policies of insurance and pay all taxes and fees incident
hereunto. Policies shall meet the terms and conditions as specified within this Contract along with the additional
limits and provisions as described in Attachment B, incorporated hereto by attachment. The County shall have no
liability except as specifically provided in the Contract.

The Contractor shall not commence work before:

1) Contractor has provided the required evidence of insurance to the Contracting Agency of the County, and

2) The State has approved the insurance policies provided by the Contractor.
Prior approval of the insurance policies by the County shall be a condition precedent to any payment of
consideration under this Contract and the County’s approval of any changes to insurance coverage during the course
of performance shall constitute an ongoing condition subsequent this Contract. Any failure of the County to timely
approve shall not constitute a waiver of the condition.

Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall, at the Contractor’s sole expense, procure, maintain and keep in force
for the duration of the Contract insurance conforming to the minimum limits as specified in Attachment B,
incorporated hereto by attachment. Unless specifically stated herein or otherwise agreed to by the County, the
required insurance shall be in effect prior to the commencement of work by the Contractor and shall continue in
force as appropriate until:
1. Final acceptance by the County of the completion of this Contract; or
2. Such time as the insurance is no longer required by the County under the terms of this Contract; whichever
occurs later. Any insurance or self-insurance available to the County shall be in excess of, and non-contributing
with, any insurance required from Contractor. Contractor’s insurance policies shall apply on a primary basis.
Until such time as the insurance is no longer required by the County, Contractor shall provide the County with
renewal or replacement evidence of insurance no less than thirty (30) days before the expiration or replacement of the
required insurance. If at any time during the period when insurance is required by the Contract, an insurer or surety
shall fail to comply with the requirements of this Contract, as soon as Contractor has knowledge of any such failure,
Contractor shall immediately notify the County and immediately replace such insurance or bond with an insurer
meeting the requirements.

General Requirements:

a. Additional Insured: By endorsement to the general liability insurance policy evidenced by Contractor, the
County, its officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307 shall be named as
additional insureds for all liability arising from the Contract.

Revised 01/17
Page 4 of 13



b. Waiver of Subrogation: Each insurance policy shall provide for a waiver of subrogation against the County, its
officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307 for losses arising from
work/materials/equipment performed or provided by or on behalf of the Contractor.

c. Cross-Liability: All required liability policies shall provide cross-liability coverage as would be achieved
under the standard ISO separation of insureds clause.

d. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Insurance maintained by Contractor shall apply on a first dollar basis
without application of a deductible or self-insured retention unless otherwise specifically agreed to by the County.
Such approval shall not relieve Contractor from the obligation to pay any deductible or self-insured retention.
Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) per occurrence,
unless otherwise approved by the County.

e. Policy Cancellation: Except for ten (10) days notice for non-payment of premium, each insurance policy shall
be endorsed to state that without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the County, ¢/o Contracting Agency,
the policy shall not be canceled, non-renewed or coverage and /or limits reduced or materially altered, and
shall provide that notices required by this paragraph shall be sent by certified mailed to the address shown on
page one (1) of this contract.

f.  Approved Insurer: Each insurance policy shall be:

1) Issued by insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of Nevada or eligible surplus lines
insurers acceptable to the State and having agents in Nevada upon whom service of process may be made;
and

2) Currently rated by A.M. Best as “A-VII” or better.

Evidence of Insurance:

Prior to the start of any Work, Contractor must provide the following documents to the contracting agency:

1) Certificate of Insurance: The Acord 25 Certificate of Insurance form or a form substantially similar must be
submitted to the County to evidence the insurance policies and coverages required of Contractor. The certificate
must name the County, its officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307 as the
certificate holder. The certificate should be signed by a person authorized insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.
The County project/contract number; description and contract effective dates shall be noted on the certificate, and
upon rencwal of the policies listed Contractor shall furnish the County with replacement certificates as described
within Insurance Coverage, section noted above.

Mail all required insurance documents to the Contracting Agency identified on page one of the contract.
PROOF OF INSURANCE IS HEREBY WAIVED BY COUNTY

2) Additional Insured Endorsement: An Additional Insured Endorsement (CG 20 10 11 85 or CG 2026 11 85),
signed by an authorized insurance company representative, must be submitted to the County to evidence the
endorsement of the County as an additional insured per General Requirements, subsection a above.

3) Schedule of Underlying Insurance Policies: If Umbrella or Excess policy is evidenced to comply with
minimum limits, a copy of the Underlyer Schedule from the Umbrella or Excess insurance policy may be required.

Review and Approval: Documents specified above must be submitted for review and approval by the County prior
to the commencement of work by Contractor. Neither approval by the County nor failure to disapprove the
insurance furnished by Contractor shall relieve Contractor of Contractor’s full responsibility to provide the
insurance required by this Contract. Compliance with the insurance requirements of this Contract shall not limit
the liability of Contractor or its sub-contractors, employees or agents to the County or others, and shall be in
addition to and not in lieu of any other remedy available to the County under this Contract or otherwise. The
County reserves the right to request and review a copy of any required insurance policy or endorsement to assure
compliance with these requirements.

17. COMPLIANCE WITH LEGAL OBLIGATIONS. Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of this
Contract any state, county, city or federal license, authorization, waiver, permit, qualification or certification required by

Revised 01/17
Page 5 of 13



statute, ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by Contractor to provide the goods or services required by this Contract.

Contractor will be responsible to pay all taxes, assessments, fees, premiums, permits, and licenses required by law. Real
property and personal property taxes are the responsibility of Contractor in accordance with NRS 361.157 and NRS
361.159. Contractor agrees to be responsible for payment of any such government obligations not paid by its
subcontractors during performance of this Contract.

18. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of the Contract or
its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver by such party of any of its rights or
remedies as to any other breach.

19. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of law or
equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-enforceability of such provision
shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract unenforceable.

20. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION. To the extent that any assignment of any right under this Contract changes the
duty of either party, increases the burden or risk involved, impairs the chances of obtaining the performance of this
Contract, attempts to operate as a novation, or includes a waiver or abrogation of any defense to payment by the County,
such offending portion of the assignment shall be void, and shall be a breach of this Contract. Contractor shall neither
assign, transfer nor delegate any rights, obligations nor duties under this Contract without the prior written consent of the

County.

21. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions,
photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system designs, computer code (which is intended to be
consideration under the Contract), or any other documents or drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by
Contractor (or its subcontractors) in performance of its obligations under this Contract shall be the exclusive property of
the County and all such materials shall be delivered into County possession by Contractor upon completion,
termination, or cancellation of this Contract. Contractor shall not use, willingly allow, or cause to have such materials
used for any purpose other than performance of Contractor's obligations under this Contract without the prior written
consent of the County. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County shall have no proprietary interest in any materials
licensed for use by the County that are subject to patent, trademark or copyright protection.

22. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents received from Contractor may be open
to public inspection and copying. The County has a legal obligation to disclose such information unless a particular
record is made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests. Contractor may label specific parts of an
individual document as a "trade secret" or "confidential" in accordance with NRS 333.333, provided that Contractor
thereby agrees to indemnify and defend the County for honoring such a designation. The failure to so label any
document that is released by the County shall constitute a complete waiver of any and all claims for damages caused by
any release of the records.

23. CONFIDENTIALITY. Contractor shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced, prepared,
observed or received by Contractor to the extent that such information is confidential by law or otherwise required by
this Contract.

24. FEDERAL FUNDING. In the event federal funds are used for payment of all or part of this Contract:

a. Contractor certifies, by signing this Contract, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any
federal department or agency. This certification is made pursuant to the regulations implementing Executive Order
12549, Debarment and Suspension, 28 C.F.R. pt. 67, § 67.510, as published as pt. VII of the May 26, 1988, Federal
Register (pp. 19160-19211), and any relevant program-specific regulations. This provision shall be required of every
subcontractor receiving any payment in whole or in part from federal funds.

b. Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply with all terms, conditions, and requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-136), 42 U.S.C. 12101, as amended, and regulations adopted thereunder contained
in 28 C.F.R. 26.101-36.999, inclusive, and any relevant program-specific regulations.

Revised 01/17
Page 6 of 13



c. Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply with the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended,
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P.L. 93-112, as amended, and any relevant program-specific regulations, and shall not
discriminate against any employee or offeror for employment because of race, national origin, creed, color, sex,
religion, age, disability or handicap condition (including AIDS and AIDS-related conditions.)

25. LOBBYING. The parties agree, whether expressly prohibited by federal law, or otherwise, that no funding
associated with this contract will be used for any purpose associated with or related to lobbying or influencing or
attempting to lobby or influence for any purpose the following:

a. Any federal, state, county or local agency, legislature, commission, counsel or board;

b. Any federal, state, county or local legislator, commission member, counsel member, board member, or other

elected official; or

¢. Any officer or employee of any federal, state, county or local agency; legislature, commission, counsel or board.

26. WARRANTIES.
a. General Warranty. Contractor warrants that all services, deliverables, and/or work product under this Contract

shall be completed in a workmanlike manner consistent with standards in the trade, profession, or industry; shall
conform to or exceed the specifications set forth in the incorporated attachments; and shall be fit for ordinary use, of
good quality, with no material defects.

b. System Compliance. Contractor warrants that any information system application(s) shall not experience
abnormally ending and/or invalid and/or incorrect results from the application(s) in the operating and testing of the
business of the County. This warranty includes, without limitation, century recognition, calculations that
accommodate same century and multi-century formulas and data values and date data interface values that reflect the

century.

27. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf
of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract. Contractor acknowledges that as required by
statute or regulation this Contract is effective only after approval by the Board of County Commissioners and only for
the period of time specified in the Contract. Any services performed by Contractor before this Contract is effective or
after it ceases to be effective are performed at the sole risk of Contractor.

28. GOVERNING LAW: JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be
governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada, without giving effect to any principle of
conflict-of-law that would require the application of the law of any other jurisdiction. The parties consent to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the Seventh Judicial District Court, Storey, Nevada for enforcement of this Contract.

29. ENTIRE CONTRACT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s) constitute the entire
agreement of the parties and as such are intended to be the complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representa-
tions, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject matter
hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part
of this Contract, general conflicts in language between any such attachment and this Contract shall be construed
consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no
modification or amendment to this Contract shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by
the respective parties hereto and approved by the Board of County Commissioners.

Revised 01/17
Page 7 of 13



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be legally bound

thereby.

_‘%:

Feb. 14, 2017

Independent Contractor's Signature

Date

Signature — County Commission Chairman

Approved as to form by:

Storey County District Attormey

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Revised 01/17

Owner, Mark Stafford Real Estate Appraiser
Independent's Contractor's Title

APPROVED BY BOARD OF STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

On

(Date)
On

(Datc)
On

(Date)

Page 8 of 13



ATTACHMENT A
SOLICITATION OR RFP #

SOLICITATION BASED ON PREVIOUS WORK WITH THIS
CONTRACTOR ON IDENTICAL PROJECT



ATTACHMENT B
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

(Insert appropriate contract insurance schedules)

PROOF OF INSURANCE IS WAIVED BY COUNTY



ATTACHMENT C
CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE

(See attached 2 page copy of response received from contractor to do the work requested)



Mark Stafford Real Estate Appraiser
Proposal for continued services

Tasks to be performed:

1.

Conduct appraisals and re-appraisals of land and improvements for tax assessment purposes in the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRIC).

Assess new construction, building additions and tenant improvements in TRIC through review of
building permit activity, property inspections and other investigations throughout the fiscal year.
Develop revised land valuations resulting from land splits, subdivision of lands, parcel combinations and
improvements to land occurring in TRIC.

Provide written and oral testimony before County and State Boards of Equalization for appeals related
to property assessments developed by Mark Stafford Real Estate Appraiser.

Supply other assistance related to the valuation of real and personal property in TRIC as may be
deemed necessary by the Storey County Assessor and Mark Stafford Real Estate Appraiser.

Complete other valuation and consulting assignments outside of TRIC as may be mutually agreed upon
between the Storey County Assessor and Mark Stafford Real Estate Appraiser.



Fee Schedule

Payment Schedule and Conditions Storey County may be billed monthly, or quarterly, for services
rendered during the previous time period based on a detailed list of activities and resulting expenses
according to this schedule:

Basic Hourly Rate $75.00 per hour
Preparation for CBE/SBE $115.00 per hour
Testimony and Stand-By $150.00 per hour
Per Diem County Rate*
Copies/duplication Actual Cost

Marshall-Swift job charges Actual Cost

*|f Contractor is required to testify before any County or State Boards of Equalization outside of Storey,
Carson City, or Washoe counties, the prevailing County per diem rate shall apply, except that hotel/motel
expenses shall be compensated at the actual rate, and that nightly rate shall not to exceed $150.00.

The total aggregate billings for all services plus any Per Diem charges within any fiscal year shall not exceed
a total amount of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00).



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 21, 2017 Estimate of time required: 0.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required | ]

L. Title: For possible approval: Treasurer's Report for February 2017.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of consent agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Monthly Treasurer’s Report.

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[N

Agenda Item No. 4 TIL



00"

00°

(N
-00°000°000°T
-85S L89'1¥S
~€8°0%1°'L0Z
-ESTVLE'TTE'T
-LZT°8SYOLT
-15°929°LL8
-€0°81¢E

18 ¥ES°S8
-0 E9S‘SPL'E
-86°6T6°LTT
00"
-06°%¥9‘ZE
-8ZT 003702
-9T 0LT ¥%
-L0"8LL €8S
-85°S6L'06
-19°0%Z°98
-€E PIT LYY
-00°09
-T2 66L"SBT'E
-9LTELYLBE
00"
-00° 099
=00°000°000'T
-T% 0SL‘6S9'T
-ST"826°949'T
-y oLz’s22'2
“9LTLLTTYY
-¥1°LBZ T
~LZ°9Le ‘Y8
00"

00"

¥S"6¥%9 ‘66
S6°9%
-29°LPE0®8
00" &
-SB° 690 ‘88
-8 0LLZVO"ET
007002
00°000°2
00°00T'T
0E"6EY

0L ¥68°8LT'8
0S°Z0Z6ST L
€5°689 'PET'¥T
00"

00"

oL €ZL’S
€9°5%6°8

00°

EONYT9E ONIANZ

1T 9beg

00"

00"
00"
00"
00°
00"
00~
00"
0o~
00*
00"
00
oo*
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00
00"
0o0*
00"
00"
00"
o0~
0o0*
00"
00*
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
oo0*
00’
00°
00°
00*
00"
00"
00°
00"
00"

N0 SYEIASNTEL NI SHHASNYAL SYEHDONOA NANOL STIOHAYd

00°

00°

00"

co*

oo
oo*
09"
0o°
00’
00"
0c*
00°
o0o*
00’
00°
00’
06"
oo
00"
00’
00"
oo’
00
00"
00*
0o
00°
00"
00°
00°
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"

oco*
oo”
oo*
co*
00"
00"
oo’
00"
00"
00*
00~
00*
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
oo"
00"
oo-
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
0o
00"

oo
o0
00°
00"
00"
00"
oo
00
00"
00"
00~
00~
00"
oo
oo
oo”
00"
00*
00°
00"
00"
00"
00"

oo’ 00"

00° 00~

00" 00"

00" 00°

00" €1°65¥'2
00" 00"
T#°9L0‘9Z€E 00 TO¥ ‘€L
6T°FTIL 8T ST E6L'6S
00" 00"

00- 00"

00" BS"EBL
00" 00-

00" 00"

00° 0o0°

00" v8 VEeL'T
oo~ 00"

00" 00°S6T
oe” 00°9Z%‘%
00" IO EST'T
00" BL7LLS 09
00" SPOTZ PIE
00” o0 o0z

00" 00-
BE"T06 6 VT 6ET’E
00" opo-

00" 00"

00" 00"

PO 6¥T LT SE°89S VT
00" 00"

00" €L°82ZT°¥ST
00° 00°080°ST
00" 1Z°8€6°S9
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00°
59°9€9'6 S8°519'%2
00° 00"

00" SETLE'Y
09-S9Z°86S 19°988'%0%
00" 00"

00" 00"

oo~ 00"

oo* 00"

00° 00"

00* 0o”
~LE"EVL'686 -BLTZYS 902 L
00" 00°

00" 00"

00- 00~

00° 00"

00" [

LT0Z/20 ¥o4
LIFHE ONIDNWIWE ATHLNOW

SININESENGS1d

00’

00°
00*

00"

-%8 8¥6°SP1
00°

%5 86T '6EY
-LELOO'9Y

o0~

00"
0S5 0EL'T¥

00°

00"

00"
~SL'T86°T
~60°TLO'E
-05°S80°T
-Z87GS9°LR
~06°0T0 0T
-91°599°L8
-86°005"¥SY
-00" 0%
9B 6ELLYT
0L LL6"6T

00~

00"

oo
-EL"Z69°LE
-€6°588°1T
00"
-66°0LZ'0E
00°
00~
00"

00°

00"

-00°0S
-18°8T1T'9S
00"
-Z8°SE0°S
-LT TS LTL'Y

00"

00-

00~

oo-

00"

oo

95°61Z°€8E9
00~

00"
00~

00"

oo-

SI41E0Ed

00°

00"

00"
-00°000°000°T
-¥2 LET 86€E
-E8°0%¥T'L0OZ
-0%°€59°2682°'T
-¥E°8S6°2TC
-1S°vZ9‘LLE
-€0°8TE

EL-T8FLET
~%0°E9SSPI'E
-86 616 LTT

00"
~66°L¥V'ZE
~61°62S°11
-95°6LZ EY
-S2°8%5'00S
-63°LY6'18
-~ECTEST'6S
-08°€£28°90¢€
~00°0S
-SE£76S0°8E0°¢C
-8979¢S'0LE

00
-007099
-00°000°000°T
LD SLL ESY'T
-ZZ°ZT¥0’SS9‘T
-L¥ 66E'6LE'T
-LL"986°SZTY
-SE°SZT 69
-LZ°5L8°¥8

00"

00"

¥5°6v9°66

S6°96
-TeT8veTe

00~
-88°S0%‘98¥%
-1 T9E8TE ST

00002

00°000°Z

00°00T°T

OE“6EV

0L ¥68'6LT 'S

0S*Z0Z'6ST L

TT'9SL L66°61

00"

[o]o

0L ETT’S

€9°S¥6°8

oo*

TAYMA “IYE

SANNA TIV TYLOL

ONTQTOH SEXYL GFENDIS 006
ONIATIOH SIXYL TIENDISND 008
FYId IDELO¥d TYLIAYD 08T
aIv TYRINW 042

AONEOYEWE S¥Id 097
IDIYLSIA FHId 0SZ
NOISSIWWNOD WSI¥NOL DA 0€EZ
LDELO¥d TIWH DA 02T

aNns SaTE TV §.JITHIHS 012
SINYNO TYNIQEI 90T

YOVWEAVd I¥L 00T

AN X¥Yd 06T

ISN THEL 68T

aNRa TANOD EDILSAL L8T
INSQIDOV INZOIANI S8T
L¥N0D IOTWLSTA 08T

HLYLS 0LT

aNnd XDCTONEDEL S9T

1€20 T00HDS 091

TOOHDS 0ST

LdN0D 2N¥A 0T

09¥¥A STIAM ANOE VaSn SET
WEAMAS FAIAIQ WINIDNIA 0€T
ALID VINIDYIA 20 NMOL 02T
TITH Q709 A0 NMOL OTT
NOLIVZITIHYIS 00T

WALSXS dZI¥M 060

aNAd FENIDNELSYEANI 080
SIDECLONd TYLIAYD 0LO
NOILISINODY INEAGLNOE 090
EDIA¥ES 0SO

ariv TYNINH S0

IDTNLSIA HFEIJ 0F0
AONEDJEWI FEId SEO

JEId 0€0

NOIINLILSEY ¥20

SaVoA 0Z0

XYl- FONYISISSY INIDIANI 51O
TVOIQEN INZDIANI 0TO
TYEEANED 100

YOSSIASSY  HSWD ALLId S06
S4INEHS HSVD ALLId Y06
HSYD ALLId £06

SNIOD a10 T08&

INNODOW &IDT EIWLS 96T
LIAEYN AINON ODA¥A STIEM T6T
LNOODDY J0 O0D¥Wd STTAM 66T
SATYS ALYE40¥d ¥ 40 € B6T
SAEVOD MNYH SSANISNE L6T
JNVE NI HSWO S6T

SNIATOH L¥A0D IDIUILSIA ¥6T
HS¥D VaSN 0D¥va STTEM £6T

TROIIATEosAEd Tov

6SIS¥IPT LT/0T/€0 ‘uny
00TZYUL *ON 3x0deu



00°92 LT/LT/T

VIYNYL ‘NUDINW

00°0S0°T LT/LT/T HAESOr ‘NHSLSITTHOW
00°SS LT/LT/Z WNISAN NOISNYW AWVMOVH
00°6 LT/LT/T MAYW  NOSAEYTIO
00°61C LTI/LT/Z SIMZET LIODS ‘T1a¥dnd
00°09 LT/LT/Z d TIISSNY NOONWdd
00°S0T LT/LT/Z NOSYL 'NAA¥d
00 0T LT/€0/T d OTIDNY ‘INI¥LAJ
¥€°6C LT/€0/T NILSNY ‘dANJ0dSO
00" %S LT/E0/C SHNYL "¥ETIIN
Sy LT LT/€0/C VIVWYL ‘NYOINW
0T"SL8'9 LT/E0/T AL DFYO 'SSHH
$6°G82 LT/€0/C HOLIN ‘ANOWWVH
00°00T L1/£0/2 HOIET NILSAL 'WWI¥ND
00°08T LT/E0/T Y0JID
00 0%T LT/€0/2 AIN 40 DOSSY S.,d80SSESSY
00°Z%T LT/0T/T ONI S¥NOI ALID YINIDIIA
00°%2 LT/0T/T MAYA ' ATINAH
89°09 LT/02/T IITI HONH ‘WHHOVTIVO
00°00€ LT/90/T ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDIIA
00" %8¢ 9T1/€C/21 SIMAT AIAYA “IDITOA
€v-v02’2 9T/€C/TT DT FDINOS TII
L8 0% 91/60/2T NOSYL ‘TIAVHNYA
00°ST 91/60/CT D771 FEDILON LSEL
Z8°50C'T S1/60/2T IITI HONH ‘YIAHOVTIIVD
69°%29 9T/60/2CT HSYIGWIN FTYSITOHM 0ODILSOD
00°89L°T 9T/LT/0T SASITYIYIAING VI NNS
LY 8vE’C 9T/%T/0T ¥SIT % IIODS ‘NOSIAYW
T11°89% ST/%1/0T WAISOW NOISNVW A¥MOVK
98°Z6T'0T 91/0¢€/6 0D WEIMOA DIJIOYE WAJYIIS
00°9% 9T/9T/6 SNOISSEYANWI HJAILYAONNI
00" PT 9T/91/6 NYId ‘TIOWAVH
00" ¥¥E‘C 91/20/6 SHSTYGYHLINA A¥dd NAS
€% 8 9T/20/6 HISHETHED ® NNHTO ‘NOILHDIHT
00" 9% 91/20/6 SNOISSEIANI FAILVYAONNI
00°9¥% 9T/6T/8 LOI¥LSIA TOOHDS 0O IS
00°0T¢€ 91/61/8 WNISNM NOISNVW AWAOYNW
29°62 91 /61/8 or "#Iddod ’‘Lsind
€6°6T 9t1/2z/L NOSVL. ‘SNIMMVE
61°ST 91/80/L aavod ONIZV¥D VAVAEN
00 00T 91/80/L YANOL ‘MOTIVH
00°6¢€ 91/vZ/9 ONI 999 FITVHL
¥E° G2 9T/0T/9 FINIEL ‘HONAT
00" 09 9t/6¢c/¥% WAFSOW NOISNYW AWADVI
00°TO08 91/8T/€ ONI DIDHOTANOD
80" %I ST/8T/6 NOSWEY HI¥VIW NNV ‘ATdANW
00°SL ST/%0/6 VHIIGVL ‘NOSE0H
00°8L st/ve/L ONI 99D HIYHL
8T1° 06 ST/92/9 HONH ‘I¥ODA4HAL
50°98 ST/2T/9 A¥¥VE ¥ VANIT ‘¥ddId
00°06 ST/21/9 NHOL ‘@NSIJANA
SL°6€E ST/LT/Y NHOL ‘AVES
16° 9T ST/LT/Y avHD ‘SNYAH
00°09 ST/LT/¥% HY¥Ogdad ‘¥aaNzag
Junowy =23ed IFo=upD IWeN QO\AOHQEE\HO@CG\/

L1/82z/Z - 00/00/0 woxa

666666 Ybnoayl 1 #3[09yD woag

s3)o9ayD butpueasano
ONILNNODDY S.w3¥HINSYIIL ZLEP T
T abea AILNNOD AA¥OLS

629¢€07
Z8Cv0%
69L%0%
LEOSOY
TLOEOY
vESROY
vE0S07%
S68€0¥
L86Z0Y
€SEE0T
62907
60600T
708%0¥
T9S%07%
0LS00T
TS0€0T
£68€0¥
TZ0S0%
ZB0OE0Y
£68E07¥
Z9Sv07
VEBEOY
S00SO0¥
8T8Y0V
Z80€0¥
LPZEOT
Z268¢€0¥
£€99707%
69LY07
OESTOT
O07€€0T
LLBOOT
Z68£0%
£S6707
OF€C0T
LTLTOT
69LV0Y
9€6%0%
806%0F
9STTI0T
S68%0V
8E6E0Y
€LB8VOY
69LV0V
LLOEOY
L69%0Y
SEL?0¥
8L6t0¥
9L9%0%
0LOP0¥
C8EEOV
619707
TZ9v07
656E€07

00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T

# uosasd bsg ueg

T 2WTL uny

LT/O0T/€0

v088 D
L€088 D
SE€088 D
o088 2D
€66L8 D
Z66L8 D
T66L8 2D
SS6L8 D
ZS96L8 D
Sg€6L8 D
SE6L8 D
91648 AD
£I6L8 AD
ZT6L8 D
888L8 O
8L8LS8 AD
6S8L8 MO
£08L8 D
P6LL8 D
LSLL8 D
96SL8 D
€6SL8 MO
0vSL8 4D
vESLE D
89vL8 MO
6E¥L8 D
SPTL8 AD
L9698 D
99698 O
68898 MO
€vL98 MO
8€L98 D
9LS598 D
¥Z998 MO
11998 4D
8€£598 MO
v6¥98 D
6¥$98 MO
S6T98 D
£€L098 D
12098 D
£66S8 D
T9LS8 4D
9Tv¥S8 AD
666%8 D
06€E€E8 MO
0SZEB O
L1628 D
16528 MO
SLPZ8 O
voves 2D
€L618 D
LE6T8 3D
Zege18 MO
# >osyo di
T 9@3eg unyg

z9LTa9 :oN 3xodeyd



[4

abeg

GG ELE'86T :Tealon
SSTELE'86T :Te30] ueqd
G6 " 6GSE L :Te30lL odAL
00°0T%‘T LT/ %2/ LZZ%# DOSSY ¥ALHOIA HAIA
00°6LY LT/vZ/C SENA NOINN/AWDSAY
95°619 LT/%2/C XYL ¥ALAVY SNI HSYM/QIAdWNH
Z2Z€T0'T LT/0T/Z L 93¥D 'SSEH
00°0TI%'T LT/LZ/T LZZPH# DOSSY ¥ALEDII HITI
LT 98V 9T/ST/L L7100 ‘SSEH
€6°9€L 91/80/% HONVINSNI HAIT
€STEPT T ST/60/0T dNANg HFAOTAWH/TYOTAENW
€L°0S S1/%1/8 GZT ‘SNI HJ4IT TYINOTOD
TIL°0T vT/ST/8 ¥O/NOILDITTIOD ddd A4TIIHS
09 "€T0‘T6T :Tejol =adAL
00°%0€ LT/LT/Z ONI SJdNOJ ALID YINIDVIA
00°09 LT/LT/T ADNEOY SOLNY HHIL
00°0ST LT/LT/Z AJOLIYIHL HOHVI ONITA
SL-1S8‘%TT LT/LT/T OTLLYSNHAWOD ADNEODY DITdNd
00°2S LT/LT/ d OTEONY ‘INI¥LAd
00°899°T LT/LT/C 0D WEOJAINA LSH¥D DIAIDYdA
9% 6112 LT/LT/Z ONI VINJOJAITYO J0 TALXAN
0S°2¥%¢ LT/LT/Z DIAYHS JdHLEWOUHHIS VAYAEN
00052 LT/LT/T AIIINIT JO SIADANL YAYAAN
00°SZT LT/LT/T SAENJOLLY ILOI¥LSIA YAYAAN
€S S0V ‘LT LT/LT/Z Td SNI ADNADY DITdNd AAN
T1°912 LT[LT/T NOILYAMASNOD 40 IdHd AIN
AUNOWY S3ed ¥oaUud sweN @sAoTdwg/I0opUusa
LT/82/C - 00/00/0 wWOxd
666666 ybnoiyr T #309UD woxs

sxoayp butpueisino

ONIINNOOOY SwdddNSVIAL

ALNNOD AXHIOLS

CL: eV 71

T0S006
cov006
LOEOCE
Z1tT
TO0S006
6TCT
€TLT006
LOT006
T0Z006
ST9006

€£68E0¥
STSVOV
EV6EDY
68GZ0T
S68€0¥
£86707
Z9¢€10T
VYLZTIOT
TSYE0T
60CTI0T
TvCI0T
289%0%

66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T

66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T

# uosasg bss ueg

swtL uny LT/0T/€0

€05SE  ¥d
20sSsgE ud
00SSE  ¥d
88%SE dd
S9%SE ¥4
¥6TSE dd
€T0SE  dd
YLLYE dd
SOLPE ¥d
TECPE dd
86088 D
68088 D
GL088 3O
TL088 D
55088 MO
79088 MO
09088 MO
65088 MO
95088 O
SS088 MO
z5088 3D
é6¥088 MO
# 3osyd di

93ed uny

29.TI8 :oN 3xode¥



IS Z0ETITZ & 060906 S 6S€Z 5 6978C8Z § 9660V S LUOEOOSE S CSB0LZS 60TL06$ 285609 S 051288V 5 660LZOUt 5 91S99L8 5 86005USy § CIBLIOIC S 9L I6ILSE $  TVIOLOGNVED
> $ = 9 = $ = $ = $ - $ 151G 2d
E6'EEYOVE S 70Z800FT $ BYLSL'T $ O0EBS8'ES 0TUSTS 00T98°CT $ VL6ILLE $ TOSLE'T6L $ 9T°'89L'SSY $ 1510 Xd
- $ - s - s = 5 = $ = $ 1510 XW
TWET'TOT  $ - S s $ - $ S S 6SOLYEE S £59/T $ 6816 S 6SVI9 $ S6'TLOE S TIT'E688 S LTV6O'9Y S ¥Z'668'80T S 1510 2d'Xd
2SI
“T0TI901S & 0608068 - § GOCZBtOZ [OSISZf S ULJSrE0 § 18695 § 0598819 99LSCL S BUBLEIL S OJ098C9 5 SE96IBL 5 COLIEV6 § (69C6WC S V9006L6L $  DISNNTVIOL
uawAediang
S9PISO0TS ¢ €£0656'6 S OT°2L5'82 ¢ 29°795°2E $ LOELY'83 ¢ 69695 $ 60'98%T S OVISTT S SSELETZ S TRP8Z'9 $ SSE6L'S8T $ v7'86Z'¥6 S TE'IZE'WT S 8T'ISSL6L S LT0Z/9T02
Zr90t $ 1871 $ 65°S $ SO'ET $ L9€t $ zro $ w0 $ 970 S € $ ST $ €87 $ 881 $ s $ 9EwY $  HOINdIVIOL
90t S L8T S 65°S $ SOET S (9El $ o $ wo $ 970 S €Y $ STt $ €87 S 8L8T S 9E Y S 9T0Z/ST0T
= $ =& $ - ¢ = ¢ = $ - s - & - & - & = s = & = 8 - $  |=oung
5 S ST0T/YT0T
= ¢ $T0Z/€T0Z
YOSSISSY
0E'P0029S S - S 68€ S - $ 96'€267 S ZI'L66Z8 $ S9'80L S OvyOv'T S LETEST $ TYEPYLZ S B860S0'8 $ ZESSE'EZ § ([IPLI'TZT § OLTOL'TEL $§ ZT'8Z9'v6 § SIVIOL L¥Od3M
= $ paJnaas punjay
0E'¥00Z9S $ - $ e8¢ $ - $ 96'€26'T $ ZI'L66'L8 ¢ S9BOL $ OVVOV'Z $ LET6S'T $ ZYEYYLZ $ 860508 § TE'SSE'ET § L9VLITZT § OLTOLTET $ TT'BZIVE $  QIWNIISTWLIOL
Z6'160°6SS  $ - $ - ¢ TrezET ¢ 6295948 $ YESOL § SY'PEEZ S S9TBS'T S LLOSELZ $ 86°LT0'® $ OE6ST'EZ § 9L°8£9'0ZT $ OLTOL'TET $ LS'SSY'E6 S LT/9TVIOL
95841 S 01'8C $ €70 $ LL0 $ TS0 S 8 S 85S¢ S Lt S oL8e $ W6 S ssassy [e123ds
9€°€16'85S TT'62€7 $ 6180948 ¢ TI'SOL $ 89€6£7$ EU'Z8ST S 007ZELZ $ OVSIO'E $ €RTIST'EZ S 90°0¥9°0ZT $ OLTOLT6L $ ST'PIEE6 $ L102/910Z
6v°'888°C $ = $ - $ = $ SgveS $ E8'09E $ 1fE $ S6'6 $ s $ S9T2IT  $ O0EE $ 2996 $ 16°S6Y S & $ S9UUI'T $ YONLIVIOL
¥8°9¥9'T [ $ - $ = S 6I0LZ § £S91Z $ 80T S 86 S 00v S 1929 S 8L61 S €18 S 6T'L6t s - $ STS0L S 910Z/5107
90°vL S S9'TT $ oro $ €0 $ 170 $ P9€ $ 40T $ OT€ $ 509t S 6L ¢ ssassy |enadg
8L°7LS'T S 610/ S 88'v0C S 86T S 99§ S 6L€ S L6€9 S 1wt $ €0SS S vTIsT S €€°L99 $ 9T02/ST0T
S9TVE'T $ 99'vZE  § O0EYT $ €1 $ L6E S wy $ vo'sy $ et $ 6v'8E $ 29'86T $ = $ ov'Lov $ |e303gng
6LLSY S T60IT  § SSbS S 6v0 S 6FT S 860 $ €oLT S 86 S 99T S LTSL S - S ST S ST0Z/T0Z
$5a55Y |epads
1601 & SS'HS S 6¥0 S 6v1 $ 860 $ €Lt S 86t S 99T AT S £SLLT $ ST02/v10Z
TToLE S 06'8ST S 9TEE $ 820 S €60 S 790 $ 8got S SOt $ 88 S 6LSY S - $ 6180T ¢ PTOZ/ETOZ TIOL
$5255Y |e1Rds
06'85T $ 9TEE $ 820 S €60 $ 790 $ 8E0T § S0€ $ .8 $ 6LSY $ 6T'80T $ ¥L0Z/€T0Z
- S £10¢/2102
2 $ 710Z/1102
- S TT0Z/0T0T
YIETY S S8YS $ 6v'9S $ w0 $ SST $ e S €941 $ 8IS $ 108t $ 9942 $ 89'T8T $ 0102/6002
Y S 6002/8002
= $ 8002/£002
- S £002/900T
s $ 9002/5002
W.10L %Z¥/V  LINJYAO %9 ¥/V SIILIVNId  H3W3/3MI3 H1NOA 20¥ ANl Q3 ANt 31viS NOV dvd 8AHS dO HJS alo 1SNANt TYY¥INID HIUNSYIUL
S91 90S9€-T00 POTYE-TO0 T00 (174 100 S8T 010 0LT 090 091 0ST 00S-T00 100

LT07 AMVNE833



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 21, 2017 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required | ]

For possible approval: For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of
$891,392.03 and accounts payable claims in the amount of $925,337.23.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4, Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

3. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[N

Agenda Item No. 4 E‘



YTIANSYHAL

YFTTOLLAWOD

YANOISSIWWOD YIANOISSTWWOD NYWEIVHD

LT/61/20

ATUNINITEEG

S

abedq

:SIJUOTSSTUWOD JO precg Ajuno) A21035 =2yl Aq pasoxddy

68 SPE‘8LE :pesangstd [e3oL
P2 PST6E 1I030MpaQ ©3 ISFSsUBI] I9SM TeIOoL
Z0°S5S8°0T :a1Td dag IT@ uo DPIaIX spag 2ddordwd Te3OL
16°SBE‘ €92 :atsodag 1081TQ 924ordug TeE3OL
22 ET0'T :syo8y) 22401duz TeioL
T1€°L28 0T :S3)09yD xojonpad TeloL
6T 0TT'ES Sdldd IO0F IJIJSUBIL 18SN TEIOL
Junowy saked # paa # aa
/# dum  /3o3ud
6 B L 9 S ¥ € 2z 1 :sdnoxp Tr0xhRd
:93eQq pus-potTiad LT/¥Z/20 :93BQ 03y xeInbay :adAl TrozkRa
z33st1bay yoeud T0:%0:1T LT/2Z/20 :uny
WILSAS TTO0¥AYd AILNNOD KZJYOLS ¥0T1S0¥d :3dey



AHANSYIAL

AETIOYILINOD

YINOISSTIWHOD YIANOISSIWKOD NYWIIVHD

:SAJUOTSSTWWOD JO paeog Ajuno) Aszxcas aylz Aq paasoxddy

6L°8LY'01S 1P9SINGSTA TBIOL
¥ vLS ‘2P :21030Mpag 01 I3JSURIL IIS[ TRIOL
ZO SEV'OL ;9114 deg 1TQ@ uO pIaIX spsg I3AoTduzg Teiol
8% LZT 182 :31s0dag 3103x1Q @3korduy [el0L
ZZT'ETO'T :S)09yD 2akotdwz TRIOL
€8°LEZ'ITT 1S)23YD IO3IDMPIAY [RIOL
0¥ 062 '6S :8dLdd I03J II3ISueI] I8N [RIOL
Junouy 23ded # paa # ag

/% dug  /¥o8ud

6 8 L 9 S v € tz 1 :sdnoxp rroxked
LT/S0/€0 :33eQ PUa-POTIX3ad LT/0T/E0 *®3BQ XO3UD 1ernbay :adAl 110xhed

AYUNTIRITIEG x238163y oayd 8% STET LI/LO/E0 :uny
S abeq WILSAS TIONAVd ALNNCD AJ¥OLS ¥01s0¥d :3dey



YEANSYIAL

YATTOALAWOD

YIANOISSIWWOD FIANOISSTWWOD NVWIIVHD

LT/80/€0

AUYNIWITINS

z

abeg

:sIaUOTSSTWWO) 3O parog Ajuno) A8xo3s 8yl Aq paasoaddy

SETL9E’e 1posangsTd Te3IoL
¥5°S9¢€ :10730NpPa@ 031 ISFSURIL XSSO TEIOL
00" 19114 dag ITQ UO padIX SpaQ @dAoTdwz TeIOL
00" :qtsedag 3jo0axta @akordum Teilol
gLTLSL T :s)o9y) Iadordwz T=I0L
00° 1S23YD ICIDNP3T TRIOL
£0°PYC :Sdldd A0z IBjsueil I3S[) Te30L
Junowy 22Aed # p2a # aa
/# dwz  /308ud
v :sdnoxp Troxled
19380 PUL-pPOTAS LT/BO/E0 @3 X02UD Tetoads :edAL T10a4ed
x33sT63y¥ YoaYD SZILVET LT/80/E0 ‘uny

WILSAS TIO¥AVA ALNNOD AFIOLS Y01S0¥d :3day



1

SS°TITT

6T EEE

gz ze
80 6LT

BE 2OV

00°60T
0S°LZT
00709

00°09

00 TS6°E

0z eve

00-0s
PE€°96S

6L EET

ADEHD

ebeq

ve LY
T9°€9

oS
T0° 0%
T0° 0%
69°20%
vv'se
0T* 00V
T0° 0%
T0' 0¥

oz-ze
80°6LT

66 EZ
6Z €S
68°0¢E
96°€Z
6E°ZE
9T S¥
91°1¢€
TO EET
€S°8Z

00°60T
0S°LZT
0009

00°0%
000z

00°918
00"99L'T
00°®¥ZE'L
00°sv

LO"T8
€ET°29T

00°0S
PET96S

0E"LE
y108
v6°69
2501
¢S 91
LL'8
09°0T

LNOOWY

1286L
TZB6L

LO0B6L
BEBEL
9€86L
v8LEL
vBL6L
vSeeL
vseeL
E066L

9086L
€E8LEL

Z8L6L
Z8LEL
ZBLEL
[4: 1273
ZBLEL
ZBLEL
Z8LBL
ZBLeL
Z8L6L

o8LeéL
0zZgeL
LTIB6L

SEB6L
SEB6L

6VBEL
6VBEL
[34:1-7A
ESB6L

9686L
968€6L

1s86L
6T86L

T8L6L
T8L6L
18L6L
(41172
ZSB6L
ZSB6L
[4°1:1-72

#SNWAL

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€

LT/E0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/¢€
LT/€0/¢€
LT/EQ/E
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/¢€
LT/€0/€

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/E

LT/€E0/€
LT/€0/¢
LT/€0/¢€
LT/€0/€E
LT/E0/E
LI/E0/€
LT/€0/€E
L1/€0/€
LT/€0/€

LT/E0/E
LT/€E0/€E
LT/E0/€E

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€

LT/EC/E
LT/E0/E
LT/E0/€E
LL/€0/E

LI/€0/€E
LT/€0/€

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€

LI/E0/E
LT/€0/€E
LT/€0/€
LT/€E0/€E
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€

FLva

SHIT4dNS WOOULSTA
SHITAANS WOOULSIYE

Q¥WOAIVY T10000-5600ZS2LE
JNOHd SHONH

NILLIEM & Z08S-€P¥-SLL
avdI 10000-Z90e92ZLL
INVId TO000-ZTEVIZZLY
T0000-LT9LS0ZP6 1DDYW
TO000-20BLEDZPE IDDY
90/C IAIM ZETELBELLE ANI

LI08 ¥VAHS
ASSY THEHM -SLSB90S

FNODITIS -dOHS

VALTIZ -BISEIUL

MOHTH LSOVHXH -89SE9¥d
L70dn 89S€9¥d

YALTIA 895€9¥d

SYELTII -B89SE9Y¥A

ggT ‘LX¥d TL-L

OX 'dvD ‘@¥IM SHNTd ¥B699IMd
HOLIMS MV ZPLESMA

TIVD) "A¥ES -SEWY -SO0LT
LT0Z ‘22Z-6 €34

NIWQY OIT€Nd

SWIOAINN

0S/¥IVdEy FTEVD

M¥0OM aNOd

FOVIdEE ¥VINVNO/aNOod
YIVdEd OIav¥

€/T TTYD A¥ES -TE0¥S IUL
€/T TI¥D A¥ES -TANI THL

YIESTAITY STV
25S6€£0T02 L1DDOV

HO
dOHS
dOHS

A¥ANOYT ¥L LS
A¥ONOYT SL LS
A¥ANNYT 2L 1S
A¥ANOVT TL 1S

NOIIJI¥DSHA FDOIOANT

LT/€0/€ AWIALSIDIA XOHHD

ALNOOD AJEOLS

XAL-WNAVHD

A'1ddNS A¥YLINVS TVIINAD

dIHSHYANIYYE 0D7T14D
SENIONE TIYWS NOSYWD

ONI ¥0d TYLIdYD

SI¥¥d OLOVY ALID TYLIGYD
H4¥S ¥ SSYID ‘MDOT M % D
SIMET LLODS ‘TIZ¥MENE

d TIASSNE ‘NOANVIE

UNY ONILNI¥E NITYOS Fad

SASTIJYIING AuNTE

ONI HDIA¥ES ¥ SETWS 1 % €
IIDONY ‘OZ0NAV

dT ENVdOdd SYDIYIWY

ONI 0DST¥
VOANIA

LT/T0/€0
STETH]

BTTI88

L1188

91188
ST188

vries

€1188
21188
Tt1es

oT188

60188

80188

LoTB8
90188

S0T8e8

70188

HIEWON

ADHHD
@3eq uny
oN jaoday



00°S38 LS86L LT/€0/E TOYLNOD LSEd SL IS

00°59 LSB6L  LT/E0/€ TOUINOD LSEd TL 1S
00° S8 LSB6L LT/E0/€ TOVINOD 1LSdd 2L 1S
SEd % ELIWYAL NISVE LVAED BETBS
05262 05°262 LYB6L  LT/E0/E SPX 0579
WOL ‘AdIESNYVED LETBS
€6°LYT'T SETTIL 98L6L  LT/£0/€ 0ST 1SA / ¥€Z TINQ-TAL
85°98€ 98L6L  LT/€0/€ ¥8T INN-MT
WQFTO¥LEd IES/FLYD NIAT0D 9ETB8
00°'L89 00°L89 soB6L  LT/€0/€ FOVNANS ¥IMOT HO
¥OONI ¥IV ¥ ONILVEH 13373 SETE8
00°08T°'T 00°08T’Z Ss86L  LT/€0/€ HONVINZINIVW LNIWIINOZE
ATddNS® DHAS HDIA¥ES F¥Id YEIB8
TT ETL ZI ETL 9586L  LI/E0/€E ENVA0¥d 2L 1S
4T SYOTTIYYII £ETBE
6% L2 6¥'LZ £686L LI/E0/€ YASNIASIA TAMOL ¥OE SLILVH
ANYAWOD TUNILSVI ZETBE
05°LZS‘T 06°L2S‘T 8986L  LT/E0/E TTYM LEN'LOT ONINYVA HO
ONINTEANIONT LISIM ¥V TE€T88
18°19 18°19 ZI86L  LI/€0/€ YALNID AOOMIDOT -TFAII0D
0D SO¥E YIWIVA 0ETB8
¥1°€09 88°%0S sgL6L  LT/EQ/E LD006-TZ Tdd SL-L
9Z°86 S8L6L  LT/E0/E gWSY FSOE 0¥E9SAL
ONI X7ddNS OLAY LIOITIA 62188
€8'0€E zz-ze ¥886L  LT/€0/E qISINESIA LNIWHSINIVO
19°80€ ¥886L  LTI/€0/E qasANESIA LNIWHS INIYD
NHOL % NIZLINHDS ‘XLIAVEN 82188
£0°68 £0°68 s986L  LTI/€0/€ YILNID AOOMMDO0T I¥HI008
NOILWMO4¥0D S€d HSIdA LZT88
00°ST¥?'T 00°STP’T vv86L  LT/€0/€ HA OS/SJOIHAW¥D FAILOFTITA
O ENIN FONEA 92188
$6°52 S6°SZ T066L  LI/E0/E OZH TYINZA
ONI VSN SHOIYA SZ188
€0 €SS 88°66% TI86L LT/€0/E FONTAFANOD WH -LHOITI
ST €S TI86L LT/E0/€ FONTAZANOD WE -A¥D TYLNAN
gor ‘SIIAND ¥ZT188
08°s8 08" 58 2TB6L  LT/EO0/E ESTANVHOUHN dOHS LdID
ONI SEOVHAATE NMOUD €288
%0 SEV 0T 06T L686L  LT/£0/€ ANT SINVIO/EINVID WId-DWI
6 ¥¥Z L686L  LT/E0/E ZOE-PPISZTAEN/AIY WII-OWI
T0S INWONW WNDO0d FLETIWOD zZ188
£€2°565°SC PO EEB'Z 8T86L  LT/E0/E INVED TS dOLS ASA
L9°999°9 9LL6L  LT/€0/E
S8°92L'T 8T86L  LT/€E0/€ INVTYO TS 401§ ASA
8E €SE'T 8T86L LT/€0/€ INWV¥D TS dOlS nNsa
96 T8T'T 8186L  LT/EO0/€E INVID 1§ dOlS NSA
EEEEB'TT 8086L LI/€0/€ LTOZHDYVYW IY0d4NS WWIDOAJ
ONI LSEHD ALINAWWOD TZT88
SE"LIZ LT T1ET €886L LTI/E0/€ GESYNESTA LNIWHS INYYD
80°9€T €886L  LT/€0/E aISINESIA LNFWHS INUYD
AIN 20 IDIAWIS NOILOHTIOD 0zT8e
80" %281 857928 €¥86L  LT/€0/E LTQOOTIAN
0S°LLS E¥86L  LT/E0/€ LTACOTIAN
00°0Z% E¥B6L LT/E0/E LTA0OTIAN
d¥0D SNINDONYL ZLITAZANID 611886
8L Z6T 8L' 26T 1686L  LTI/E0/E SNYdLSNA ‘ SWOOUH ‘ SAOW
TYLOL INOOWY H#SNYAL FLYa # 0/4 NOILdI¥DSHA IDIOANI JYOANTA UTEWON
MOIHD ¥DHHD
LT/€0/€ WALSIDIE ADIHD LT/T0/€0 : @°3eQ uny

abeg ALNNOD AZYOLS STETEd :ON 3xoday



€

00°00T
L9°999°T
00°59
T0°92s‘T

00°STS

00°00S°7%
00-s8z’‘z

T9°SL6

Ly z

9L"S9T
00°00S
6S5°'SLB

90°TLS'T

097922

0s-ze

8T €ESZ’'ZT

86°L09

0T LYE’S9

00°SZ€E

TY.LOL
ADHHD

ebeg

20" ve
-86°21

8L 291
00° %6
05°60T
-sZ ve

8L Lz
00°00T
L9°999°T
00° 52
10°92S8°T
00-sze
00°SY
00°SET
00°0TT
00°00S°¥
00-sezZ’‘z

0v"TT
1Z°v96

Lv'z

9L"S9T
00°00S
65°GL8

90°92Z¥’'1
00°SYT

09-9zz
0s°2Z8

9% 8PT TT
9€° ¢SS
9¢° 2SS

267592
90°CVE
PYILSE’T
PPILSE’T
Tz TEI'E
00" Sss
00°SS

LNOOWY

9v86L
9v86eL
LBBEL
ZE/6L
v686L
v686L
6586L
6LBEL
6086L
SZ86L
ZB86L
ST86L
ST86L
ST86L
ST86L
vZe6L
€286L

ZLB6L
TL86L

BS86L
68BLEL
0T86L
SL86L

oveeL
BLLEL

6886L
oL86L
LLLeL
LLLBL
LLLSL

008eL
008B6L

88LEL
88L6L
SVBEL

LBLEL
LSB6L

#SNVAL

LT/E0/E
LT/E0/E
LT/E0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€E0/€
LT/€E0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€E0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€E
LT/€0/€
LT/E0/E
LT/€0/E
LT/€ED/E
LT/€0/E
LT/€E0/E
LT1/€0/€

LT/€0/€E
LT/€0/E

LT/€0/€
L1/€0/€E
LT/E0/€
LT/€0/¢€

LT/€0/€E
LT/E0/€E

LT/E0/E
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€E0/€

LT/E0/€
LT/E0/€E

LT/€0/€
LT/E0/€E
LT/€0/€E

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€

q1va

SYIANIE HSIWWNOD

LSEY LSI¥M TID
SHITddNS FDIAJ0
STEEVT SITJELLVE

SIINdans IDTIA0

LACHdNS WYAO0dd LTOZHDAYW
LI0Z ‘Zz-6 €3d

Dé ONINNYIE AHLWYN
INFWSAENENTEE FTO
INSWSYNENIEN FTO
INARSANENTHE HTO
LNTWSYNENIEE ITD

JNVE A¥d ¥HLSA0

FANIVIEY HOYVW

H3I7T FIFILIE
TYINIA FIATLIAY

S3ITddNS SWA
TAATOLIN ‘VYSY-XAV E€6LLSMA
YADIAI0 BELTVEH LTOZHOUYW
WIATIODHE dIX DdV¥ YA0DZZ

AAIIINAL /ASEA
200A /202

STHDLVYd NOILDHE¥I0D
LANYELNI ZLLS
£5000-T%#06009T
£5000-TV0600ST

SNYAZ €S000-T¥06009T

SdHWNE L1Id ¥ILIW
LNEOVHYE ENTHOTHD HIdd

Savoy
SavoA
d0 1LdN0d AAH/LTAOOTIAN

ATIILIVOD -DSMT
TO¥ELNOD LSEd ¥L 1S

NOILAI¥OS3IA FDIOANI

LT/€0/€ VWIALSIOIY MDHHD

ALNNOD XTAOLS

NI SNOILNTOS HDOIJJ0 OdLIW
AHLOWIL ‘ZAHLYWOOW

YLD ALINOWWOD NIVML M¥VKW
WNISAK NOISNVW AWIDVW

ONI SHIYOLVVOEYT VKW

HIIZY ‘SIWO01T
07117 SINIAZ INTE AINDIT

OT1 SINIAZ FNTd AINDIT

Z4IT TYNOILVN NTODNIT
ONI LSISSY-3dIT

o711 4€r

OdGW NVNNETOW O SHWVD

OTT g0¥N0S TLI

HJOLS ALINONWOD AW SLII

dd0d SIADIA¥IS ISI

ONI ANVEAVOdHE LOdS LOH

HLTYHH NMOLZWOH

L7 X1ddNS LSNOD A1ddNS dH

ar1 ‘IvH

JYOANIA

LT/10/€0
STETEd

LSTes
95188
SS188
yS188

ESTB8

Zsies
TST88

0stss

67188
8¥188
L7188
97188

svies

vrIBR
EVIBS

zvies

Tv188

0ovise

6ET1B8B

JIEWON

ADAHD
°3eQ uny
ON wuonwm



v

S0°0LL'T

06°LT

ze'es
00 vy

65°SVZ

00 E6LEZ
SLTBET

00 EBE

8% " T10E

0¥V 98T

8E'61
00°00T
67°60S'T
oo-oLe
00°00L
00°002°T
00°09
9£°02€°9
ZSTEL

€8° 118

TYLOL

ADIHO

sbedq

zE"ZS

00° vy
65°9vZ
65°5%2
-65°5v2
00°E6L EZ
SLTBET

00°8s2
00°S2T

yvoLLe
y0 w2

oT Lz
0Z°6ST

8E'6T
00°00T
6%°60S°'T
oo oLz
007 00L
00°002°T
00709
9€°02€°9

9L" 9¢€
9L" %€

g1°LZE
Z8 €€

LNNOWY

S686L
LZB6L
LZ86L
LZBEL
SLLeL
SLLEL
SLLEL
SLLEL
SLLeL

S6LEL
S6LEL

E6LEL
9zZ86L
veLeL
veLeL
VELEL
6EB6L
To66L

TEB6L
0986L

6LL6L
6LLEL

6686L
6686L

EI86L
vLee6L
8VBEL
Z6L6L
T6L6L
S686L
8886L
06L6L

0686L
o686L

9v86L
oveeL

#SNIL

LTI/E0/E
LT/E0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/¢€
LT/€0/¢€
LT/€0/¢€
LT/E0/€
LT/€0/¢€
LT/€0/€

LT/E0/E
LT/E0/E

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€E
LT/€0/€
LT/€E0/€E
LT/E0/E
LT/€0/€E
LT/E0/€E

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€

LT/EO/E
LT/EO0/€

LI/€E0/E
LT/E0/E
LT/€0/€
LT/E0/E
LT1/ED/€E
LT/e0/€
LT/e0/¢€
LT/€0/€E

LT/€0/€
LI/€0/¢€

LT/E0/€
LT/e0/€

qiva

ASVWAT 1L =¥Id
¥ INAT ¥X MIAN‘YVYA SWISHOD

OISAd NOATHOVYZ LSvi1dd DHEA

SONIV-O ~¥IAWAD
YAHSVM —dFAAWID

ANNdEY LISOdAA

LT0Z 'TZz-6 €ad
Javig-v0LMd

JAavI" -POLMM

JaQVIE -voLMA

LOT ONIN¥VE HD ONIDNES
V& SL°€ 099SEL LSND

WNISAW AIWWYIS
ONINELLET FNDSTE FAFISTH

HDI440 M¥ETO
INSWIOTHARA ALINNWWOD

24V J33d dIDV
SHITddNS F0I440 JOSIW

AJELIVE GNOHAJ - ASYNEWIIA
aNNITE HFd VA
NOISSIWWOD ODNINNWId
LTOZ JHSYEWIW NNV
LIWd3d 0682 dI DOVa
ONINYVYE ¥0A FSVAET

8T0Z JIHSUEEWIW JJATITHS
SEYIL-AIAYOTT LWD

ATIN JLVWNI
ATIW ZLVANI

SYIANIE DNIONVH
SYIANIE HSIWWOD

NOILEI¥DS3IA IDIOANT

LT/€0/€ WALSIDITA NDHHD

ALNNOD AZNOLS

(¥D) ONI 0D NVONOM AVY

ONI SEIDHIVALS awvy

NYTdYIM0d
YIANGNAT 3 NOSWL ‘YELd0d

a OTIONY ‘ININLEd

g ¥ SLiV¥d JONAUL ITIENELIA
ONI ISNOD S¥YZHIO¥E JTId

ONI IHOISNIWOLAO

IS ¥ SDIHAWYD JAIS FHLI NO

071 'LOdEd VIVA HLISIIO

ONI 1OdZd IDIJA0

VHIIVW ‘NIIJEO

SHWV( ‘STOHDIN

ONI VINJOJITYD 40 TALXIN
D0SSVY dILYM THINY A3IN
TYHSYVW FUIJ AN
XTIIEWIN “TYEN

D0SSVY S JdIdFHS TYNOILYN

OLNIWWAOVS JI0 JTIIL NVOAOW

OTT A¥IVA TIAOW

EOANIA

LTI/T0/¢€0
STETdd

LLT88

9L188

SLT88
vLT88

€L188

ZL188
L1888

oLIBS
69188
89188

L9tee
99188
59188
v9188
£9t8e
[4-31-1']
19188
09188

[3-4:1:]

BSTBS

HEEWAN

ADIHD
@3eQ uny
ON buonwm



S

00°€E¥2

6V°6T2°ST

ELTTET

S9°8TT
€L 0S
00" %39S

0€°L00°T

TYIOL
ADFHD

abeg

8% 8L
[4 34
80°0€E
ze'2¢
sg-cv
6L°T9T
zZr-zevy
G8°8T
v0°9TL
TLPIT
Zv-z8
8L°89
917062
697901
zZ°Le
vZ° 1€
v9°2Z8
Z8°9L
PP 66T
0E"6L

00°56
00" B¥T

6V 6TZ ST

8B zz
1€e°
zs's
sZ°¥
14
Lo
8S°ST
ST 'S¢
L't
99 %1
(40

[ 4
oL”
8271
¥s®
SL°E
ZS° 11
62°%
T€°9
26T
S9°8TT
€EL°0S
Q0" ¥9S
10°8ST
00" 0SE
00" €SY

INNOWY

66LEL
66L6L
66L6L
66L6L
66LEL
66L6L
66LEL
66LEL
66L6L
66LEL
66L6L
66L6L
66L6L
66L6L
66L6L
66LEL
66L6L
66L6L
66L6L
66L6L

BEL6L
86L6L

LEBEL

veBeL
vEBEL
VEBEL
PEBEL
vEBEL
vEBEL
VEBGL
YE86L
veE86L
vEBGL
VEBEL
vEB6L
veEBEL
vEBGEL
VEBEL
143-1-7A
vEBEL
vese6L
vEB6EL
vEBGL

LeLEL
SB86L
€986L
S686L
S686L
S686L

#SNWVAL

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€E0/€
LI/€0/€E
LT/EC/E
LT/€0/€E
LT/€E0/E
LT/€0/€E
LT/E0/E
LT/€0/E
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€E
LT/E0/E
LT/€E0/€E
LT/€0/€
LI/E0/€E
LT/€E0/€E
LT/E0/E
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€E

LT/EQ/E
LT/€0/€

LI/€0/€E

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€E
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€E
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/E0/E
LT/E0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/E0/€E
L1/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/E0/€E

LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€E
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/¢
LT/€0/€

qLya

# 0/d

LS D ZLE/DA LINO IS O S
HOVNVO 1S € § %01

LS NOLINS

H¥¥d DA 1S A N S02

whAu Q¥ ENIAVY TYINVAS 00S
OWISVD 1S O § 12

INTd HLM 1S HLNOS MOOT
MAVd SNEWITO WVS 06¥
TI¥VD TvE AMH S0 116

0S &L§s O s sozZ

OS 1s D § €02

¥a I8 O § 102

/1 dOHS @i TIOL 00T
DATE @I TIOL 01T

2078 a¥ TIOL OET
dOLS1SHY LS 2 N TBE
LINQO LS O N Sv1

SHY Q¥ LHOIYMIAWD 2192
¥ LS AVM NOANWD TEV
HSHAWNd LIHOI¥MIAVD 0192

NIDOYLIN ‘Wd0JITOD
Hd ‘S-00€‘SAITos

ANO"E HNNIAZY JAMIS

210A

ONINNYId

11

(OA) a¥I1d

WANOISS IWWOD

¥a

HOLYASIQ TYALNAD
VOSSISSY
INTWIOTIAHA ALINOWAOD
(0A) =14
AOOMIDOT/SU I
NINAY/3ITTOAIINOD
JITHEHS

ae

A4 THIHS

SYOM DITdnd

(DA) =T
MIQUO0EH

MAATD

I¥L/ENTd

SEITddNS ONIATIM
qESANESIC LNIWHSINIVO
WEZLSAS ONILMNO4HY SWA/I¥IL
T0-9L9ZND ¥ILLOTE SID
ODOA OL EAOW ¥FI&CD II
LIFELS O WWOD-YIIEO0D

NOILAI¥DSIA HOIOANI

LT/€0/€ NWALSIOEY NOTHD

ALNDOD AZAOLS

0D ¥IAMOd DIJIDVd W¥¥dIS

IVLNIWNOYIANT WH¥HIS

OTT QYYMOH ONY NYWIHHS

dT NI SEOIA¥ES TVdOTD DES
ONI 02ddnd
ONI HITIWIA

ONI ‘SWALSAS ODNIIYOd=A

AOANIA

LT/T0/€0
STETEd

vet18s

EBT8E

Z8188

18188
osies
6LTB8

8LTIBS

HIEWON

MDEHD
e3eQ uny
ON 3I0day



ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIONIA 66188

66°092 66°0T €EB6L  LI/EO0/E ) FTAOLINANG FOIZI0/TTIMAO0D
00°0s2 £EB6L LT/E0/€E LT0Z/T1T/20 MITONID
2LdA 86188
€T°9%8 SLLTT 9886L  LI/€0/€ QISANESTA LNSWHS INIVD
SS°68Z 9886L LT/€0/€ QZSANESIA INIWHSINVVO
£8'BEV 9886L LI/E0/E AESENESTA LINSWHSINNVO
AIVI¥LSNANI FONVNIS dILINO LE6TBSB
z9 982 0Z°¥ €986L  LI/E0/€ ZONVNALNIYW ONICTIING
[4 K414 €986L LI/E0/E FONVYNALNTYW ONICTING
ONT ‘X7ddNS WISNOD NWIIL 96188
00°GLT 00°6LT vLLEL  LT/€0/E NOIIDITIOD WOANVH
aL7 ONILSHEL ATIWIL 56188
B6°TSL'Y 9L vZT 96L6L  LT/E0/E T0T DFY-HOA
zZ LeS'v 96L6L  LT/E0/E 889 1SA / TOST 9FA-Md
OTT WNATONLEd SYWOHL 6188
00" ZET 00" 2ZET T¥86L  L1/£0/€ ONILIEW
¥SNOH ONILSVON HHL £6188
00°562 00°S62 0066L LT/€0/€ FONYNALNIVW FAODAVE LTAd
SALVIDOSSY ¥ QUOJHSY 1T 1L Z6TBS
00°829 00'%0S 6286L LT/EO0/E
002z 6Z86L  LT/EO0/E
00-zoT 6Z86L  LT/€0/E LT0Z ‘ZZ-6 €3I
SHSIVJUHEINT MVEd NOS 16188
99°LOL 99°LOL z986L  LT/E0/E FONYNIINIVN SLd
IYOIAIN YEAAULS 06188
19°Z8E 19°28¢ 0se6L  LT/€0/€ JATHHEHS
‘ SNOILWYDINNWWOD dVLSZUVLS 68188
¥6°589 Z1°2ZSE Zve6L  LT/€0/€ LTAOOTIAN
Z8 EEE Zv86L  LI/E0/€ LTAOOTIAN
LOI¥ISIA TOOHDS 0D IS 88188
S6°Z0T S5 8L Z6B6L  LT/E0/€ SYANI'T N¥D
00°¥%Z 9986L  LTI/EC/E SHITAANS ONINVATO
III L DINIKOQ ‘ANOTITYES LBT88
0T°8€2‘1 0L B8EZ'T 8Z86L  LT/E0/E NVHO¥EW dOHS L4IS NID WIAD
S 3 ENIM SHUEZVID NYEHLOOS 98188
00°000°€ 00°000'€ 0886L L1/€0/E NOISNALXE ¥IMOd TIIH QT0D
0D ¥EMOd JIJIDVd WMAAIS SBIBE
$5°€99°6 98- 1€Z 66L6L LT/E0/E FSHAYTA IHOIUMINVYD 0192
L aSK:324 66L6L LT/€0/€ ¥ J0 € /IS NOINA 09T
20° 9% 66L6L LT/E0/€ HAYE CF HONWE IdEd 000T
[4 K43 66L6L  LT/€0/E MUVE HOA Q¥ INIEWE TYIZ
LS 9LT 66L6L LT/€0/€ ¥ LINN XM NOANYD 02Z%
z9°s92Z 66L6L  LT/€0/€ € LINN A¥M NOANVD 02Z%
0Z°6S 66L6L  LI/E0/E 1S O N S8T
10°120’2 66L6L  LT/EO0/E AA A¥Fd SOLT
€€ 60T 66L6L LT/E0/E Q¥ HONYY I¥3d 008
62021 66L6L  LT/E0/€E SIHDIT 1S D § T€S
€T°L6 66L6L  LT/EO0/E SIHOIT 1S D § TVE
66 0L 66L6L LT/€0/€ SIHOIT IS O N 94T
06°9¥%L 66L6L  LT/EO0/E FSNOHLANOD IS € § 92
LT 889 T 66L6L LT/E0/€ NOANVD &TIW XIS 0222
0T ' 6%€E 66L6L  LT/E0/€ (ONINIVAL) IS D N 1T
16" 1S¢ 66L6L  LL/E0/E SHEYIA IS D N
LZ LEZ 66LEL LT/€0/€E OA LINN 1S D S
€L'LE 66L6L L1/€0/€ IHDIT T¥4/J400ALOC IS D §
IYLOL LNOOWY #SNVEL ALVA # 0/4 NOILJI¥ISEQA HDIOANI YOANHA ATEWON
MOEHD ADFHD
LT/€0/E€ HIISIOHAY ADIHD LT/TO/€0 ¢ ®3ea uny

9 abea ALNNOD AZVOLS STETEd *ON 3I0day



L

96°LT6 €91
0076211
sz 19
LL"S8Z

00*0¥%6

s6°922'1

9T LTV

L6789T'T
06°612

00002

TYLOL

ADFHD

abeg

TYLOL SMOHHD
00°GZT'T
S2°19
LL S8Z

00°06T
00°0SL

§6°92T'T

99°61
0SS L6t

L6°89T'T

pE 01T
95°6

00°821
o0-zL

INNOWY

BEBEL
E08B6L
z086L

T086L
T086L

v986L

vos6L
vo8eL

LI9B6L

oL8EL
oLBEL

0€EB6L
0EB6L

#SNWAL

LT/€0/€
LT/E0/€
LT/E0/€E

LI/€0/€
LI/€0/€

LT/E0/€

LT/EOQ/E
LT/E0/E

LT/E0/€

LT/€0/€
LT/E0/E

LT/E0/E
LT/€0/€

aLea

ZLd L¥ED ¥A /A¥ASNOD
LIN¥Ed “¥LSNI
¥IH dOHS 3AVTE UIW NV

NIWOVY ‘O¥0 TLL‘ITOD'dTY
OTVHIYL TIL ‘OTYH

FONVYNILNIVM ODNIQTING

T¥ES 1D0Na ~LNTd dIM
NYITE 8L-DDIA

STVEN dOOMMDO0T LT0Z NYL
JEATLIY TO00 L¥0B¥O OF
V¥EQD T000 L¥P0B¥0 OF
LT0Z ‘2Z-6 €ad

NQOILAI¥DSHA FDIOANT

LT/€0/€ WHALSIDEN XDFHD

AINQOD AIUOLS

NIIWN “d0NNZ
NVHIVN ‘HLIHM

00 ATddNS VOVYAEN NIFTLSEM

Y1 TYLNIWNOVNTANT NIYELSEM

SHLVIDOSSY ® YANQIIM

ONI 0ODQEM

A¥ES YOINIS XLNNOD HOHSWM

ONI ‘NVId IDIAYES NOISIA

VOANIN

LT/10/€0
sTeETEd

Lozss
sozes

s0zZ88

vozses

£0288

zozses

10288

oozses

YAEWNNN
piiok:ite]
938 UMY
ON jxoday



YIANOISSINWOD

YINOISS IKWOD
NYWIIVHD
PEANSVIAL
BITTOALAWOD
L1/€0/E dLVQ ADFHD 9S°LT6 "E9T TYIOL SMOHHD

NOILVZIHOELNY UNY MEIAZY 20 LINZEWIOTHTMONMOY




15° 12 600T LT/E0/E T ¥AISNVEL ENOHd LI 9LETE6TLSL
1812 6001 LT/EO0/E Z JTISNVYL INOHd LI STYVO6TLSL
ET°ST? £T0T LT/E0/€E ANOD WOLDId 03 ¥¥D TYLNEY ¥VD ALITHHL
v s8L'Z LOOT LT/E0/€ OLVAVWDXE SYIVAEY QOOTI AVESNOS UHAANS
SY 9%7‘T LOOT LT/E0/E ¥IZ0d SYIVAIA do0Td IVD NUYWHSVD ¥IUANS
9€"0LZ 800T LT/E0/E AVY OICY¥-IHOITOD LHOIT 09-YLLEUNS
L% 9%E ET0T LT/EO/E O 1DId ¥Od AWLS HLIN T THLOH EONVSSIYNIA
00" v¥%9 Z10T LT/EO0/E€ LTOZ ONINIVEL NVAJIVHD BYPILET " " # JAN
00°0¢L 1101 LT/E0/E ISVINYANE VANN 1SJdX€ AAVN¥EdEd 92 Md
00" TZ2Z T6%T LT/E0/E SSY'ID FQ0D STO0ZDHI ¥0d STYANVA LNINd
00" €€ LOCT LT/E0/E SSY¥E ¥YTT0D ALIWNOAINN NIAEN
66°69T L00T LT/E0/E JIVHD %SIA 10430 FIIJI0 NIAIN
ey L0OOT LT/E0/€ SHIVATY FOVNNNE TL IS SEMOT NIAZAN
00°'0¢ T6%T LT/E0/E JIAYIIS NVWTIIO LT-ST-2 ONILIIW DHEN
00°SL 69T LT/EO/E LT/ST/T ONIZEW JEN
0% 66L 1101 LT/€0/€ WNISOW YOd SLHOIT ESVWD ATASIC LOJEA FWOH MW
00°068 LOOT LT/E0/E SIASAYIH  SOILENOS HONOTINIOW
£9°952 LOOT LT/E0/E | SYEOUVHD ¥EOVA QJA TE WANOYW HONOTTINDOW
ET°VIE LO0T LT/EO/E SHIYELLYE OIAYY AdA © A¥ILLYE HONOTINDOW
00°2S €101 LT/E0/E ANOD WOLDId LV ONIXVVL FOVHYD AYWEEIT
00" L 00T LT/E0/E HSYM T04dd  dOLS ADIND ¥FTONITA
L8'6 v00T LT/E0/E ESNIdXT NID WID 0d sdsn ax
VT ET 700T LT/E0/E ONILIEW €070 SAIX H ONILSYOM HHI 0S8 ax
3ok 4 %00T LT/€0/€ SISNIAXT TMWAD NOOTYS FIYL WYTI0A aX
80° 28 00T LT/E0/E SAITAdNS ONINVETO WOD " NOZYWY a3
00°0L 800T LT/E0/€ S¥IMOd-EONINFINCOOIAIA YMAN-"TAHNAL
66" %1 800T LT/€0/€ \NOILAI¥DSENS ATHLNOW O¥DOY FEOAY-"TAHNAL
sL 62V 1101 LT/E0/€ EWWYIS ¥0d SOVTA AN'SN FAOLS DY SN 40
L6°6T 800T LT/E0/€ SNAIT4 10d3a ANOH-HIIEL
86° %S 800T LT/€E0/€ LADNYS HOLIX -JSDA LOd3d IWOH-HAJEL
ZBZLZ 200T LT/E0/€ TIVZMYS LOdEd SWOH-HAZAL
18°62 800T L1/€0/€ SEAVTIE ‘ava 1049d FWOH -HaJdr
B6° 6T 800T L1/€E0/E ALINVA HIVE -HO 10dd3a FWOH -H4JAL
00-058 69T LT/E0/€ NAOW ONINIWEL T¥IDIAA0 018 1330 D01 QOOH
90°62Z L00T LT/€0/€ HONUNAINIVW ZL IS LO&HA AWOH SHOAYH
-€0°9L9 LOOT LT/€0/€ aNnNday $33d LIWNEd 0D53A SIAWVH
0Z°98T°Y 0T0T LT/E0/E 004 HLYWNI ODNIM - NESOU
YL 6E 0ToT LT/E0/E TINL STEMOL ¥O0d SAOOH 10430 IWOH - NESOa
00°61 0101 LT/E0/€ M HOVETE ‘XHANIM 'SHAIM HYOLS WYIIOA - NESOA
00°569 T6%T LT/€0/€  FTINAOW ONINIVIL HOIL LIW¥dad D01 NOTTIIA
00°009 v00T LT/E0/E EISNIAXE NID WD NOILILIAWOD dS aa
0T"6E 00T LT/€E0/E LSHLNOD OL NID WED dIND YOLISIA SdSn MO
00°0%6 T6%T LT/€0/€ NIWTNOVS ONINIVAL I¥ED  XH SN¥Id D8I SIIAND
00°88 Z10T LT/€0/€ N¥L NLA¥ESNOD SNHD IT1d NOMOZE# JNOD
00°' %6 Z10T LT/€0/€ NYL NIA¥NISNOD ONHO 114 QACIIE# INOD
00°9 £00T LT/E0/E 89ZZ9Xd HSVM AVD SYANNIM-NIAZN D
v0°2s £00T LT/€0/E ENOHd FLTTIIIYS 1SOda¥Ou-NTAEN" D
00°08 9500T LT/€0/€E a1d LT0Z ¥ad TIA SNaNg
00° LT S00T LT/EO0/E ONINIVEL SNINE IVL vL9ZZ981 Q¥YIIVH
00°S0T S00T LT/€0/€ NEANIEN OL DHO TYNOSYAd TYdAVd QEVTTIVE
00" 8€ £T0T LT/E0/€ I 440 ¥OZ XO0Td ® Q¥OD FHOLS ATdaY
ST 21 T10T LT/E0/E ONINNVId FSNOH ONILSYON OV
8E€°08¢C T10T LT/EO0/E SLHOIT ESAOHLANOD NILHOIT ¥ LININVD OV
90°¥8Z TT0T LT/EQ/E SLHOIT FSNOHLYNO0D NILHOIT ¥ LINIEVD OV
v6° LT L00T LT/E0/€ FIONYNIINIYW ZL 1S 10430 ZWOH SNINAV
INEWAVE Q¥EVO TYIDMYEAWWOD 3NO ST113M zoT
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNVHL qLVa NOILdI¥OS3A # dOIOANI 1d43C-aNnd YOANZA YIEWON
a¥vD od
HALSIODAN QEVYD ISYHOAENG LT/10/€0 * 33BQ UNY

T abeg ALNAQOD AZdOLS IS08PSHd :ON Za1oday -




(4

T6°2¥S 9T

T6°2¥S 9T

TYLOL

abed

00" %S
9L°S8
9L" S8
9L° 56
00-se
00°08
00" 86T
S6°¥¥T
00" 068

LNOOWY

qLva

600T
600T
600T
600T
600T
600T
600T
600T
L00T

YINOISSIWWOD

YANOISSIWKOD

NOILVZI¥OHLNV ONV MIIAZY 40 LNIWIDATTMONIDOV

LT/€0/€
LT/€E0/€
LT/E0/E
LT/€0/€
LI/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€
LT/€0/€E
LT/€0/€

#ENVAL ALVa

SHXO0E ONIAOKW

TS qOOM3D0T

T8a 200A

150 AZAWOD

1sa oS

16d YLLS
SEI¥ALLYYE 00ZZ DdVY
NOS¥VYD FDWIOLS LI
SLISAVIH

NOILdI¥OSdd

AALSIDIA QYYD ISWHIAUN
ALNNCD ATAOLS

+Te30L PIBDa

SL9S2
698ZSV0ST
60LETYPLYT

TIPLLSSEYT
ET67¥98BET
E99TTOBET

£10T60
8L100000
SOILANOS AHHOX

# EDIOANI L4EU-ONNA

¥OANZA  ¥FEWON
od
LT/T0/€0 : 33eQ UNY

LS08¥SEd ‘ON 320dad w,



T

0S 9%
00°%LT

00612

00°09

00°S0T
T6 8SE
[epel 44

817808

€2°9S8¢

00°S¢E

00 o008

EEBET

00°50Z°9T

TYLOL
AOFHD

2beg

0y 26
50798
6076
00°S€E
86799
6S°EY
BE 6L
B6°6E
9" 8%
88° 1L
LL"TTE
86°T€E
68° 1€

0Ss° 97
00" %LT

00°01C
00°6

00°09

00°S0T
767 8SE
00°0%Z

60° 6TV
60°6€6€

0E"LE
v1°08
V6 vL
0E" LE
Lasa'L]
TS'0T
25°91
LL"8

09°0T

00°SE

00°SLE
00°sev

SE"92
S6791
£0° 96
00°08L"T
00‘002’6
00°sZs
00°009°¥

LNNOWY

SE96L
SE96L
SEI6L
SE96L
SE96L
SE96L
SE96L
SE96L
SE96L
SE96L
SE96L
SE96L
SE96L

ZZLeL
8GL6L

oL96L
oLI6L

6TLEL
€9L6L
EELBL
vZLEL

BOLEL
BOLEL

PeESEL
PEIGL
PESEL
vESEL
vES6L
LOLBL
LoLeL
LOL6L
LOLEL

8996L

2996L
Z9s96L

90L6L
S0L6L
goLeL

zZ8%e6L
8YL6L
LILBL
89L6L

#SNYIL

LI/Lt/z
L1/Lt/z
LT/LT/2
Lt/Lrjz
Lt/Lt/z
LT/Ltje
LT/Ltje
LT/LY/2
LT/LT/Z
LT/LT/T
LT/LT/T
Lt/Ltr/z
LI/LT/Z

LT/LT/
LT/Lt/z

LT/LT/T
LT/LT/2

LI/LT/T
LT/L1/2Z
LT/Lt/T
LI/LT/Z

[AYAAVEA
Lt/Lt/e

LT/Lt/2
L1/L1/T
Lr/Lt/e
Lt/L1/z
LT/LT/Z
[AVIA VA
LT/LT/2
L1/LT/T
LI/LT/2

LT/L1/z

Lt/Lt/e
[AVIAYEA

LT/Lt/2z
IAVIAYAA
L1/L1/eT

Lt/Lt/z
L1/Lt/e
IAVIAYAA
LT/L1/

dJLva

SYHILTIA-AD0LS
SHSOH-S0?9SA¥ES
YELTIA 6€EBISOS
WYEA LIANDOW
SYINYEJS -SMO1d
YELTI -"IAVAD M4
YILTII

FATM FTEAL-AFZTWNOD
JILTIA

dWNYT D04

HHOULS

TIVE ¥TIL ~AHANNOD
VIALTIE AAH

QOOMXDOT ¥IMIS 3 VELUYM
JAT86000¥D9T MDVIE

L10Z ‘8 €33-9Z NNC

NOILVISINIWAY DITENd
SIXVIL AVdYIAOC XOHH M
IDIA¥NES FONEAHANODHTAL
FI¥D 1¥0d ATTYS OL ¥IVAIA

TYOISAHd UILITALS
TYOISAHd SILIND

HD
dOHS
dOHS

HD
JOHS

AdANOYT PL LS
AYANOV'T SL IS
XIANOYT ZL 1S
AJANOYT TL IS

SAEN-N¥Ed SOLT

V80 J4VI MITASA
SNOILVILODIN NOOINN LTO0T

SHITIANS SWE
SdIT7ddNS SWA
SHITddNS SWA

INIWITAOY LAOddNS ATHLNOW
FDIdd0 ¥OSSASSY

LT DIC-NVL LIOAANS TVNNNV
LTAd SLNIWIONVHNA CIIVHS

NOIL4THOSEA FIDIOANI

LT/LT/2Z WELSIDIA NDHHD

ALNOOD AZYOLS

SIL¥Vd OINY ALID TVLIAYD
NEWIACHAWI TYAINID NOANYD

FAVS ¥ SSVID “MDO0T M % D

SIMIT LIODS ‘“TIaxing

a TTISSNY ‘NOANWIE

NOSVYL ‘NIAVE

IAYES EONFEFIANODITIL LILY

{OD) 0D HEONHEJ DILSILYY

SSANTTEM ANV HLIVEH D¥Y

ONI 00ST¥

ONI YDOT ENIJTY

arT ‘FIZNIIOVW ‘NOSITIV

ONI NON SVOIIV

ONI SWELSAS ¥WIV¥Q QIONVAQY
JOaNdIA

LT/9T/20
STETEd

966L8
Se6LB

v66L8

£66L8
Z66L8
166L8
066L8

686L8

886L8

LB6LE

9BeLB

Se6L8

¥86L8

€86L8

AFEWON

pteicicte]
a3eq unmy
oN 2xoday



TE" 86 LEJSGL L1/Lr/e 24%Z TIA -¥LIS ¥I

LLTTS LEI6L  LT/LI/T aINId “SA¥dENvEd -Z12Z90S

LS TLT LEY6L LI/Lt/T SAvd EXVIg-£12Z908

05°2Z¥ LE96L  LT/LT/Z Savd IYWNE -8LO0EHUS

LY €T LEIEL  LT/LT/E d¥D TIO T¥8TS¥S

LY €2 LE96L  LT/LT/T d¥D TIO yv¥8ISEL

097 BET LEIEL LT/LT/ SEAVI1g-AD01LS

SLTLE LE96L  LTI/LT/Z dWNd ¥IALS YMOd -HHBISHS

zZ9°61 LE96L  LI/LT/Z ¥ILTII -MDOLS

Z9°61 LEIEL  LI/LT/T ¥ALTIL -7PBISHI

9126 LEIEL LI/Lrje HSYM HSYI4S -¥d

90° %02 LE96L  LT/LT/Z 0dABL TEA-T9BZHEI

08°5S LE96L  LT/LT/Z TOODXEA ~dOHS

09°LS LE96L  LT/LT/T NVATD INVHE-dOHS
ONI ATddNs OINV LIOITIZ 60088

§z°55¢ 05°L8 vEL6L  LT/LT/Z HAAYS FSWD -S8ZOSMA

SL°L9Z vEL6L  LT/LT/Z MIAYS FSVO Z7LESMA
NEJ ONI FDIANAS ENITINI¥A 80088

LT 9¢2 LT 9¢C LBY96L LT/Lt/e JISUNESIA INFWHSINIYD
NHOL ® WHZLINHOS ‘XLIAWNM L0088

s6°5¢2 $6°52 6TL6L  LI/LT/Z WALYEH/¥IT00D ATHLNOW
ONI ¥Sn SHOIWd 30088

00°000°T 00°000°T 0TL6L  LT/LT/Z ONILINSNOD IWED
IOTOS DNILTINASNOD HFAILVIAD 50088

00°1T6 00" v8 TL96L  LT/LT/2 1$® Q70S SATLIOE ¥8

00°L TL96L  LT/LL/jE NOQ I$® QI0S SHETLIOE L
LYANNCE AJHLIWHD MDOLSHWOD ¥0088

S6°EEE zz" 691 S696L  LT/LT/Z QESHNESIA LNAWHS IN¥YO

€L ¥OT s696L  LT/LT/Z QES¥NESIa LNIWHSINIYD
ASN 40 EDIAYES NOILOHTIOD £0088

00°6 00°6 99L6L  LT/LT/Z SEXVI LNIWAVANIAQ
MAVK  “ NOSHNVTD zZ0088

00°02 00°02 TE96L  LT/LT/ZT S$IFJ INNOD DNVA 0D ATVOLS
YHANSYEUL NOSHYD 40 ALID 10088

09°S0T 09°S0T LZLEL LT/LT/T SHTANYH WOOoud
XAL-WHVHD 00088

00°08T 00°08T y0L6L  LT/LT/Z TIVL JOd SOVE HOVEEVD
ATddNS ANVIINYS TVALNID 666L8

00202 00 zoz 9£96L LT/Lt/2 L30ddNS HOUVW
DONI ZTIISWD 866L8

91" 8SE 80 6LT 9EL6L  LT/LT/Z ASV THEHM SLSB90S

80°6LT [AYA-YA LI/LT/T dTOIHIA S.01d ¥0d WIN
ONI Q¥0d TVIIEYD LEELB

80°LBY'Z 592 S€96L  LT/LT/Z NITYIS YEILS ¥WMd -»HOTSAL

60721 SE96L  LT/LT/T ¥IALTIL -£12290S

66"V SE96L  LI/LL/C NId HOLIH-¥EAYOT MOWIL

2978 SE96L LI/LT/T LHWWOYD -SEZYSLII

66° V€ SE96L  LT/LT/Z INNOW SNWML -SE€ZPSLI

- MAZ4 SE96L  LI/LT/T S9NTd ‘SMIOHS SEZ¥S II

¥S°L SE96L  LT/LT/Z ¥HALTIIL -8L 00E FWIJ

95°9S¢T SE96L Lr/Lt/z TI0 AVED-JdOHS

66" €2 S€96L  LTI/LT/T ENODITIS -dOHS

9€° 391 S€96L  LT/LT/T SYILTIA-ND0LS

82 16 SE96L  LI/LT/Z SARY'T -9$Z9-Md

96°8S SE96L Li/Lt/z LI¥ JELTIA #8699Md

L6°19L SE96L  LI/LT/Z SI00L ¥IV-dOHS

IYLOL INNOWY #SNVEL JLva # 0/d NOILAI¥DSEA HOIOANI FOANIA TTENON
MOFHD NOFHD
LT/LT/2 HALSIOAN MOIHD LT/9T/20 : @3eQ uny

4 abeg ALNNOD AJIOLS STETHd :ON 3x0day




ONI IJdHD¥HLINI vecosge

0s°z8 0S°CE SEL6L  LT/LT/Z LANYALNI ZLLS
ONI AONYEAYOdd€ 10dS LOH £zose

zZ2 18T zz'tst oEL6L  LTI/L1/Z DITSES -YIAVED
OLZ SONILLIZ ¥ HSOH zZz088

L6°8T L6°81 vvoeL Lt/Li/e S100g dNW
FOIA¥ES 1IAE¥D 104IA FWOH 12088

00°ST 00°ST BELG6L  LT/LT/Z SHOYYHD dIHS NHENOL
SSANISNE WH¥AIS HOIH 0z088

S6°580°T S6°SBO‘T €v96L  LI/LT/Z SAavod
ar1 ‘IvH 61088

LO"L96 00" 0% €696L  LI/LT/Z SAILITIIN

¥T°CTHE €696L Li/er/e LNI¥ %V¥dad aNOd

£€6° 78S LELBL  LT/LT/T AINNOD Q¥ND Xvdd aNOd
077 SINIWLSEANI 41D 81088

00°0LT'T 0S"LEE TLLEL  LT/LT/Z S¥X S°L

00's22 TLL6L  LTI/Lt/E S¥X S

00°STE TLL6L  LT/LT/e SVX L

05'262 TLL6L  LT/LT/T SYX S°9
WOL ‘ZNIESNVED LTO88

00°95S 00° 9SS ovseL  L1/LT/Z AEVDAW ¥ DIYLOATE-XIW LOH
02 NOLLDNELSNOD FLINVED 91088

€0°2LT ZT 1Y ZP96L LI/L1/ LEOYL ALZIVS

T6°0€T Z¥96L LI/LT/Z STYINALYW 93d
WADNIVED ST088

89°098°¢ 9E° 507 T¥9eL  LT/LT/C 6% 15 / EST DF¥ -M1

LY TLT 96L  LT/LT/Z Z8 TINOQ -INL

96°960°T iv96L LTI/LT/Z SLZ TTSA /987 INN-MT

68°98T'T I¥96L  LI/LT/T 082 1ISA / SZE "IN -I¥L
WNETO¥LEd LdS/4I¥D NAAT0D ¥1088

0S°B6E 0L BSE ETL6L  LT/LT/Z SIT0d/9V1d AdddS

08" 6€ €TL6L  LTI/LT/Z HAJA0L E10d
FHL-DNI AEN JO FFOLS OV'Id €T088

L2 68S’L 6L CET TIL6L  LTI/LT/Z GNYd0¥d TLT/TL IS

0Z'T0T ovLeL  LI/LT/Z aav INZD 0T ENV40odd NIWML

LT SLY v696L LTI/LT/Z INVd0dd OSDS

ST S2L v696L LT/LT/T aNVdodd TIve

85°06¢ STL6L  LT/LT/Z TIId ¥NVL ENVI0¥d

TT 199’1 6E96L LT/Lt/z INVTd ¥ILYM

66 E€TO0‘T 6£96L  LTI/LT/T HD

LZ'0¥%S TTL6L  LI/LT/T ENYdO¥d TLI/TL IS

B89 ¥S¥ TTL6L LT/LT/T ANVd0dd 2ZL IS

02°9ST TTL6L LT/LT/Z ANVAONd HONAAISIH 2ZL IS

LZ LSL ¥696L LT/LT/Z ANY4O¥d TIVL

9T"LIE TTIL6L  LT/LT/Z ENVAO¥d ZLT IS

6 €89 6£96L  LT/LT/Z HD

90°L6E TIL6L  LT/LT/Z ANVE0dd ¥L IS

-0E"LET v696L LT/LT/Z TIIPIEI ¥AE LIAIAD
a7 SYDTIINIEI zto8e

00°S¥L'Y ST 9E0°T 6896L  LTI/LT/T HIFTANOD S MOOE JOSSIASSY

00°0LS’E ZL96L  LT/LT/T ONTYTANIONT ONIONYYL

SLTBET 8e96L  LI/LT/Z OTHMEVL 616-260%
ONINIANIONE LSEM ¥AVd 11088

0S°LSS‘C 05°LSS‘T €LL6L  LT/LT/T SENSSI TANNOSYEd
LSNIVYMS % FJ¥OHL NOSMOINT 0T088

ET°9S2'T €8°LYT LE9EL  LT/LT/Z WA SS HSYIdS-dOHS

TYLOL INNOWY H#SNWIL qLYd # 0/d NOILAI¥DSAA FDIOANT FOANIA YIEWNON
NOEHD XDIHD
LT/LT/2 ¥ILSIDIA NIFHD LT/9T/20 ¢ @23eQ uny

€ ebeq ALNNOD ATAOLS STETEd :ON 1zcdey




9L 9€ T0L6L LI/LT/T SHLYWNI ¥O0d ATIW

9L 9E T0L6L  LT/LT/Z SALYWNI ¥O0d NTIW
D717 X¥IVA TAAOW Zv088
00°92 00°92 9GL6L  L1/LT/Z sysg
VEVWVL ‘NVOIN Y088
S0°6ST s0°62 E¥L6L  LT/LT/Z IN¥LS ETZZI0S
00°0€T EvL6L  LT/LT/Z AYOIYLOITA -ET12290S
02 YOLOW THOH TEVHOIW ovo8e
SLU6LT S8°081 8696L  LI/LT/ZT LNOZLIHM ‘' ¥EJVd ‘SIJOTANT
06°86 8696L  LT/LT/Z dOTIANT ‘ SAITO ‘ SILON ‘WOO¥E
NI SNOIILNTOS AIIJI0 OFLIW 6€088
00" SE 00°S€ o9LeL  LT/LT/Z
INVLLI¥E ‘LIIONDW 8E0BE
00°0S0°T 00°0S0'T SSL6L  LT/LT/Z
HAZSOr ‘NIAALSITTIOW LEOBS
05 PEE‘T 0S"PEE’T T¥L6L Li/Lr/e YIEII 00TX00T
¥SIT % LIODS ‘NOSIAYW 9E08E
00°'SS 00°SS pL96L  LT/LT/Z LT0Z ‘8 €34-92 NV
WNISOW NOTISNYW AWIDYW SE088
19°0%1'C T9°0%T‘2 ZEL6L  LT/LT/Z MDOLS ALNVIEYM II
ONI SIT¥OLVHOEY'T WW YE08E
00°00L‘0€E 00°00Z2'62 €L96L  LTI/LT/Z
00°00S‘T €L96L  LT/LT/Z
011 SINZAT ZNTE QINdIT €€088
8V SBL'T 8V SBL'T vIL6L  LT/LT/Z SH17ddNS SWA
ONI LSISSV-HJdIT ZE088
T€° TE® 6VL6L Lt/Lt/z
NI SEDIA¥ES ENIT IOVNONVT T€088
L6 BET L6 BET LY96L LI/LT/T FAGMAIVH DSIN
LSAMAIW TIVEWIN 0€088
96" BET 96" 8ET 6€L6L  LT/LT/Z dYEE TIvE TYIAVE -£2ZZ8¥Md
TYIVLSNANT NYWYH 620886
L9"0BE'T 65991 9v96L  LI/LT/T HOLYNYELTY -£228¥Md
-65°86€E 9v96L  LI/LT/Z TO0L NIVHD
S6°TOV 9%96L  LI/LYI/Z NIVHD Z/T
-95° 1€ 9%96L LT/Lt/2 SL-3 ¥
95 1€ 9v96L  LT/LTI/T TS9VH ‘9S9PH SL-d
95 1€ 9¥96L  LI/LT/Z TS9YHED ‘9G9PHED SL-F ¥d
05° 62T 9v96L  LI/LT/Z Z900L2T 1T/d4
99°6%0°T 9¥96L  LI/LT/Z YALSALAY ‘TO0L ‘NIWHD
D11 dEl 82088
26'SLL'EE 9L €2 ZvL6L  LT/LT/Z 0d D0ITENd JF¥ FZAIYIJIEA
ZL" 859 ZvLeL  LT/LT/Z ZII¥3 NI ¥ILLOTA
8Z°LE ZvLeL  LI/LT/Z MVEIS NOOWMA ¥Od DIW NVad
S5°0L0'8Z ZyvL6L  LI/LT/T FLO0¥ HAOD XISPPASI ODSID
9% 9LT ZyLeL  LTI/LT/Z Z X SHATHHS MOVd
ST°608'Y ZyvLeL  LY/Ltjz LANLYYWS ¥ILNON ODSID
0717 FD¥NOS TIT L2088
YL 9L PL 9L Sv96L  LI/LT/Z SEI7ddAS FDIJd0
FYOLS ALINANKOD AW SII 92088
TR €67 89°SLT 1996L LTI/LT/Z Z/T ZTIOSNOD NIE JE¥HS
¥8° L8 T996L LTI/LT/T 2/1 EI0SNOD NI JF¥HS
6T 0€T ISsLeL  LT/LT/2 LTEEd ALSWId AFEOLS/LYTIN
NI LOW OJNI NIVINNOW NO¥I szoee
00°TOE 00° %8 €SL6L  LT/LT/Z
00°LTZ €SL6L  LT/LT/T
TYIOL INNOWY #SNWEL aLva # 0/d NOTIATEDSAA FOTOANI FOaANIA AIHWON
MDEHD ¥DHHD
LT/LT/T QEALSIDAE NDEHD LT/9T/20 ¢ ®3eQ uny

v abed AINNOD AFHVOLS STETEd *ON jxoday



S

007071

9v 611’2

0S°Z¥%E
00°sgZ’e
98BV
007 0S¢
00°S52ZT
00°0¢S
00°0T

£ES°sov’Le

96°¢¢
SZ1SL

117912

00°Z0S°¢€

¥1°S569
[4: 28 4 2

YT 18T

vSTvL

9L 212
Zs el
TYLOL
MOFEHD

abed

00°0T

8€°99
80°€50°¢C
05" Z%E
00°SEZ’E
98" 8%
00°0S2
00°52T
00° 0§
00°0T
0o°uLLz'e
8L°696°¢€
00°000°S
00" 6€L"'Z
00°000°¢S
00°558°¢
SL %98
00°000°S
96° 22
SZ2°19L
SS°LT
99°6¢
vs° 2L
9£°98
00" o0zZL'z
00" 2EY
00° 0S¢
00°00T
¥T° 569
ZB ¥YL’S

86798
91" v6
8Z°0T
Ly ce
6L 1V

9L'2T2

LINONOWY

S9L6L

oLLEL
oLLEL

6%96L
LLI6L
ZEg6L
LYLEL
BZLEL
ozLeL
SvL6L
6S96L
6596L
6S96L
6S96L
6S96L
6596L
6596L
€596L
SLI6L
TZLeL
9L96L
9L96L
9L96L
gL96L
9vLEL
avLEL
9vLEL
ovLeL
€€96L
€9396L

0S36L
0s96L

sZLeL
C696L
2696L

8%96L

#SNAL

LI/L1/Z

LI/Lt/e
[AYIA YA

[AVIAYAA
L1/L1/T
Li/L1/e
LT/LT/
LI/LT/2
Lt/Lt/e
LT/LT/2
LI/LT/2
LI/Lt/e
L1/Lt/e
LT/LT/Z
LT/Lt/T
LI/Lt/e
LT/LT/2Z
Lr/et/e
LT/Lt/e
L1/Lt/e
LT/LT/2
LT/Lt/2
LI/LT/2
LTI/Lt/T
LT/LT/2
LT/Lt/e
LT/Lt/e
LT/LT/Z
LI/Lt/2
LT/Lt/2

L1/Lt/2
LT/L1/2

Lt/Lt/e
LI/Lt/T
LT/L1/2

LI/L1/2

dLYa

SHXVI LNIWAVIYINO

SYIM0LG-IATUIHS
NOISSIWWOD ONINNVIA

0033Eds -€228yMd
OVJNNYW XOE€ ¥IIOOW ACO0TE

AaLOETIOD SIFI

ALndaa/va

Sd34 TYLI0d A¥VONYL

INIVIIWOD

JIITEY ONI/DIT AOd
704 WIMO SA
INIVIIWOD

INIVIWOD

INAWSSYEVH TYNXIS
FOYWYA ONISNVD TAIL
NOILVWYSEA

WSIANOL ALID YINDIVIA

ANNOYDNOVE » SLNIVdEIDNIAL

LLE98B0 YOI MHD LNWIIIE

jaicd

S33J IDYWOAIA
ISYHD¥Nd YILYM NYC

SYAITd ONIY dVNS-dOHS
LTY SLIZE-V0LMX

SYVD TO¥L¥E ¥O03 SAEN
VZOESBTITTIOOMOTA I¥UL
JOOH MOL‘SYINILSYA-HTIN 9

< SH¥IL -0009908

NOILAI¥DSEA HDIOANT

LT/LT/Z ¥ALSIDIY ADFHO

AILNNOD XFYOLS

ONI LOd3d HOIZJ0

FATVTD ‘WFLSHEO

ONI VIN¥OJITVO 30 TILXAN
OIA¥ES ¥ILIWOAIHAS VAVAEN
ONI ONIDWADYd VAVAIN

ONI ZFDIA¥ES TVOdT VAVAIN
QELIWIT 40 SEOANL VAVAEIN
SAGINUOLLV LOIYLSIA VAVAAN
(on) aLT 3NT1g YavAEN

YTANSYIAL AEN

1d SNI ADNEDVY DJITENG AEN
NOILYXYL Ld3d AEN

ALZAVS OITENd Id3A AEN

NOILVA¥ESNOD J0 1430 ASN

YIATTOULANWCD AEN
HITTIOYLAWOD AEN

SANNOY¥S »® 9dT€ NIWAY AIN

SLAYd MONAL ¥ OLOVY YEWN

dNTYA ENAL FSNOH ANNOW
OINIAWVEDYS d0 FAIL NVOAOW
AOUNFEA

LL/9t/eo

[4:10):1-]

19088

03088

65088

8S088

LS0BE

95088

55088

vs08e

€s508e

¢soss

15088

0so88

6v088

ev0es

Lv0B8

9%088

Sv088

vv088
€voes
YIEWON

ADIHD
@3eQg uny

STETEd ‘ON 3x0day



20'860°7

18°0LS

99°1SE

00°0ST

00°SLB8‘¥

25'9%1'2

868852

SL°1S8'%2T

00°0ST

TE"LSE'T

00°se
¥8° 18T

BT S8E’T

0o-egs
00°899°T

81" 6798

08791

TYLOL
ADFHD

sbeg

067 61S
-00°0V
=00° 02T

€v°S9
9T €56 °¢€
Ev 6L

T8°0LS

9S° 81T
0T EEZ

00°0ST
00°000°2
00°000°2
00°SLE
00°00S

2T ¥SE
ov-zeL’'t
Sv°8SS
€5°0€0’2
SLT1S8°%CT

00" SL
0s°29
0s°2T
-20'€E¥9
st oe
81" 99
20" £¥9
S9° 08
88" BEB'T
67298
9688
00°s¢
¥8° 18T

8 19T
vE“€22'T

00°2s
00°899°T

8T 129
00-"82Z2Z

08°9T

LNNOWY

8896L
8896L
8896L

T9L6L
T9L6L
T9L6L

9S96L

TELBL
LILEL

0896L

S996L
S996L
S996L
S996L

»S96L
vSse6L

v996L
¥996L

ZLLEL
E0L6L
€ZL6L
TS96L
Z596L
ZsseL
ZS96L
ZS96L
Z596L
ZS96L
ZSs96L
Z596L
LSL6L
ooLeL

9TLEL
9TLEL

6L96L
60L6L

8L96L
8LI6L

0636L

#SNYUL

Lt/Lt/z
LT/LT/e
LI/LT/

AYIAVEA
L1/Li/e
LI/Lt/e

LT/LT/2

LT/Lt/e
L1/Lt/2

LT/LT/T

L1/et/e
LT/Lt/e
L1/Lt/e
LT/LT/

LT/LT/Z
LT/LT/Z

L1/Lt/z
Lt/Lt/z

LT/LT/2Z
L1/L1/2
L1/L1/T
LI/L1/2
L1/Lt/z
LT/LT/2
L1/L1/2
L1/L1/2
LT/L1/2
LT/L1/e
L1/L1/e
LT/Lt/z
L1/L1/2
LT/L1/e

LT/L1/e
L1/L1/z

Lr/Lt/e
LT/L1/e

LT/Lt/e
Lr/et/e

LT/LT/Z

aiva

# 0/4

1TZW adI
ANNJE3d dEd T
aNNdEy 420 €

dor Z960-Lv8
SNOTILYDINNWWOD-ZTV9-2SZ
OIOA 00SL-L?8

S1¥V¥d ¥EMINIH

SHITEdNS ONIATIM-dOHS
SHITddNS SWXE

WSI¥NOL ALID WINIDIIA

NOTIVLITNSNOD
ONILINAYN/SNOILVTZN

ESYEYIVA
SNOILYTIHEY JITd0d/NID

¢ SH¥IL -Id MEN-0S
SEUIL -TLXEL

a ‘FT00

L 'VOI¥davY

0dd-100

ONIYOLINOW WIVTIV
SNOLLNE ONIYOLINOW ATALD
EJV-NYL ONIJOLINOW
YIMOTE -€ZL9Ar

MIIDS UTHSYM-JAQVED
dNNd TENS -JAATAD
YAMOTE -JHAWED

LIg ONZ -¥3qVED

908 ONILLOD -vZedr
SE0dd JYAAVED
SSTOPELY -EOHMOVH

(o]

ONIATAHS TIED TIWL

SAITddNS SWE
SEITddNS SWE

LTOZ ‘8 EF3-9T NVC
SLINSdWNC AFTHIVAM dTI0D 9

LT/S0/€0-L1/90/20
NOTIJXIONGO¥d JAVOH S6E

LYW J00Td ¥IVHO

NOILAT¥OSEA FADIOANI

LT/LT/2 ¥ILSIDIY ADAHO

AINNOD AZAOLS

ANYAWOD TVYOINIHD W¥YEIS

ONI SEDIANES IVHOTID DES

F1I3N00HD FAILS

ONI ODddn¥

AdOLINYEL HOHVL ONIY

ONI SHEIDALVILS aWd

00 ¥IEENE ¥ FIIL TTIDUNE

INFWENTILEY ATIWE DITHNd

OILVYSNI4dWOD ADNEOV DITdNd

ONI SEDIAEAd NOILDALO¥d

NVIdHEMOd
AVIONT ¥ dWVYLS ¥YSO¥YAANOd

IONAT ‘ANVNIE-ILLEISEId

ONI TOJLNOD OISAHA
d OTIONY ‘“INIXLEG

0D W3OJINN LSIJD DIIIDWd

OTT VIAQEW INOJIINO

YOANEA

LI/9T/20

6L08BE

8L08B8

LLoge

9L08B8

SLOS8

¥L088

€L0B8

cLoss

TL088

oLoss

69088

89088

L9088

99088
S9088

¥9088

€9088

VIEWON
MDEHD
23eq uny

STETed :ON 3x0day



L

08°0S9°T

00°€ES

00°0S€

00°S6L’ET

06 6SE
TYLOL
ADFHD

a2beg

0% PET
087059°T

00" 8€E
00°sc

00°0S
00°0ST
00°0ST

gz o9z
LZ 691’1
997681
657202
SS°BE
65°2¢€
oL 2se
06" Y1V
2189
€9°L29°1
9T 62T
TE EET
98°9TT
vo-zs
01" S0L
8T°2v6°1
9L TL
89°2Zvy
8T SOE
8%°S9
80982
S6°8¢E
TE" 88
[4 24
I1'0€
[4 04
0S° LY
CE'T1C
ZYTLLS
LS 8T
9¢° 669
6L°88
L0 26
LT 9L
9% £1t
987 €T
S8 TL
0T 962
SL°Ls
65788
LL"SSZ
LL" 96
¥8°01C
8L 069'T

INNOWY

Z0L6L
1836L

9996L
8TIL6L

SoLéL
SoL6EL
S0L6L

SS96L
S596L
S596L
SS96L
SS96L
SS596L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
5596L
SS96L
SS96L
SG96L
S596L
SS96L
SS96L
SS9%6L
S596L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SG696L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SG96L
SS96L
SS96L
GS96L
SS96L
SS96L
SSg6L
SS96L

#SNWAL

LT/Le/2
Lt/Lt/T

LT/Lt/z
LT/Lt/T

LT/L1/2
LI/Lt/e
Lr/et/e

Lr/Lt/e
LT/LT/2
LT/LT/2
LTI/LT/T
L1/Lt/e
LT/Lt/2
LT/LT/
LT/LT/Z
L1/Lt/2
L1/L1/2
LT/Lt/e
LI/L1/2
LT/L1/2
Lt/Lt/e
L1/L1/2
L1/L1/2
L1/Lt/e
Lt/et/e
LI/L1/e
Lt/Lt/e
L1/L1/z
L1/L1/2
ELILTLE
LT/L1/2
L1/L1/z
LT/L1/2
L1/L1/2C
L1/L1/e
L1/Lt/e
L1/Lt/e
LT/LTIfE
LI/L1/e
Lt/Lt/e
LI/Li/e
LT/L1/e
LI/Lt/e
LT/L1/2
LT/Li/e
LT/Lt/e
LT/L1/2
LT/L1/2
LT/Lt/e
Lr/e/e
LT/L1/T

3Lvd

# o/a

¥OOTd ¥OJ FIDIANDS
dOHS LJID ¥04 NID WIED

S@AVYO
SOIVD SNE ¥IAANS

QOOMXD0T TOALNOD LSad
FD0I330 NIVW TO¥INOD LSad
d0I440 NIVW TO¥LNOD Lsdd

ASHA¥YII IHOTAMINVYD 0192
(NIVINNOZ) dZd Q¥ T7T0L 00T
SIHOIT ¥IS HOD 30 NMOL

¥ J0 € /IS NOINN 09T
NY¥d (¥ HONWY T¥dd 000T
MUVd HOA Q¥ S¥IAWH T¥IZ
¥ LINN AM NOANWD 0Z¥%

g LINO AYM NOANYD 0Z¥%

1§ O N S8T

¥a NEEd S0LT

¥ HONYY I¥3d 008

SIHDIT 1S D S 1€S
SIHOIT IS D S 2Z¥eE
SLHDIT 1S D N 94T
HSNOHLINOD IS € S 9¢
NOANYD FTIW XIS 0222
LO4E0 HO LINN IS NIVW
(ONINIWYL) IS D N T¥T
SHE¥IA IS D N

MUVATIVE LS NOSYWD

DA LINQ IS D S

IHOIT T¥d/J00aIN0 IS J S
LS D TLE/OA LINQ IS D S
FOWIYO IS € § ¥0T

IS NOLLOS

N¥VE DA IS ¥ N S02

vAw Q¥ ENIAYE TYINYAS 00S
OWISYD IS 2 § 1¢

INTd ¥IM IS HINOS MOOT
NEVd  SNEWITO WVS 06¥%
TIVNL  TYE AMH S 116

0S IS O S SO0z

0S 1S D S €02

¥a IS D S 102

Z2/T dOHS ¥ TI0L 00T
2a7€ ¥ TIOL 01T

9a1€ Q¥ TT0L O€T
JOLSLSE@Y LS O N T8E
LINQ IS D N S¥T

SE¥ Q¥ LHDIYMINVD 2192
¥ IS AYM NOANWD TE€¥
HSHAWNG LHOIYMIFVD 0152
LHDIT LS S¥ENOISSIWWOD OS
SLEDIT LS ALID YINIDNIA

NOILAI¥DSEU FDIOANI

LT/LT/2 ¥ILSIOFNE MDIHD

AINNOD AS¥OLS

III £ JDINIWOd ‘INOTIVES

S ¥ INIM SYIZVIO NATHLOOS

WHA OTT SATALSANANI ADITS

ONI TO¥LNOD LSFd WRMAIIS

0D ¥IMOE DIJIDVd WIHEIS
JOANIA

LT/91/20

veoss

£8088

28088

18088

ogoee

YFENNN
pekciite]
33ea uny

STETEd ‘ON 3z0day



8

00°0ve

00°S6T
ST TILL 0T

00°9%L°T

00°%0¢€

SYT0PT

00" 0L
L0 BCY
0S €T
60°06T

S0°S0€

00°6S

ST LL8 L

00703
go0-oz

007 08L

€Z°88L'VLE
€87 0€EL
0% " VET
TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

00°0s
007 06T

00°'S6T
ST TILL'OT

co" 08
00°999°1

00" 89T
00" 9€T

SY ET
00°¢L

00°0€
g0 ov
00°0s

007 0L
L0827
0S €T
60°06T

0T 06
S6°"vie

00°6S

9L* 0T8T
-TE'6¥8'T
ST"¥2z
-0€E*6T2
ZE"T6T
6S°SLL'Z
02* ¥6S
€T'082'2
TE'6V8'T
0E*6TZ

00709

00" 0z

00" ¥ES
oo"ove
00°9
€2°88L'VLE

£8°0¢€L

INNOWY

L996L
L996L

0g96L
6SL6L

€69%6L
6996L

LBYEL
LB96L

9896L
9896L
98396L
9896L
9896L

0SL6L
9696L
gzZLeL
69L6L

0996L
09396L

voLeL

BS96L
8S96L
BG96L
BS96L
BS96L
BS96L
8S596L
BS96L
BS96L
B8S96L

7896L
pSLEL
E896L
EBI96L
€896L
6Z96L

LS96L

#SNYAL

L1/L1/2
LT/L1/z

L1/Lt/e
LI/L1/2

L1/L1/2
Li/Lt/e

LI/L1/2
LI/L1/z

LI/Ly/e
LT/Lt/e
LT/Lt/e
LT/LT/T
LT/L1/2

LI/Lt/2
LI/LT/2
LT/Lt/z
Lr/et/e

L1/Lt/e
L1/Lt/e

LT/Lt/z

LI/Lt/e
LT/Lt/e
LT/L1/2Z
LT/L1/2
LT/Lt/e
LT/L1/e
LT/Lt/2
LT/LT/2
LT/Lt/e
LT/L1/2

LT/L1/2
LT/L1/2
LT/L1/2
LT/LT/T
LT/L1/e
LT/L1/2

LT/L1/e

HLYa

NIWQY ‘WEO0JITOD TLL
INAY ‘g¥Y0 O¥0’T0D TIL'XIV

ST60°9LT S¥UN ONILSHL VNG
9 X XOL ® X5d4010¥%

ISNIIXE HONNT NOILITVOD
SHOIANIS LSIAHEOT

LTOZ ‘8 €33-92 NUL

L¥IHS NID WHD AITIVH
FONVHOXE LJ4ID 1IId
HINW3Ia "3 ¥ NOSICa “a
HINWEd "X ¥ NOSICA "d
JEMTION 1

AESUNESIA LNIWHSTINAYD
SNOWIS ZIVId FWUYN
008 ¥Fd SIXYL LNIAWAVdEEAO

WEI- NEaEd SoLT
S/M- N¥Fd SOLT

SIXVLI AVdYEIAC XO0HF AM

002 TS /S9L 93§ Md
NOILOENEOD ONITTIIE
08 1sSd / T¥ SF¥ HOA
NOILOEYE0D ONITIIE
00T 1Sd -HOA

€64 1S / 665 DIU-MA
05Z 1S / €9 93T¥ HOA
T09 "INOQ / SLS DIY-Md
QITIIESIN

IATIIESIN

NOILIVOVA ONZM

LT0Z “8 €34-9Z NYL

JIATEOEYE X¥I AL¥Id0dd

130ddNS Nvl

NOTLLdI¥OS3A EDOIOANI

LT/LT/Z ¥IISIDIY MDIHD

ALNNQOD AJ¥EOLS

0D ATddNS VYAVAEN N¥FLSIM

€Y7 TYLNIWNOIIANT NATLSIM
YAVAEN ‘ALNNOD HOHSYM

AUINOAOD C2 HOHSWM

SEIVIDOSSY ¥ JYIATYM

ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDYIA

OLDA

(OA)  EDIAJ0LS0d sn
TYIYISNANI FONVYNIZ QELINN
OT7T ¥YAVAEN 20 ALIMNOJINN

4TYa ‘' AINENL

LNZWEAQIAWI TVEANID I¥L

ATYIEWIN ‘NOSAWOHL

01T WAITOALId SYWOHL
ADNEOV SOINV HHL

OTT EDILON 1S3IL

SISTUJVALNT AVEd NOS
IDI¥LSIA TOOHDS 0D LS
ONI SHOIA¥ES ALITILO €4S
JOANTA

LT/91/20
STETEd

£0188

20188
TOTRBS

0o0T88

66088

86088

L6088
96088
$6088
V6088

£6088

76088

16088

06088
68088

88088

L8088
98088
s8oes

YIHWON
ADFHD

23eq uny
ON 21xo0day



3

ST LO0’QEL
LZ 06

Y101
MOFHD

sbedq

IYLIOL SMOEHD

LZ 06 16964 LT/et/e dAq¥Id NY¥d -d1LH dOHS

INOOWY #SNWHL alva # 0/d NOILdT¥DSHEd FDIOANI

LT/LT/T ¥IALSIDIE MOEHD
ALNNOD AH¥OLS

VOANIA

L1/91/20
STETEd

UTENWNN
ADEHD

a3eq uny

ON 3Jx0day
L ]



JINOISSINWOD

YINOISS INWOD

NYWETYHO

e msremee SereeesesesAssssesssseae—-

YIENSYIEL

HITTOYLIWCD

LT/LT/T 3ELNQ HOIHD ?S°L00’DEL TYLOL SXUJHHO

NOILVZIYOHLAY OGNV MIIAFE 40 INEWEZOJITMONADV




T

IYLOL
auvo

abeg

06766
86°6T
869352
397 t¥
¥8°80T
SLTLYOT
S6°686°1
Ve St

SV VEY
00°6TT
16°2ST
00°00S
Lt
SO0"€0T'T
0S°LST
TL*0S
00°S€E
00°00€
6%'SE
00° 16
68°2T
2S'2T¢E
9z'se
L6"¥E

BB LL
00" €Y
0z L

€T BT
00°ssZ
08°6

8% 0ES
£6°8Z

Zv 802
»0°28

V6 8CE
L6 91T
0zZ'6

68 '€V
T6'ET
€E°LY
00°0SE'T
£0°9¢€

v s9t
00°661
S9°969
00°TBZ T
[4- R A
00" v
Z9°68
18°69T°T
00°6%
00°08

ST €V
T0°22
00" 98

LNNOWY

T00T
1001
00T
L66
966
666
LE6
LE6
LB6
LE6
LE6
L66
L66
L66
L66
6%1
266
266
266
16%1
1671
2001
L66
L66
L66
L66
Z66
L66
T00T
S66
€66
€66
€66
€66
€66
€66
€66
€66
£66
E6E
€66
000CT
LEE
L66
L66
B66
I6vT
S66
SE6
LEE
Tevt
T6vT
T6%T
L66
L66

#SNVAL

LT/Lt/e
LT/Lt/2
Lt/Li/e
LT/Lt/e
Lt/Lr/e
LT/LT/2
Lt/Lt/e
LT/Ltr/e
Lr/et/z
LT/Lt/z
LT/Lt/e
[AYIAYAA
LT/Lr/z
LI/Lt/e
LY/en/e
LY/Lr/e
Lr/Lr/e
Lr/Ltr/z
LT/Lr/T
LT/LT/2
STl E
LT/Lt/e
Lr/ev/e
LI/LT/T
Lr/et/z
Lr/Lt/ez
Lt/Ltje
LT/Lt/z
LT/Ltjz
[AYIAVEA
L1/Lt/zT
[AVIAVEA
L1/Lt/z
LT/Lt/
LI/LT/
L1/Lt/e
Lr/er/ez
Lr/Ltje
LT/Lt/z
Lr/et/e
LT/Ltjz
Lr/Lt/e
L1/L1/2
LT/Lt/z
LT/Lt/z
LI/Lt/e
LT/L1/T
LT/LT/2
t1/L1/e
LT/Lt/e
LT/Lt/e
LT/LT/T
Lt1/Lt/e
L1I/Lt/e
Lr/Lt/e

giva

Z ¥EA0 YALAYAY ON1d

T ¥IA¥0 WILAVAVY ON1d
AOW AYVW LS ¥Od SANOHA
INIVA 41003

SaVdI ¥OJ LANNFINI

OLA AT 860004091 HOW1IE
LNIVW d1n0d

JovLsod

SHIVARY FAOAT¥Nd vL IS
yL3 SITYFLLVE

SEX0H A001 zL 1d

IVday goo1d NO LISoddda
FOv¥LS0d

ONINIVEL IWOW LOELONd
LNIYW TL LIS

0D A¥IAWOIDIC (€) ¥INNIQ
SW INFWATAQ DIWONODH
NOILWILSIDIN LSIXLEOT
MW - daE XV¥L TISIIQ
FdOTIANE ‘AVET ‘STHEVT
¥NVL HONOT

FONI

INIVW dInda

INIVW 90718

SATITEANS ONIIVHIIO
AYILLVE ¥L LS

NANLEA WAOJINO

FOVLSOd

JIA¥ES ONIddIHS ¥YaX T
M HI¥NOZ W¥VI ¥ M ‘ad
YAHSYMHSIA 1L°LS
SHITddNS TYIFOIJINVL
Y& 1ONAa’'Sd¥d INIA-DSDA
FYYMAIVH 9%d

SAUVYIE MYS GNvH O%E
dOL/M ALINVA-TL LS
HOL¥Yd QTI0D -DIDA

N9 MNINYD - ILNVIVES-DSOA
SE7I0E -HO

SIITAdNS D34

ONINIVIL 0dD

SHOOEELON

TEAVIEL JINIWVXE SNV'Id
LSEL ¥INIWVXE SNV'Id
HONYNILNIVW INIWdINOI
QUIYD Q003 HLVWNI

AVQ TIAVEL HONNT

HSYM ¥VO

SEIT4anNs

FONVYNILNIVIN MVS

SdWY.LS EDVI1S0d
LINYELNI QOOMXD07T
WANNIQ

SdIT4dNS ONILVIIIO
SHINELLVE TTI¥A

NOILAI¥DSAEQ

Z2589%0

L8607%0

8I8YC0

SEMOT AFHOA

I®I¥Y LIOZLTITIOX
ANI/¥ADS SANITEIV MS
NELSNOD IM JELIFALS
d¥0LS SdN Z11ddS
S¥VIS Z113dS

I0dEA IWOH ZLT3dS
L1O0d3d FWOH JYHUANS
LY¥D NWWHSYD AFTANS
LT6020 SdSn TIISSMA
ANOEYOVA YT TIISSNY
OTII¥D TTISSNA
TIIAHSYN HONYSSIVNIH
ONE¥ d4d¥D ISTUNNS Md
¥aund TISNNOD 23T Md
NOS¥VYD ‘HAVD dNTd Md
LOdHd FDIJJ0
TTIVORUVE SATANN
JINOD UHLNIM LT LLIN
SEMOT NIAAN

L0ddd ZWOH NIAZAN
LOdEAd EWOH NIAZEN

+ SEIVNALLYYE NIASN
JO4 FDWLSOd SdsSn MW
F¥OLS §dN HONOTINIOW
86v XOHTIVW

ONILSVYO¥ HHL OS aX
LOJEA IFWOH-HAIEL
LOdHd FWOH-HAJEL
L0d3a FAWOH-HJAIFL
LOddd HWOH-HAJdL
L0ddd FWOH-HA44LD
LOdEd IWOH -HIdED
LOdEA FWOH -HJISED
LOdEA EWOH -HAIEL
LOdEQ EWOH -HaZdr
LOd3d FWOH -HAJZHAL
HdESOL FIT-ANOSYL
6¥B59S59" " "# ANI
LSHMHLNOS SEWVH

Ed00 O0I SEWVH
SANIONE D¥ HOLIZ
OONIM - NESOQ
JLAOGHIV JYIANAQ
DNISSO¥D SYIANNIM da
LYW -TYM MO

SEANIONE D¥ FTAOD
§dSN -NIAEN'D

LI¥ -NIAEN"D

OOVW.L dTAISSyENVE
LOdEa EWOH SNIXav

+ SEI¥ZLLVE SNIXAVY

INEWAVYd J¥EYD TYIDAIWWOD HANO STIEM 00T

# ZDIOANI

YILSIODEY Q¥WD FSVHOANA

ALNNOD AHUOLS

JLd3d-aNNg

YOANAA AIEWON
od
LT/91/20 : 23eq@ uny
LS08%5dd :ON jzodey

-



ZT vZ9'vl

ZZ ¥Z9'vI

aQ¥vo

z abeg

¥PI 10T
007091
00-21
86°6TT

LNOOWY

aIva NOILVZI¥OHINY ANV MITATY 40 INTWIDAZTTMONIDOY

T00T
T00T
T00T
00T

#SNTAL

YINOISSINWOD

LI/LT/2 NIT ¥OVE SAWYL
LT/L1/2T IOVIAEd QTIITHSANIM OWO
Lr/Ltjz OWO LI HSWM

LT/LT/Z dIOA LI T X MOVLDIOVW
JLva NOILJIYDSHA

YILSIOEE @YYD HSVHOUNG
ALNNOD AE¥OLS

*T®30L PIeds

T660LVBSLL
zeLe
698L80
61v090

# EDIOANI 1d420-aNNA

HCANIA VITEWNN

od
LT/9T/20 : 33eq uny
hmomvmmm :ON 3x0day

-



S33d ¥ALS0S
AQ/XMIIATO TW
Q/Ad00 I¥3D ¥IQYODTN TW

NOIIAI¥DSAA

T abeq

aLva

WANOISSIWWOD

NOILVZIYOHLOV ONV MIIATY JO LNIWIOATTMONIDY

LT0T dE33
LT0Z gd4
LT0Z €34

#IDIOANT

00°s¥%2 TYLOL SMDOFHD

LT/0T/E 00°S¥%2Z
00°set
00°0S
00°0L

JLVa TYLOL LNNOWY
MDIEHD  MDAHD
YALSIDIN SHOFHD QHEIAL
AINNQOD AFYOLS

AiIdAL

YITTIOULIWOD AEN otZee
6¥%ZL LT0Z
6%ZL LTOZ
6¥%2ZL LT02

EWUN JOANIA #QWOOI¥ WVAX JYHAWON
TYOSIA NOIHD

LT/OT/€0 : @3 uny

06€TEd :ON 1xoday



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: \5 2] - \ 7 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ | Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
[ move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4, Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:  None

District Attorney
8. Reviewed
x__ Depa t Head Department Name: Community Development
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [1] Continued

Agenda Item No. 4"/



To:

Fr:

Storey County Community Debelopment

VAR S
s 1,
o %

PBusginess § Licensging

P O Box 526 ¢ Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 13,2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Stacey Bucchianert

Please add the following item(s) to the March 21, 2017, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

QY RONOZErASNEQAABRYOR P

=c

€cC:

R. F. MACDONALD COMPANY - Contractor / 25920 Eden Landing Rd ~ Hayward, CA (boilers)
DURR ECOCLEAN, INC. — Contractor / 26801 Northwestern Hwy ~ Southfield, MI (ind. machinery)
EBZ SYSTEC, INC. — General / 22251 Diesel Dr ~ McCalla, AL (supplier)

WAX ON WAX OFF MOBILE DETAIL — General / 2225 Elcrest Dr. ~ Reno (mobile car wash)
W.W. CLYDE & CO. — Contractor / 869 North 1500 West ~ Orem, UT (contractor)

TRADESMEN INTERNATIONAL, LLC - General / 9760 Shepard Rd ~ Macedonia, OH (staffing)
AUTOMATION LOGISTICS CORP - Contractor / 331 Scarlet Blvd ~ Oldsmar, FL (machine install.)
Keith Wallace dba A-SNAP — General / PO Box 3293 ~ Turlock, CA (mobile mechanic)

KING CONSTRUCTION, INC. — Contractor / 2040 Farm District Rd ~ Fernley (construction)

LADA CUBE, LLC - General / 101 Canary Lane ~ Grand Jet, CO (furniture delivery)

TEKNO, INC. — Contractor / One Wall Street ~ Cave City, KY (automation equip.)

BASTIAN AUTOMATION ENG., LLC - General / 10585 N. Meridian ~ Indianapolis, IN (equip sales)

. BANNER INDUSTRIES OF N.E., INC. — General / 1 Industrial Drive ~ Danvers, MA (distribution)

TRUMPF, INC. - Contractor / 111 Hyde Rd ~ Farmington, CT (mfg equip)

NEVADA BARRICADE & SIGN CO., INC. / Contractor — PO Box 20459 ~ Reno (road const.)

CME PROFESSIONAL SVCS., LLC / General -- 7100 Cave Creek Rd ~ Cave Creek, AZ (staffing)
INDUSTRIAL KINETICS, INC. — Professional / 2535 Curtiss St ~ Downers Grove, IL (matl handl equip)
KDDI AMERICA, INC. — General / 21241 S. Western Ave ~ Torrance, CA (translation svcs.)

UL, LLC - General / 333 Pfingsten Road ~ Northbrook, IL (safety training)

BLACK GOLD INDUSTRIES dba BGII - Transportation / 527 North Rice Ave ~ Oxnard, CA (hazardous
waste transportation)

OUT WEST BUILDINGS, LLC — General / 7450 Reno Hwy ~ Fallon (deliver portable sheds)

HIRATA CORPORATION OF AMERICA - Contractor / 5625 Decatur Blvd ~ Indianapolis, IN
(equipment manufacturing)

Inspection Required

Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners’ Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 21, 2017 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Accept bid submitted by Corrie Zam-Northan and
Arika Perry in the amount of $11,000.00 to design and create a wall mural in the
Courthouse Slammer & Museum along the upper west and north walls. Also, authorize the
County Manager and District Attorney to execute a contract to facilitate this.

2. Recommended motion: I, (Commissioner), move to approve the bid in the amount of $11,000
tendered by Corriec Zam-Northan and Arika Perry to create a mural painting in the
Courthouse Slammer & Museum and authorize the County Manager and District Attorney
to execute a contract to facilitate this.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: County Manager Telephone: (775) 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The guidance Committee overseeing the development of the Museum portion
of the Courthouse Slammer & County Museum has determined that a mural placed along
the upper portions of the west and north wall would enhance the overall appeal while also
depicting some of the scenic beauty of our area. Ms. Zam-Northan and Ms. Perry are local
artists that are largely responsible for the amazing mural on the west wall of the Bucket of
Blood parking lot and have offered to complete this project at almost a third of the cost if
we were utilize artists from outside our area. Given their proven talent and deeply
discounted generous quote, staff is very proud to recommend approval.

5. Supporting materials: Proposal dated March 13, 2017; Resume’s for Ms. Zam-Northan and
Ms. Perry; Initial artist rendering.

6. Fiscal impact: $11,000.00

Funds Available: Yes Fund: General Fund Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
epartment Head Department Name:
'_’"\“ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——

Agenda Item No. 8



COUNTY COURTHOUSE MUSEUM MURAL PROPOSAL 3.13.2017

Proposed By:

Nevada Stained Glass: Cottie Zam-Notrthan, Owner
Nevada Business License: NV20151028704
Storey County Business License: 0170990

Pura Vida Sierras Art, LLC.: Arika Perry, Owner
Nevada Business License: NV20141759862
Storey County Business License: 017806

Scope of Work: Research, design and painting of custom mural for Storey County
Courthouse Museum, approximately 850 square feet.

Schedule: Completion within 150 days of contract award, sooner as possible

Pricing:
Materials:

*  $1,000 Paint & Supplies
* Includes:
o Sherwin Williams Acrylic Quality Paint
o DPrimer
o Sealer (non-UV protectant)
o Professional Artist Acrylic Paints
o Artist Brushes, Tape & Other Supplies

Regional Mural Art Design & Labor Pricing:

*  Average Price Per Square Foot: $35/SF
* §35x 850 SF = $29,750

Our Art Design & Labor Pricing for this Storey County & Community Project:

* $11.76/SF
* §11.76 x 850 SF = §10,000
* Savings from Regional Average Mural Pricing: $19,750

TOTAL PROPOSAL INCLUDING MATERIALS & LABOR: $11,000.00

Assumptions: After hours access to museum for work

Planning: Mural design and painting will be planned with care to execute the phases of
work in a thoughtful way to maximize the aesthetic and design of the mural and schedule
while in the various stages of completion.

Inclusions: Materials, Ladders

Exclusions: Scaffolding, Overtime, UV Protective Coatings, Ventilation Equipment,
[nsurance and Bonds



Corrie Zam-Northan

P.0. Box 408, Virginia City NV 89440 775 240 1932
www.nevadastainedglass.com Nevadastainedglass@gmail.com

I am a member of the community here in Virginia City and a member of the art community in Northern
Nevada. Iam a business owner in Virginia City providing custom stained glass and commissioned oil
painting.

Education

- 2008 -Studied traditional stained glass design and construction for three years under Eilieen Cooper
and Frankeye Cartner (combined 30 years of stained glass experience)

- 2009 -Studied fused glass techniques under Joanne Pollack in California.

« 2012 -Studied old world stained glass painting techniques under Peter McGrain in Oregon.

» 2014 -Studied European old world oil painting techniques under Steffan Cellier in Nevada.

Skills & Abilities

STAINED GLASS

- Completed numerous projects in traditional stained glass. These projects are custom designed and built
for various clients in both residential and commercial applications.

- Provided cost estimates for existing stained glass installations for the purpose of insurance
replacement value.

- Completed numerous restorations of antique stained glass panels.

PAINTING

- 1996 to present -I have sold numerous commissioned oil paintings. These are of various subject matter
according to my clients.

- 2014 -1 have been involved in the direction, design, permitting, and execution of a historic mural in
downtown Virginia City, Nevada.



MIXED MEDIA

- I have completed many mixed media art projects for various events. 2015 and 2016 “Doors to
Recovery” which has an annual art door project for the purpose of raising money for the addiction
recovery program that it supports. My art doors have been featured at the Nevada Museum of Art in
Reno, NV.

- 2012 donated artwork to “Sneakers” which is a breast cancer awareness fundraiser.

ACCOLADES

+ Registered with the Sierra Arts Foundation.

+ Recognized by HOUZZ which is a website that specializes in professional custom home builders and
links to craftsmen that provide that level of service.

- Featured in an article in the Nevada Appeal for my work. Nov 1, 2014.

- Featured in an article in the Reynolds School of Journalism for my work. Oct. 29, 2014.

- Featured in Virginia City News article about my work.

- Interviewed about my art by Channel 2 KTVN.

Naca D



Art Business
Experience

Exhibition
Experience

Arika Perry

PO Box 726 Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Phone: 561.339.4554 H:775.847.0109
E-mail: puravidasierasart@yahoo.com
www.puravidasierrasart.squarespace.com

Executive Director, $t. Mary's Art Center January 2016 - Present

Lead non-profit art center with seven galleries, creation spaces and
artist/instructor/guest facilities

Develop new initiatives and programs: Imaginations Children’s Art Programs, Artist in
Residency Programs, Membership Program, Volunteer Program, Grant & Foundation Wrifing,
Building Restoration Projects

Collaboration with other non-profits fo develop joint programs or support art projects (The
Historic Fourth Ward School Museum, Community Chest, Silver Terrace Cemeteries, Senior
Center, Piper's Opera House)

Gallery Director, $t. Mary's Art Center October 2015 - January 2016
Arts Program Curation and Relationship Management

Owner, Pura Vida Sierras A, LLC November 2014 - Present

Online gallery and sale of personal portfolio

St. Mary’s Art Center, Virginia City, NV 2017
Artisan Gallery Exhibition

$t. Mary’'s Art Center, Virginia City, NV 2016
Holiday Faire exhibifion

Doors to Recovery, Reno, NV 2016

Juried Group Show for Stacie Mathewson Foundation, Nevada Museum of Art

The Potentialist Workshop “Hot One Inch Action”, Reno, NV 2016
Juried Group Show

Holland Project Gallery “The Time Project”, Reno, NV 2016
Group Show
Saatchi At Gallery 2015 - Present

Juried Online Gallery
Xanadu Gallery, Scoftsdale, AZ 2015 - Present
Online Gallery

Latimer Art Club “Miniature Show", Reno, NV 2015
27¢ Place, Mixed Media Juried Competition



Experience

Education

Alternative Art &
Museum learning

Doors to Recovery, Reno, NV 2015
Juried Group Show for Stacie Mathewson Foundation, Nevada Museum of Art

Liberty Fine Art Gallery, Reno, Nevada 2014 - 2015
Full time member of LFA Gallery

Indlvidual Commiissions 2006 - Present

Multiple commissioned art pieces for a variety of individual patrons

Bucket of Blood Historical Virginia City Mural, Virginia City, NV 2014 - Present

Mural feam painting massive custom mural for Bucket of Blood Saloon

Art Shows 2011 - Present

Participant in various local art shows

Private Consvitant, Various Clients 2011 -201¢

Design and Project Management Consultation

Vice President, Jones Lang LaSalle 2005 - 2011
Global Project Management Practice Manager, Microsoft Account

Global Project Manager Leader, Program Designer and Trainer, Project Management &
Oversight of Capital Projects with Budget Ranges of $50k - $600MM Each

Design and Project Management, Multiple Clients and Firms 1996-2005

Americas Project Manager, Corporate Real Estate

Bachelor Degree, interior Architecture 1991-1996
College of Architecture and Design

Kansas State University

FIDER S year accredited program

Nevada Museums Association Annual Conference & Seminars 2016
Arts @ The Heart Seminar, Nevada Arts Council 2016
Arts + Business Seminar, Sierra Arts Foundation/Nevada Arts Council 2016

Business As Art Workshop 2015






AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS
This Agreement is entered into between Storey County, a political subdivision of the
State of Nevada (County) and Corrie Zam-Northan doing business as Nevada Stained Glass, a
sole proprietorship, and Pura Vida Sierras Art, LLC. A Nevada Limited Liability Company.
Collectively Corie Zam-Northan and Pura Vida Sierras Art, LLC, will be known in this

Agreement as Artists.

BACKGROUND

County, is developing a museum within its historic courthouse to commemorate the
history of the Comstock Lode. County believes that the creation of a mural within the museum
will enhance the character of the museum and further the story for which the museum is being

developed.

Acrtists are experienced in the creation of murals and are duly qualified, equipped, staffed,

ready, willing and able to perform and render the services described in this agreement.

Accordingly, in consideration of the mutual agreements made in this agreement, the

parties agree as follows:

1. EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONTRACT. This contract will become effective upon its

approval by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners.

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. The parties agree that Artists will have the

status of independent contractors and that Artists are not County employees and that

There will be no:

(1) Withholding of income taxes by the County:

1



(2) Industrial insurance coverage provided by the County;

(3) Participation in group insurance plans which may be available to employees of the

County;

(4) Participation or contributions by either the independent contractor or the County to

the public employees’ retirement system;

(5) Accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave;

(6) Unemployment compensation coverage provided by the County if the requirements of

NRS 612.085 for independent contractors are met.

3. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE. Contractor further agrees, as a precondition to the
performance of any work under this contract and as a precondition to any obligation of the
County to make any payment under this contract, to provide the County with a work certificate
or a certificate issued by a qualified insurer in accordance with NRS 616B.627. Contractor also
agrees, prior to commencing any work under the contract, to complete and to provide the

following written request to a qualified insurer:

(Company Name) has entered into a contract with Storey County to perform work

from _(starting date) to _(ending date) and requests that the insurer provide to Storey

County 1) a certificate of coverage issued pursuant to NRS 616B.627 and 2) notice of any
lapse in coverage or nonpayment of coverage that the contractor is required to maintain.

The certificate and notice should be mailed to:

Storey County Manager



Post Office Box176
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Acrtists agree to maintain required workers compensation coverage throughout the entire
term of the contract. If Artists do not maintain coverage throughout the entire term of the
contract, Artists agree that County may, at any time the coverage is not maintained by Artists,

order Artists to stop work, suspend the contract, or terminate the contract.

Artist(s) may, in lieu of furnishing a certificate of an insurer, provide an affidavit

indicating that she is a sole proprietor and that:

1. In accordance with the provisions of NRS 616B.659, has not elected to be
included within the terms, conditions and provisions of chapters 616A to 616D,

inclusive, of NRS; and

2. Is otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and provisions.

4. SERVICES To BE PERFORMED. The parties agree that the services to be performed are

as follows: (see attached Exhibit A)

5. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. Artists agree to provide the services set forth in paragraph
(4) at a total cost of $11,000.00 which includes materials, supplies, design work and labor.
Acrtists may bill the County monthly as to that percentage of the work completed. County will

make payment within a reasonable time.



6. TIME FOR COMPLETION OF CONTRACT. This contract must be completed within 150
days of its effective date, unless extended by the mutual consent of all parties. Unless extended

by the parties, this contract terminates 150 days from the date of its acceptance by County.

7. County will provide Artists with after-hours access to the Courthouse for design and

creation of mural.

8. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT. This contract will be construed and interpreted

according to the laws of the State of Nevada.

9. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAwsS. Artists must fully and completely comply
with all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations, orders, or requirements of any sort
in carrying out the obligations of this contract, including, but not limited to, all federal, state, and

local accounting procedures and requirements and all immigration and naturalization laws.

10. ASSIGNMENT. Artists may not assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or

duties under this contract without the prior written consent of the County.

11. DisPOSITION OF CONTRACT MATERIALS. Any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives or other documents, data, drawings or other materials prepared by or supplied to
Artists in the performance of their obligations under this contract will be the exclusive property
of the County and all materials must be remitted and delivered, at Artists' expense, by Artists to
the County upon completion, termination or cancellation of this contract. Alternatively, if the
County provides its written approval to Artists, any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives or other documents, data, drawings or other materials prepared by or supplied to
Artists in the performance of their obligations under this contract must be retained by Artists for
a minimum of six years after final payment is made and all other pending matters are closed. If,

4



at any time during the retention period, the County, in writing, requests any or all of the
materials, then Artists must promptly remit and deliver the materials, at Artists' expense, to the
County. Artists will not use, willingly allow or cause to have the materials used for any purpose
other than the performance of Artists' obligations under this contract without the prior written

consent of the County.

12. PuBLIC RECORDS LAW. Atrtists expressly agree that all documents ever submitted,
filed, or deposited with the County by Artists, unless designated as confidential by a specific
statute of the State of Nevada, will be treated as public records pursuant to NRS 239 and must be
available for inspection and copying by any person, as defined in NRS 0.039. Artists expressly
and indefinitely waive all of their rights to bring, including but not limited to, by way of
complaint, interpleader, intervention, or any third party practice, any claims, demands, suits,
actions, judgments, or executions, for damages or any other relief, in any administrative or
judicial forum, against the County or any of its officers or employees, in either their official or
individual capacity, for violations of or infringement of the copyright laws of the United States

or of any other nation.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Artists agrees to indemnify and save and hold the County, its
agents and employees harmless from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from
the performance of services under this contract by Artists or Artists' agents or employees.
County agrees to indemnify and save and hold harmless from any and all causes of action or
liability to the extent caused by the negligent act or acts in connection with this contract of the

County or anyone for whom the County is legally liable.

14. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT. This contract constitutes the entire contract between



the parties and may only be modified by a written amendment signed by the parties and approved

by the Board of County Commissioners.

The Parties have executed this agreement as of the date written above and intend

to be legally bound by it.

STOREY COUNTY CORRIE ZAM-NORTHAN

PURA VIDA SIERRAS ART, LLC

By:
ARIKA PERRY, MANAGER

(Date)

(Date)

Approved as to form by:

Deputy District Attorney



ATTACHMENT A

. Artists will research, design and paint a custom mural for the Storey County
Courthouse Museum of approximately 850 square feet.

. Artists will supply their own painting supplies including ladders, but are not required
to provide scaffolding or ventilation equipment.

. The mural will not have UV protective coatings.

Mural shall be substantially in conformance with the design concept approved by the

Museum Board.



Storey County, Ney&d[a

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Iteny Requast,: 39

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a pohcy &I‘Biﬁ At lof iebM on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in vg\l(tm include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted. JEPUTY

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Items received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

(Ve

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, March 21, 2017 Date Request Submitted: 03-08-17

Agenda Item Requested: Application for Refund of Property Taxes
in the amount of $19,189.58 [see attachment] —*

This item is intended for: [ | Discussion Only Discussion and Action (at the Board’s discretion)

¥X] Supporting documentation is attached ] No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: _Stormo Investments LLC Ed Stormo and Georgette Stormo, Managers
(please print name clearly)

Address:

PO Box 18539, Reno, NV 89511
Phone:

775-384-6907 home Email (optional): georgettestormo@charter.net

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

St C lerk’
T Storey County Clerk’s Office

Virginia City NV 89440 (773 B4Rl

----- Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope e . .

For Office Use Only

Date Request Received: /A [|F | Received: R InPerson [ ViaFAX By: @

w Supporting documentation attached - # of pages Meeting date of this item:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office 4 C\
(775) 847-0969 or email vdixon@storeycounty.org



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 21%, 2017 Estimate of time required: 0-5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with the Nevada Division of
Forestry for participation in the Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP).

2. Recommended motion: / move to approve the renewal of the Interlocal Contract between the
Storey County Fire Protection District and the State of Nevada, Department of
Conservation and Natural Resources, Nevada Division of Forestry for the Wildland Fire
Protection Program and authorize the Chairman to sign.

3. Prepared by: Jeff Nevin
Department: Fire District Telephone: (775) 847-0954

4, Staff summary: The existing WFPP is due to expire on June 30, 2017. This is required to
renew the WFPP agreement for the next biennium. This contract will be in effect from July
1, 2017 through June 30, 2019. There are no cost increases with this contract and the first
four years have proved to be beneficial to both parties. This contract is for $150,000 per
year for a total of $300,000 over the biennium.

5. Supporting materials: Interlocal Contract Between Public Agencies, State of Nevada
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (NDF) and the Storey County Fire Protection
District.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Yes Fund: 250 ~_ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
____District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
__JN__ Department Head Department Name: Fire District
__ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ —

Agenda Item No.

|



INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through Its

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
Nevada Division of Forestry
2478 Fairview Drive, Carson City, Nevada 89701
Phone (775) 684-2500 — Fax (775) 684-2570

And

Storey County Fire Protection District
145 N “C” Street, Po Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone 775-847-0968

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with any one or more
other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the public
agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services of Nevada Division of Forestry hereinafter set forth are both
necessary to Storey County Fire Protection District and in the best interests of the State of Nevada;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party.

2. DEFINITIONS. *“State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein, its officers,
employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2019, unless sooner
terminated by either party as set forth in this Contract.

4. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by either party prior to the date set forth in paragraph
(3), provided that a termination shall not be effective until 60 days after a party has served written notice
upon the other party. This Contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally by
either party without cause. The parties expressly agree that this Contract shall be terminated immediately if
for any reason federal and/or State Legislature funding ability to satisfy this Contract is withdrawn, limited,
or impaired.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this Contract shall
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in hand, by telephonic
facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid
on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the address set forth above.

6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the services to be performed shall be
specifically described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of
constructive precedence:

ATTACHMENT A: WILDLAND FIRE PROTECTION PROGRAM (WFPP) SCOPE OF WORK

Interlocal Contract Between Public Agencies, Wildland Fire Protection Program  Page lof 4



7. CONSIDERATION, Nevada Division of Forestry agrees to provide the services set forth in paragraph
(6) at a cost of $150,000 for State Fiscal Year 2018 and $150,000 for State Fiscal Year 2019, not to exceed
$300,000 with quarterly instaliments payable in advance on the first of each quarter, starting July 1 of each
fiscal year. Any intervening end to a biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic renewal
(not changing the overall Contract term) or a termination as the results of legislative appropriation may
require.

8. ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of this
Contract are also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective order of
precedence and any limitations expressly provided.

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.

a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under generally accepted accounting
principles full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents as are necessary to fully
disclose to the State or United States Government, or their authorized representatives, upon audits or
reviews, sufficient information to determine compliance with all state and federal regulations and statutes.
b. [nspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic, computer
related or otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and practices of the
party, financial statements and supporting documentation, and documentation related to the work product
shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any
office or location where such records may be found, with or without notice by the State Auditor,
Employment Security, the Department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada State Attorney
General's Office or its Fraud Control Units, the State Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any federal
funding, the relevant federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office
of the Inspector General, or any of their authorized representatives.

c. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract must be
retained a minimum of three years and for five years if any federal funds are used in this Contract. The
retention period runs from the date of termination of this Contract. Retention time shall be extended when
an audit is scheduled or in progress for a period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to
complete any administrative and judicial litigation which may ensue.

10. BREACH; REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall be
deemed a breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of the
parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity,
including but not limited to actual damages and to a prevailing party reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. It
is specifically agreed that reasonable attorneys' fees shall include without limitation $125 per hour for State
employed attorneys and County employed attorneys.

11. LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS Chapter 41
liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages.
Actual damages for any breach shall never exceed the amount of funds which have been appropriated for
payment under this Contract, but not yet paid, for the fiscal year budget in existence at the time of the
breach.

12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented
from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or
military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be
through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly
perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after the intervening cause ceases.

Interiocal Contract Between Public Agencies, Wildland Fire Protection Program  Page 20f 4



13. INDEMNIFICATION.

a. To the fullest extent of limited liability as set forth in paragraph (11) of this Contract, each party shall
indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding the other's right to participate, the other from and
against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to reasonable
attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the party, its
officers, employees and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise
reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person
described in this paragraph.

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon receipt of written notice by the
indemnifying party within 30 days of the indemnified party’s actual notice of any actual or pending claim
or cause of action. The indemnifying party shall not be liable to hold harmless any attorneys' fees and
costs for the indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel.

14. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for the
purposes and to the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of services pursuant to
this Contract, each party is and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from the other party and,
subject only to the terms of this Contract, shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control,
and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Contract. Nothing contained in this
Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an
employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with
respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any other party.

15. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of the
Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver by such party of
any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of
law or equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-enforceability of
such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract unenforceable.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties under
this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION, Unless otherwise provided by law any reports,
histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system
designs, computer code (which is intended to be consideration under this Contract), or any other documents
or drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by either party in performance of its obligations under
this Contract shall be the joint property of both parties.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public
inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is made
confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced,
prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential by law or
otherwise required by this Contract.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this
Contract on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties
are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in paragraph (6).

Interlocal Contract Between Public Agencies, Wildland Fire Protection Program  Page 3ol 4



22. GOVERNING LAW: JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties
hereto shall be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties
consent to the jurisdiction of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of this Contract.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s)
constitute the entire agreement of the parties and as such are intended as a complete and exclusive statement
of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made
in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically
displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in language between
any such attachment and this Contract shall be construed consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless
otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no modification or amendment to this Contract
shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective parties hereto
and approved by the Office of the Attorney General.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be legally bound
thereby.

FOR STOREY DISTRICT FIRE FOR DCNR and DIVISION (STATE)
PROTECTION DISTRICT
Marshall McBride, Chair, Board of Fire Dute Joe Freeland, State Forester/Firewarden Date

Commissioners

Bradley Crowell, Director, DCNR Datc
Attest:
Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk Date
Approved as to form by: Approved as (o form by:
Anne Langer, District Attomey Date Bryan Stockton, Deputy Attomey General for Date

Alttorney General, State of Nevada

APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS:

Signature — Nevada State Board of Examiners Date

Interlocal Contract Between Public Agencies, Wildland Fire Protection Program  Page 4of 4



Attachment A
WILDLAND FIRE PROTECTION PROGRAM
SCOPE of WORK

I. IDENTIFICATION OF ENTITIES

A. The State of Nevada Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (hereinafter
“DCNR”) which exists pursuant to NRS 232.010(1), and the Nevada Division of
Forestry (hereinafter “DIVISION™) which exists pursuant to NRS 232.090(c), are
both agencies of the State of Nevada (and are from time to time collectively referred
to as “STATE"” in this Agreement);

B. Storey County Fire Protection District, is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada
(hereinafter “DISTRICT”);

II. RECITALS

WHEREAS, all signatories to this Agreement are public agencies authorized by Chapter
277 of the Nevada Revised Statutes to enter into interlocal and cooperative agreements with each
other for the performance of governmental functions; and;

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT is authorized to serve its community in many different ways,
including emergency situation management such as fire and emergency medical service,
hazardous materials, confined space rescue, fire prevention, aircraft fire rescue, and others.

WHEREAS, the DIVISION has responsibility to supervise or coordinate all forestry and
watershed work on state-owned and privately owned lands, including fire control, in Nevada,
working with federal agencies, private associations, counties, towns, cities or private persons
and;

WHEREAS, the DIVISION may maintain or have access to additional specialized
wildfire expertise and suppression resources and;

WHEREAS, wildland fires are defined as unplanned, unwanted wildland fire including
unauthorized human-caused fires, escaped wildland fire use events, escaped prescribed fire
projects, and all other wildland fires where the objective is to put the fire out;

WHEREAS, it is to the mutual advantage of the DIVISION and the DISTRICT to work
closely together to maintain effective wildfire management without duplication, and to
coordinate efforts with federal cooperators and,;

WHEREAS, the DIVISION and the DISTRICT desire to define their roles,

responsibilities and relationships to achieve the most effective protection of forest, range, and
watershed lands and;

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 1 of 7



WHEREAS, the DIVISION and the DISTRICT recognize that safe, aggressive initial
attack is often the best suppression strategy to keep wildland fires small and costs down and;

WHEREAS, the DIVISION recognizes the DISTRICT as the Agency having primary
jurisdiction, the DIVISION will participate at an Incident Command Post (ICP) in a primary
Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP) fiscal role, yet remain available to assist in other
Incident Command System (ICS) roles upon request and;

WHEREAS, it is understood that the mission and intent of all parties is to quickly
suppress wildland fires regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. It is considered mutually
beneficial to all parties to jointly take action as necessary to safely and effectively contain all
wildland fires and;

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has requested to participate in the DIVISION Wildland Fire
Protection Program (hereinafter WFPP), and the DIVISION is authorized to render wildland fire
protection services, including cost reimbursement, to the DISTRICT;

WHEREAS, all terminology herein shall be defined by the National Wildfire
Coordinating Group (NWCG) Glossary of Wildland Fire Terminology (hereinafter “NWCG
Glossary™);

WHEREAS, all incident business shall be conducted in accordance with the NWCG
Interagency Incident Business Management Handbook (hereinafter “IIBMH”);

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, it is agreed between the
parties as follows:

III. TERMS
A. Location

The DISTRICT will provide the DIVISION an accurate map of the current jurisdictional
boundaries the DISTRICT enrolled in the WFPP.

B. Payment

The DIVISION will assume incident costs consistent with the terms of the Master
Cooperative Wildland Fire Management and Stafford Act Response Agreement, or as authorized
by the DIVISION Regional Duty Officer due to the accelerated complexity of the incident. The
DIVISION will pay qualifying wildland fire suppression expenses to (or for) the participating
DISTRICT jurisdiction in the WFPP.

1. Qualifying Expenses

Reasonable and prudent expenses (actual costs, based on established rates on file with the
DIVISION by December 31 each year, of the jurisdiction) commensurate with values at risk,

Wildland Firc Protection Program Scope of Work Puge 2 of 7



for wildland fire suppression and support resources engaged in wildland fire suppression within
the DISTRICT jurisdiction, or through a cost-share agreement with Federal Agencies on adjacent
or comingled jurisdiction and billed in accordance with the IIBMH.

Assistance By Hire (ABH) resources, including aviation and hand crew resources,
when all initial attack suppression forces have been exhausted. All requests shall be
processed and recorded through the dispatching systems of the participating agencies
on Resource Orders. Except for mutual aid, all requests for fire suppression assistance
in an agency’s direct protection area shall be Assistance By Hire.

Extended Attack resources (Assistance by Hire), services and supplies with a
Resource Order number.

Vehicles, equipment and apparatus utilizing established Rates based on actual
operating costs.

Fire Base Camp - Incident Command Post set-up and operational costs.

Food services for Incident personnel.

Transportation to/from Incident.

Repair/replacement of uninsured items and small equipment damaged or destroyed
during fire suppression (with IC approval and completed OF-289, Property Loss or
Damage Report).

Use of Aircraft services.

Personnel costs utilizing established Rates based on actual operating costs.

Incident Management Team, mobilization and support.

Cost Share Agreements.

Dispatch personnel and services

Fire suppression damage repair.

2. Excluded Expenses

Costs incurred following the initial dispatch of any ground resources to the fire for the
duration of the initial 24 hour mutual aid period.

DISTRICT equipment and repair/maintenance costs associated with wildland fire
response and normal wear and tear.

Individuals and agencies when in “mutual aid” to DISTRICT.

“Profit” and Administrative fees.

Agency Overhead personnel not specifically assigned to the incident.
Non-expendable (non-consumable) accountable property, i.e. Chainsaws, FAX
Machines, and Mobile Air Conditioners.

Claims and award payments.

Interest and indemnities payments.

DISTRICT Burned Area Emergency Rehabilitation (BAER) beyond suppression
damage repair.

Resources demobilized before the end of the mutual aid period.

Escaped Prescribed Burns that were initiated by the DISTRICT and violated the terms
and conditions of the burn plan, whether intentionally or not.

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 3 of 7



34 Negotiable Expenses

Costs not outlined above may be subject to negotiation between the parties for payment.

The DISTRICT should notify the DIVISION of any questions, issues or situations
regarding qualifying expenses that are not clear or require negotiation, The DIVISION will set a
meeting to discuss and/or resolve. If the parties are unable to reach a mutually agreeable

resolution, either party may refer the matter to the Review Committee (Section K) for further
action.

C. Annual Planning Meeting

Annually, representatives of the DIVISION, the DISTRICT, and others deemed
necessary, shall meet and jointly discuss, review, and update as necessary the WFPP and set rates
for personnel and equipment. The DIVISION will arrange the date and location for the meeting
each year.

D. Delegation of Authority

The DISTRICT extends a “blanket” delegation of authority to the DIVISION as the
DIVISION performs pre-fire activities in the DISTRICT’s jurisdiction. For emergency activities,
a formal delegation of authority by the DISTRICT may be created and administered to the
DIVISION at the discretion of the DISTRICT.

E. Use of Incident Management Teams

The DISTRICT will notify the DIVISION State Duty Officer of any wildland fire in their
jurisdiction that may require mobilization of an Incident Management Team. The DIVISION
will participate in unified command role and actively participate as an Agency Administrator on
any Type III, Type II or Type I wildland incident in a WFPP jurisdiction.

The DISTRICT may request the DIVISION to assist with “all-hazard” incidents as
needed and within the scope and qualifications of DIVISION resources, based upon DIVISION
availability.

F. Organizing, Equipping, and Training

The DISTRICT will cooperate in the training, equipping and maintaining of wildland
fircfighting forces in the DISTRICT.

The DIVISION will assist the DISTRICT in the organizing and training of DISTRICT
and cooperator forces to detect, contain and extinguish wildland fires, at no charge.

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 4 of 7



G. Wildfire Pre-Suppression

The DIVISION will provide, at the DISTRICT’S request, technical assistance with
hazardous fuels reduction and/or modification, including developing projects, prescriptions, and
plans; State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) pre project reviews for potential impacts upon
historic properties; Threatened and Endangered (T&E) species occurrences; and other technical
services as requested and available. The DIVISION will provide, at the DISTRICT’S request,
subject to availability, personnel and apparatus to assist in Public Wildfire Education Programs,
and the DIVISION and the DISTRICT will collaborate on a wildland fire prevention program
that includes a common message.

H. Wildfire Suppression

The DIVISION and the DISTRICT will utilize the “closest forces” concept for all
wildland fire responses. This concept dictates that the closest available, appropriate resources
respond to initial attack fires, regardless of jurisdiction, whenever there is a critical and
immediate need for the protection of life and property. Beyond initial attack, the "closest forces"
concept is modified and the respective agencies will request the most appropriate resource to aid
in the suppression of a wildfire. The DIVISION will pay DISTRICT volunteer fire departments
$20 per hour (with a two hour minimum) per fire engine/tender for wildland fire suppression
responses in the DISTRICT.

1. Reporting/Notification

The DISTRICT will notify the DIVISION Regional Duty Officer of any wildland fire in
their jurisdiction that may require DIVISION assistance at time of size up or as soon as
reasonably possible.

J. Prescribed Burning

The DIVISION and the DISTRICT will coordinate technical assistance for prescribed
fires and fuels reduction projects. The DIVISION will provide burn resources at the discretion
and amount requested of the DISTRICT based upon availability. Prescribed burning costs are not
eligible for reimbursement under the WFPP.

K. Review Committee

The STATE will establish a review committee to adjudicate issues or questions between
the DIVISION and the DISTRICT which cannot be resolved informally through the parties. The
Director of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR) will request one
STATE representative and two individuals from jurisdictions other than where the dispute is
occurring to serve on the Committee. The Committee will meet and discuss the issue and make a
non-binding recommendation to the Director of DCNR for a final decision. The use of a Review
Committee, however, is not intended to alter or supplant any other remedy either party may have
at law.,

Wildland Fire Prolection Program Scope of Work Page 5 of 7



L. Reimbursement/Payment

The DIVISION will provide reimbursement to the DISTRICT, or provide for direct
payment of approved costs to Federal Agencies and other vendors.

The DIVISION will provide a template/process for billing eligible DISTRICT costs to
the Wildland Fire Protection Program.

1. Billing invoice requirements:

One incident per invoice;

Incident name;

Incident start date;

Incident number (State and Federal);

Contact point for questions;

Standard billing documentation: Dispatch Resource Orders, Cost
Share Agreements, Transaction Registers and backup documentation
(Resource Order Numbers for all Supplies, Incident Dispatch Log).

Gl RN =8 SR

The DISTRICT will prepare and submit to the DIVISION incident billing packages no
later than six (6) months from the date the incident is declared out, with the exception of certain
FEMA, Civil Cost Recovery and other incidents that warrant specific time tables. The
DIVISION reserves the right to return billing packages not meceting the billing invoice
requirements outlined above, for correction. Failure to meet these timelines shall not be
construed as a release or waiver of claims for reimbursement against the other party. If the six
(6)-month timeframe cannot be met, immediate written notification shall be made to the
DIVISION Deputy Administrator.,

For Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) billings, the DIVISION will be
the lead agency for all bills to be submitted for the Fire Management Assistance Grant Program
(FMAG). The DIVISION requires estimated bills from the DISTRICT within 30 days of the fire
being declared out. The DISTRICT will track resources and costs associated with wildland fires.

M. Non-Wildland Fire Emergency Assistance

The DIVISION will provide to the DISTRICT participating in the WFPP, assistance
without cost (subject to availability) requested by the DISTRICT for emergencies which threaten
human life or property including the use of DIVISION aircraft, Conservation Camp Crews,
apparatus and heavy equipment, when such needs exceed the resource capability of the
DISTRICT as determined by the State Forester Firewarden or designee.

N. Cost Share Agreements
The DISTRICT will notify the DIVISION State Duty Officer of any wildland fire in their

jurisdiction that may require a cost share agreement between agencies/jurisdictions. The
DIVISION will assume an active role in the development of the cost share agreement and must

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 6 of 7



ratify the agreement in order for any expenses incurred through the agreement to qualify under
the WFPP.

O. Fire Investigations

PARTIES shall render mutual assistance in investigation and law enforcement activities,
and in court prosecutions, to the fullest extent possible. The DISTRICT shall be responsible for
fire-related law enforcement activities on wildfires that originate on their respective lands. The
DIVISION has the ability to seek cost recovery actions on known human caused fires. To the
extent permitted by State law, the DISTRICT will provide investigation files relative to the fire
to the DIVISION.

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 7 of 7



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meceting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Possible action to approve or disapprove consent agreement and mutual release between
Storey County Fire Protection District and James Hardie Building Products settling disputed
fire code violations.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the Consent Agreement and Mutual Release
between the Storey County Fire Protection District and James Hardie Building Products
and authorize the Fire Chief to sign

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: See Attachment A

5. Supporting materials: Consent Agreement and Mutual Release

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X _ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved

|
[] Denied Continued

Lo L |

] Approved with Modifications
]

L



Agenda Item No.



Attachment A

On or about July 11, 2016, the James Hardie Building Products Company
(Hardie) facility located at 3000 Waltham Way in McCarran Nevada discovered a
leaking flange from its dilute sulfuric acid storage tank. The flange eventually
failed and caused fluids to accumulate and eventually overflow the secondary
containment facility at the plant. Approximately 68 gallons of the fluid overflowed
the containment facility and reached the plant’s storm water system where it was
contained. On that same date, .Hardie called in Clean Harbors, a corporation
which provides hazardous materials handling and clean up services, to clean up the
spill. The spill was not reported to relevant authorities until August 4, 2016.
Largely because of the failure to immediately report the spill, the Storey County
Fire District (District) issued a Notice of Violation and imposed fines in an amount
of $63,900.00 dollars. The bulk of the fines accumulated from assessing $500.00
per day for each day which passed without notification to the District. Hardie
contested the alleged violations and appealed the Notice of Violations to the State
Fire Marshal’s Office pursuant to SCC §15.05.080(C). Following the appeal,
Hardie and the District met to discuss a resolution of the appeal and violations.
That meeting resulted in the attached Consent Agreement and Mutual Release.



NSENT AGREEMENT
AND MUTUAL RELEASE

This Consent Agreement and Mutual Release (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and
between JAMES HARDIE BUILDING PRODUCTS INC. (“Hardie”) and STOREY COUNTY
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (“the District™), jointly referred to as “the Parties.”

WHEREAS, Hardie owns and operates a facility in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center in
Storey County, Nevada that produces fiber cement products (“the Facility™);

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2016, the Fire District issued a letter through Fire Marshal
Fritz Klinger that alleged violations at the Facility of the 2012 International Fire Code and
assessed fines in the total amount of $63,900 (the “NOAV™). A copy of the NOAYV is attached
hereto as Exhibit 1.

WHEREAS, Hardie disputes the NOAV, and on September 2, 2016, Hardie filed an
appeal of the NOAV with the Storey County Fire Chief.

WHEREAS, at the direction of the Storey County Deputy District Attorney, Hardie filed
the appeal of the NOAV with the Nevada State Fire Marshal (“the Appeal”), which Appeal is
currently pending. A copy of the Appeal is attached hereto as Exhibit 2,

WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to resolve this matter without further expense,
administrative proceedings or litigation;
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, terms, and conditions herein

contained, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Dismissal of NOAV. Within three court days from the date upon which this
Agreement is fully executed, the District shall issue in writing and serve on Hardie and the State

Fire Marshal a retraction and dismissal with prejudice of the NOAV.

2. Dismissal of Appeal. Within three court days from the date upon which the
District issues the retraction and dismissal of the NOAV, Hardie shall dismiss the Appeal.

3. Commitments of Hardie. Hardie shall implement the following changes at the

Facility on or before the dates stated hercin.

Page 1 of 5



Commitment Date
Labeling of hazardous materials using the Globally Harmonized System 03/15/2017
Standard
Installation of an external notification (anticipated to be a sign with 07/01/2017
flashing strobe light) when secondary containment reaches maximum
capacity
Improvements to sprinkler system
a. Numbering of external risers to identify system number 03/15/2017
b. Additional training of supervisors regarding sprinkler system 02/28/2017
¢. Evaluation (anticipated to be observation and pressure testing) by 02/28/2017
third-party fire system vendor of autoclave and shipping areas to
ensure protection from steam and corrosion
Man door improvements
a. Reinstall exterior door handles with lock and provide key to the 03/31/2017
District
04/31/2017
b. Repair pump house door
¢. Facility’s management team to communicate to employees that 01/31/2017
exterior doors should not be propped open
Provide the District with updated Emergency Action Plan 02/15/2017
Repair exterior holes to building 06/01/2017
Bay door improvements
a. Facility’s management team to communicate to employees that 01/31/2017
bay doors should not be left open
b. Install up to four self-closing bay doors in high-use shipping and 10/01/2017

receiving areas

Page 2 of 5§




4, Mutual Releases.

a. Release by the District. The District and its board, officers, agents,
representatives and attorneys completely and forever release and discharge Hardie and
each of its members, affiliates, control persons, employees, agents, attorneys, managers,
shareholders, officers, directors, parents, successors, and assigns of and from all
violations or claims, administrative or otherwise, whether known or unknown, asserted or
unasserted, in law or at equity, that were or could be brought before an administrative
agency or a court, that the District ever had or now has in any way connected with,

arising out of, concerning, or related to the facts asserted in the NOAV and/or the Appeal.

b. Release by Hardie. Hardie and each of its members, affiliates, control persons,
employees, agents, attorneys, managers, shareholders, officers, directors, parents,
successors, and assigns completely and forever release and discharge the District and
each of its members, board, officers, agents, representatives and attorneys of and from all
violations or claims, administrative or otherwise, whether known or unknown, asserted or
unasserted, in law or at equity, that were or could be brought before an administrative
agency or a court, that Hardic ever had or now has in any way connected with, arising out

of, concerning, or related to the facts asserted in the NOAV and/or the Appeal.

5. No Admission. This Agreement is intended to be a compromise of all matters
arising out of or related to the NOAV and the Appeal and shall not (a) constitute evidence or (b)
be construed as (i) an admission of a violation of any regulatory requirement, rule or law or of
any fact or (ii) a waiver of any rights under the law. Hardie denies that it has any obligation
other than as set forth in this Agreement to perform the commitments identified in Paragraph 3 of

this Agreement but does so in furtherance of settling the Parties’ dispute.

6. No Precedent. This Agreement shall not set a precedent with respect to any other
dispute unrelated to the specific facts giving rise to the NOAV and the Appeal. Except for the
purpose of enforcing this Agreement, neither this Agreement nor the fact of the settlement shall

be admissible in any other administrative or legal proceeding.

] Construction. This Agreement is a product of negotiation and preparation by and
among the Parties and their attorneys, who each played a role in its drafting. Therefore, the

Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with its

Page 3 of 5



plain meaning, and any ambiguity shall not be construed against any one party merely because
that party was allegedly the drafter thereof. The headings in this Agreement are intended solely

for reference and shall be given no effect in the construction or interpretation of this Agreement

8. Integration Clause. This is an integrated agreement. This Agreement is intended
to be a full and complete statement of the terms of the agreement between the Parties and
expressly supersedes any and all prior oral or written agreements covenants, representations and

warranties (express or implied) concerning the subject matter of this Agreement.

9. Impossibility of Performance. Where implementation of the actions set forth in
this Agreement within the deadlines set forth in those paragraphs becomes impossible, despite
the timely good faith efforts of the Parties, the party who is unable to comply shall notify the
other in writing within fifteen (15) days of the date that the failure becomes apparent, and shall
describe the reason for the non-performance. The Parties agree to meet and confer in good faith
concerning the non-performance and, where the Parties concur that performance was or is
impossible, despite timely good faith efforts, new performance deadlines shall be established. In
the event that the Parties cannot timely agree upon a new performance deadline, either of the

Parties shall have the right to enforce this Agreement as described in Paragraph 12 herein.

10. Modification. No supplement, modification, waiver, or amendment of this

Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by the Parties.

11.  Authority. Each of the Parties represents and warrants that the person executing
this Agreement on its behalf has full and complete legal authority to execute this Agreement on
its behalf.

12, Enforcement. The exclusive venue for any action to enforce this Agreement shall
be the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada situated in Washoe County, Nevada.
This Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Nevada. In any
action to enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to all fees and costs.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank

Page 4 of 5



13.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and each
counterpart, when executed, shall have the efficacy of a second original. Electronic copies of
any such signed counterparts may be used in lieu of the original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has executed this Agreement on the date

and year written below.

puren: Mavda 10,901,  aneETA ING PRODUCTS, INC.

By: Joe Blasko

Its: Company Secretary

DATED: 52017, STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT

Its:

Page 5 of 5



EXHIBIT 1

EXHIBIT 1



STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Post Office Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0954 Phone « (775) 847-0987 Fax
www.storeycounty.org

August 22, 2016

Mr. Ed Harris

Environmental Specialist
James Hardie Building Products
3000 Waltham Way

Mec Carran, NV.

89434

RE: Hazardous Materials Spill 07-11-2016
Dear James Hardie Building Products & Mr. Harris,

On Wednesday 08/03/2016 you (Ed Harris) notified (SCFPD) Storey County Fire Protection District
of a Hazardous Materials Spill that occutred on Monday 07/11/2016; 24 days after the discovery of the
leak / spill. Due to the interlocal agreement that SCFPD has with the Nevada State Fire Marshal’s
Office, and your failure to make notification, Storey County Fire Protection District is required to
notify the following governing bodies: Nevada Department of Environmental Protection, Storey
County Emergency Management, Nevada State Fire Marshal’s Office, and Tahoe Reno Industrial
Complex General Improvement District.

At the time you made the report, it was requested by SCFPD that you provide a written statement
describing the event from the time the leak / spill was detected to the time SCFPD was notified. On
08/04/2016 you provided an email describing the event. Upon receipt of the email dated 08/04/2016
14:00, SCFPD requested a meeting to be held at 1705 Peru Drive with all of the Authorities Having
Jurisdiction, (Joe Curtis — Director of Storey County Emergency Management, Fritz Klingler — Fire
Marshal Storey County Fire Protection District, Dean Haymore — Director / Building Code Official
Storey County Building Department and Community Development). At the meeting on August 11™™
2016 in which representatives of James Hardic Building Products JHBP you Ed Harris —
Environmental Specialist, Sasha Meyers — Environmental Health & Safety Manager, Shawn Williams -
Engineer and Storey County representatives were present, it came to light that upon discovering the
leak / spill of Hazardous Materials that your team evacuated all employees from the structure into the
break out / training area located on the other wall adjacent from where the Hazardous Materials leak /
spill was located without notifying 9-1-1. This is a violation of International Fire Code IFC as well as
your own company safety policy for evacuation assembly and rally points.

It was also discovered at the meeting that you accessed the Environmental Protection Agency EPA
federal website (hups://www.epa.gov/emergency-response/when-are-you-required-repori-oil-spill-
and-hazardous-substance-release) to obtain information on reportable spill requirements. You went on
to explain that you determined the reportable quantities RQ or amounts for the particular Hazardous




Material — Sulfuric Acid and Sodium Hydroxide leak / spill that occurred in your facility was 1,000
pounds or approximately 64 gallons. After disclosing this information you went on to state that the
secondary containment area has a holding capacity of approximately 3,750 gallons and that the leak /
spill overwhelmed the required secondary containment and reached the exterior of the structure, into
the breathable air, outside soil / ground and storm drain in the amount of around “68 gallons.”

State, local and federal requirements require that the responsible party shall immediately notify
“Authorities Having Jurisdiction upon discovering a leak or spill in any quantity that is released into a
sewer, storm drain, ditch, drainage canal, creek, stream, river, lake or tidal waterway or on the
ground, sidewalk, street, highway or into the atmosphere.” There was a period of 24 calendar days
that went by prior to notification of Storey County Fire Protection District and to our knowledge there
were no other agencies notified other than Clean Harbors which was notified by you or your company.

After discovering that the RQ was 64 gallons and that you had over 3,750 gallons released you failed
to comply with State and federal requirements as mentioned in the very website you referenced.

Hazardous Substances

For releases of hazardous substances, the federal government has established Superfund Reportable Quantities
(RQs). If a hazardous substance is released to the environment in an amount that equals or exceeds its RQ, the
release must be reported to federal authorities, unless certain reporting exemptions for hazardous substance
releases also apply.

Under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) of 1986, the federal government has
designated several hundred substances as "extremely hazardous substances" based on their acute lethal loxicily.
Under the law, releases of these extremely hazardous substances trigger reporting requirements to state and local
authorities, as well as the federal authorities. The owner or operator of a facility that releases an extremely
hazardous substance in an amount greater than its established RQ must follow requirements on how to report to
the appropriate authorities (in many cases, the State Emergency Response Commission (SERC) and the Local
Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)) for the location where the incident occurs.

Upon completion of the meeting on 08/11/2016 Storey County Fire Protection District Officials
requested permission to perform a site visit of the area where the Hazardous Materials leak / spill
occurred. Permission was so granted by you and your associates at JHBP however; Storey County
Officials were denied access into the chain link fence / gated area where the spill occurred.

Following the meeting, SCFPD requested records from Clean Harbors whom mitigated the Hazardous
Materials Spill and determined that they had mitigated approximately 5,400 gallons of the Sodium
Hydroxide and Sulfuric Acid and removed 20 yards of contaminated dirt / soil over the course of their
4 day clean up.

Upon discovery and inspection, it has been found that James Hardie Building Products Fiber Cement
Company USA (JHBP) located at 3000 Waltham Way within Storey County, NV., Specifically located
within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Complex is in violation of the following:

e Failure / delay to immediately notify and report a Hazardous Materials Spill to the proper
Authorities Having Jurisdiction. IFC 5003.3.1

e Unauthorized discharge and release of Hazardous Materials with failure / delay to notify
Authorities Having Jurisdiction. IFC 5003.3.1



e Release of Hazardous Materials into a sewer, storm drain, ditch, drainage canal, creek, stream,
river, lake or tidal waterway or on the ground, sidewalk, street, highway or into the atmosphere
in any quantity failure / delay in notifying Authorities Having Jurisdiction. IFC 5003.3

e Failure / delay to notify Authorities Having Jurisdiction of an unplanned evacuation, due to an
actual incident. IFC 401.7
Failure / delay to provide (EAP) Emergency Action Plan. IFC 5001.3.3.15; 5001.3.3.13
Failure / delay to providle HMMP - Hazardous Materials Management Plan. IFC 5001.5.1;
407.6
Failure / delay to provide required marking of Hazardous Materials. IFC 5003.2.4.2.1
Failure to properly return tanks to service, IFC 5003.2.6.1.1
Failure to provide / maintain required emergency alarm. IFC 5004.9

All violations of the current adopted International Fire Code Section 50 are subject to a fine of $500.00
per violation. NEVADA REVISED STATUTES (477.250): Any person who knowingly violates the
provisions of this chapter or any of the regulations adopted by the State Fire Marshal’s office is guilty
of a MISDEMEANOR. Each day that goes by without proper notification occurring is a separate
violation constituting a separate offense.

The Honorable Commissioners of the County of Storey, have adopted the 2012 edition of the
International Fire Code. Within the IFC may be found other potential violations relating to this
hazardous materials spill which may have fines attached of up to $500.00 per violation and possibly
per day.

Attached you will find an invoice for all fines for the above mentioned violations. Additional
violations may be found upon discovery related to this incident. Fines are appealable to Storey County
District Fire Chief Gary Hames.

It is our goal to provide the safest possible environment for your customers, your staff and ours as well.
This will surely lead to less lost time incidents for our valuable customers.

Let me assure you, that we are here to work with you in the best interests of both parties. If you have
any further questions, comments or concerns we are always willing to listen and work together to find
mutually beneficial solutions.

Fire Marshal

Storey County Fire Protection District
Office: (775) 847-0954

Cell: (775) 351-5936



Storey County Fire Protection District
P.O. Box 603

INVOICE

Virginia City, NV
Phone 775-847-0954
Fax 775-847-0987 2016-075
www.stareycounty.org
Bill To: Ed Harrls EHS Manager  CC: Sasha Meyer EHS Manager Date: 08/09/2016
James Hardie Building Products USA
3000 Waltham Way
McCarran, NV. 89434
24 Fallure to provide Emergency Action Plan IFC-5001.3.3.15; 5001.3.3.13 $500.00
24 Failure to provide HMMP IFC-5001.5.1; 407.6 $500.00
24 Release of Hazardous Materlals IFC-5003.3 $500.00
24 Unauthorlzed discharge of Hazardous Materlals IFC-5003.3.1 $500.00
24 Fallure to notify and report AHis of release of Hazardous Materials IFC-5003.3.1 $500.00
1 Fallure to provide marking IFC-5003.2.4.2.1 00.00
1 Fallure to properly return tanks to service IFC-5003.2.6.1.1 $500.00
1 Fallure to provide emergency alarm IFC -5004.9 500.00
24 Failure to notify AMJ of an unplanned evacuation IFC-401.7 $100.00
Due Upon Recelpt $63,900.00

REMITTANCE: Please include a copy of this Invoice with your payment.

Please make payments to: Storey County Fire Protection District
Attn: Accounts Receivable
P.0. Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440

IFC.SECTION 50 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODES Currently Adopted Edition by the Honorable County Commissioners: Any other violation not

specifically mentioned in the above FINE schedule will have a FINE of $100.00.

NEVADA REVISED STATUTES (477.250): Any person who knowingly violates the provisions of this chapter or any of the

regulations adopted by the State Fire Marshal's office Is gullty of a MISDEMEANOR,

Each day on which a violation occurs is a separate offense.

PAYMENT DUE IN 90 DAYS




EXHIBIT 2

EXHIBIT 2



McDONALD-CARANO-WILSON

Ly
-
-

100 WEST LIBLRTY STREFT, 10" FLOOR « RENO, NEVADA HO30

PO BOX 2670 * RENO, NFVADA 89505-2670

PHONE 775-788-2000 = FAX 775-786-2020

o 0 NN N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

DEBBIE LEONARD (#8260)
McDONALD CARANO WILSON LLP
100 West Liberty Street, 10" Floor
P.0O. Box 2670

Reno, NV 89505-2670

(775) 788-2000

Attorney for Appellant
James Hardie Building Products

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY,
STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION

* ok ¥k

IN RE NOTICE OF ALLEGED VIOLATIONS
OF 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE,
JAMES HARDIE BUILDING PRODUCTS

APPEAL OF JAMES HARDIE BUILDING PRODUCTS
AND REQUEST FOR HEARING

Pursuant to Storey County Code §15.04.080(C)(1), JAMES HARDIE BUILDING
PRODUCTS (“JHBP”), through its counsel Debbie Leonard of McDonald Carano Wilson LLP,
appeals from the August 22, 2016 letter issued by the Storey County Fire Protection District
(“the District”), through Fire Marshal Fritz Klinger, finding alleged violations of the 2012
International Fire Code and assessing fines in the total amount of $63,900 (“NOAV™). A true
and correct copy of the NOAYV is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

The NOAV contains errors of fact and law, is arbitrary and capricious and an abuse of
discretion. JHBP requests an evidentiary hearing on this matter as well as a copy of all evidence
relied upon by the Storey County Fire Protection District in issuing the NOAV, Please provide

the undersigned counsel with all notices and communications regarding this matter.

1"
///

i RECEIVED
" SEp 16 2016

STATE FIRE MARSHAL




~a

MCDONALD-CARANO-WILSON?

100 WEST LIBERTY STREET, 10" FLOOR « RENO, NFVADA #9501

PO BOX 2670 * RENO, NEVADA 89505-2670

PHONE 775-788-2000 « FAX 775-788-2020

O 0 N N U A W N e

N NN NN
® 9 & O RUNRBGESE=s I EOE = B

AFFIRMATION
The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.
DATED: this 16th day of September, 2016,
McDONALD CARANO WILSON LLP

s
"t . /

Vi AN TG a P
S (i

DEBBIE LEONARD (NSBN 8260)

100 West Liberty Street, 10" Floor
Reno, NV 89505-2670

Attorneys for Appellant
James Hardie Building Products




1 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
2 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that [ am an employee of McDONALD
3 || CARANO WILSON LLP and that on this date I caused to be hand delivered, a true copy of the
4 || APPEAL OF JAMES HARDIE BUILDING PRODUCTS to the individual listed below at his
5 || last known business address as follows:
6 Office of the State Fire Marshal Division
107 Jacobsen Way
7 Carson City, Nevada 89701
8 I caused a true and correct copy to be placed into the United States Mail to the
9 || individuals listed below at his last known business address as follows:
- 10 Storey County Fire Protection District
Gary Hames, Fire Chief
é Z 11 145 N. “C” Street
1z Virginia City, NV 89440
=So. 12
225 Storey County District Attorney’s Office
C') Zg= 13 Keith Loomis, Deputy District Attorney
L 201 S. CSt.
£zz 14 P.O. Box 496
= ;g Virginia City, NV 89440
Q43 15
% Ej : 16 Dated: September 16, 2016
§ ié’:::_ 17 ~ ) /‘/” : "
g 5 18 Pamela Miller
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28



EXHIBIT 1

EXHIBIT 1



STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Post Office Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0954 Phone ¢ (775) 847-0987 Fax
www.storeycounty.org

August 22, 2016

Mr. Ed Harris

Environmental Specialist

James Hardie Building Products
3000 Waltham Way

Mc Carran, NV.

89434

RE: Hazardous Materials Spill 07-11-2016
Dear James Hardie Building Products & Mr. Harmis,

On Wednesday 08/03/2016 you (Ed Harris) notified (SCFPD) Storey County Fire Protection District
of a Hazardous Materials Spill that occurred on Monday 07/11/2016; 24 days after the discovery of the
leak / spill. Due to the interlocal agreement that SCFPD has with the Nevada State Fire Marshal’s
Office, and your failure to make notification, Storey County Fire Protection District is required to
notify the following goveming bodies: Nevada Department of Environmental Protection, Storey
County Emergency Management, Nevada State Fire Marshal’s Office, and Tahoe Reno Industrial

Complex General Improvement District.

At the time you made the report, it was requested by SCFPD that you provide a written statement
describing the event from the time the leak / spill was detected to the time SCFPD was notified. On
08/04/2016 you provided an email describing the event, Upon receipt of the email dated 08/04/2016
14:00, SCFPD requested a meeting to be held at 1705 Peru Drive with all of the Authorities Having
Jurisdiction, (Joe Curtis — Director of Storey County Emergency Management, Fritz Klingler — Fire
Marshal Storey County Fire Protection District, Dean Haymore — Director / Building Code Official
Storey County Building Department and Community Development). At the meeting on August 11™
2016 in which representatives of James Hardie Building Products JHBP you Ed Harris ~
Environmental Specialist, Sasha Meyers — — Environmental Health & Safety Manager, Shawn Williams -
Engineer and Storey County representatives were present, it came to light that upon discovering the
leak / spill of Hazardous Materials that your team evacuated all employees from the structure into the
break out / training area located on the other wall adjacent from where the Hazardous Materials leak /
spill was located without notifying 9-1-1, This is a violation of Intemational Fire Code IFC as well as
your own company safety policy for evacuation assembly and rally points.

It was also discovered at the meeting that you accessed the Environimental Protection Agency EPA
federal website (Qups://wwi.epa.goviemergency-response/when-are-you-required-repori-oil-spill-
and-hazardous-sybstance-release) to obtain information on reportable spill requirements. You went on

to explain that you determined the reportable quantities RQ or amounts for the particular Hazardous




Material — Sulfuric Acid and Sodium Hydroxide leak / spill that occurred in your facility was 1,000
pounds or approximately 64 gallons. After disclosing this information you went on to state that the
secondary containment area has a holding capacity of approximately 3,750 gallons and that the leak /
spill overwhelmed the required secondary containment and reached the exterior of the structure, into
the breathable air, outside soil / ground and storm drain in the amount of around “68 gallons.”

State, local and federal requirements require that the responsible party shall immediately notify
“Authorities Having Jurisdiction upon discovering a leak or spill in any quantity that is released into a
sewer, storm drain, ditch, drainage canal, creek, stream, river, lake or tidal waterway or on the
ground, sidewalk, street, highway or into the atmosphere.” There was a period of 24 calendar days
that went by prior to notification of Storey County Fire Protection District and to our knowledge there
were no other agencies notified other than Clean Harbors which was notified by you or your company,

After discovering that the RQ was 64 gallons and that you had over 3,750 gallons released you failed
to comply with State and federal requirements as mentioned in the very website you referenced.

Hazardous Substances

For releases of hazardous substances, the federal government has esiablished Superfind Reportable Quantities
(RQs). If a hazardous substance is released to the environment in an amount that equals or exceeds its RQ, the
release must be reported to federal authorities, unless certain reporting exemptions for hazardous substance
releases also apply.

Under the Emergency Planning and Communily Right-t0-Know Act (EPCRA) of 1986, the federal government has
designated several hundred substances as "extremely hazardous substances” hased on their acute lethal toxicity.
Under the law, releases of these extremely hazardous substances trigger reporting requirements to state and local
authoritles, as well as the federal authorities. The owner or operator of a facility that releases an extremely
hazardous substance in an amount greater than ils established RQ must follow requirements on how to report 1o
the appropriate authorities (in many cases, the State Emergency Response Commission (SERC) and the Local
Emergency Planning Commiittee (LEFC)) for the location where the incident occurs.

Upon completion of the meeting on 08/11/2016 Storey County Fire Protection District Officials
requested permission to perform a site visit of the area where the Hazardous Materials leak / spill
occurred, Permission was so granted by you and your assaciates at JHRP haowever; Storey County
Officials were denied access into the chain link fence / gated area where the spill occurred.

Following the meeting, SCFPD requested records from Clean Harbors whom mitigated the Hazardous
Materials Spill and determined that they had mitigated approximately 5,400 gallons of the Sodium
Hydroxide and Sulfuric Acid and removed 20 yards of contaminated dirt / soil over the course of their
4 day clean up.

Upon discovery and inspection, it has been found that James Hardie Building Products Fiber Cement
Company USA (JHBP) located at 3000 Waltham Way within Storey County, NV, Specifically located
within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Complex is in violation of the following:

» Failure / delay to immediately notify and report a Hazardous Mateiials Spill to the proper
Authorities Having Jurisdiction. IFC 5003.3.1

® Unauthorized discharge and release of Hazardous Materials with failure / delay to notify
Authorities Having Jurisdiction. IFC 5003.3.1



e Release of Hazardous Materials into a sewer, storm drain, ditch, drainage canal, creek, stream,
river, lake or tidal waterway or on the ground, sidewalk, street, highway or into the atmosphere
in any quantity failure / delay in notifying Authorities Having Jurisdiction. IFC 5003.3

¢ Failure / delay to notify Authorities Having Jurisdiction of an unplanned evacuation, due to an
actual incident, IFC 401.7
Failure / delay to provide (EAP) Emergency Action Plan, IFC 5001.3.3.15; 5001.3.3.13
Failure / delay to providle HMMP - Hazardous Materials Management Plan, [FC 5001.5.1;
407.6
Failure / delay to provide required marking of Hazardous Materials. IFC 5003.2,4.2.1
Failure to properly return tanks to service. IFC 5003.2.6.1.1
Failure to provide / maintain required emergency alarm. IFC 5004.9

All violations of the current adopted International Fire Code Section 50 are subject to a fine of $500.00
per violation. NEVADA REVISED STATUTES (477.250): Any person who knowingly violates the
provisions of this chapter or any of the regulations adopted by the State Fire Marshal’s office is guilty
of a MISDEMEANOR. Each day that goes by without proper notification ocourring is a separate
violation constituting a separate offense.

The Honorable Commissioners of the County of Storey, have adapted the 2012 edition of the
Intemational Fire Code. Within the IFC may be found other potential violations relating to this
hazardous materials spill which may have fines attached of up to $500.00 per violation and possibly
per day.

Attached you will find an invoice for all fines for the above mentioned violations, Additional
violations may be found upon discovery related to this incident, Fincs are appealable to Storey County
District Fire Chief Gary Hames.

It is our goal to provide the safest possible environment for your customers, your staff and ours as well.
This will surely lead to less lost time incidents for our valuable customers.

Let me assure you, that we are here to work with you in the best interests of both parties. If you have
any further questions, comments or concerns we are always willing to listen and work together to find
mutually beneficial solutions,

Fire Marshal
Storey County Fire Protection District
Office: (775) 847-0954

Cell: (775) 351-5936



Storey County Fire Protection District

INVOICE

) Soiese
\ a
§ Phona 7%%’47-0954
Fax 775-847-0987 2016-075
www.storeycounty.org
Bill To: Ed Harrls EHS Menager  CC:Sasha Meyer EHS Manager Date: 08/09/2016
James Hardie Building Products USA
3000 Waltham Way
McCarran, NV, 89434
24 Failure to provide Emergency Action Plan IFC-5001.3.3.15; 5001.3.3.13 $500.00
24 Fallure to provide HMMP {FC-5001.5.1; 407.6 $500.00
24 Release of Hazardous Materials FC-5003.3 $500.00
24 Unauthorized discharge of Hazardous Materlals IFC-5003.3.1 $500.00
24 Failure to notify and report AH!s of release of Hazardous Materlals IFC-5003.3.1 $500.00
1 Fallure to provide marking IFC-5003.2.4.2.1 3500.00
1 Failure to properly retuin tanks to service IFC-5003.2.6.1.1 $500.00
1 Failure to provide emergency alarm IFC —-5004.9 500.00
24 Fallure to notify AHJ of an unplanned evecuation IFC-401.7 $100.00
Due Upon Recelpt $63,900,00

REMITTANCE: Please include a copy of this Invoice with your payment.

Please make psyments to: Starey County Fire Protection District
Attn: Accounts Recelvable
P.Q. Box 603
Virginia Clty, NV 83440

IFC.SECTION 50 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODES Currently Adopted Edition by the Honorable County Commissloners: Any other violation not

specifically mentioned in the above FINE schedule will have a FINE of $100.00.

NEVADA REVISED STATUTES (477.250): Any person who knowingly violates the provisions of this chapter or any of the

regulations adopted by the State Fire Marshal’s office Is gullty of a MISDEMEANOR,

Each day on which a violation occurs is a separate offense.

PAYMENT DUE IN 80 DAYS




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: . 5, 3N} 7 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda (x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3, Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting, A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

istrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
~x Departmen d Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~re
[ S —

Agenda Item No. |4



To:

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 13,2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the March 21, 2017, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storcy County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

TEoaRAgORp

HAREOTO ZECRS

€C:

COBHAM WIRELESS - Professional / 15950 N Dallas Pkwy ~ Dallas, TX (consulting)

VISOTEC AMERICA - Contractor / 1955 Vaughn Road ~ Kennesaw, GA (equipment)

CAPITOL BUILDERS HARDWARE, INC. — Contractor / 4699 24" St ~ Sacramento (contractor)
TEKNO IC-DISC, INC. — Contractor / 2654 W Horizon Ridge ~ Henderson, NV (equipment)
NEDCON USA, INC. — Contractor / 10053 Simonson Rd ~ Harrison, OH (racking)

WEDCO, INC. — General / 450 Toano Street ~ Reno (distributor)

MATSUI MACHINE, LTD - Contractor / 4-10-11 Kawaguchi Osaka-shi JAPAN (machinery)
MITSUBISHI CHEMICAL ENGINEERING CORP. - Professional / 2-2 Nihonbashi Tokyo JAPAN
ROBERT MCKINNEY-LISA MCKINNEY dba The Power Company — Contractor / 25 Brushland Court
~ Reno (electrical contractor)

MAAK CORPORATION - Professional / 401 Ryland ~ Reno (consultant)

TEAMTECHNIK CORPORATION - Contractor / 5155 Sugarloaf Pkwy ~ Lawrenceville, GA (equip)
NORTHERN ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 12789 Emerson St ~ Thornton, CO (contractor)

. SYSTEM?7, INC. — Professional / 301-B North Detroit ~ West Liberty, OH (consultant)

PANASONIC INDUSTRIAL DEVICES ENGINEERING CO., LTD — Professional / 800 Higashiyama
Toyama, JAPAN (consultant)

TECH USA, LLC — General / 8334 Veterans Hwy ~ Millersville, MD (staffing)

SIERRA SCALES, LLC — Home Business / 237 Martin Lane ~ Dayton (home office only)

EFFICIENT INDUSTRIAL INSTALLATION, LLC - Contractor / 3608 Esper ~ El Paso (equipment)
NEW EARTH CONCEPTS - Professional / 801 Belfair Ave ~ Orting, WA (consultant)

MALEKO PERSONNEL — General / 32108 Alvarado Blvd ~ Union City, CA (staffing)

TEMARRY RECYCLING, INC. - General / 476 Tecate Rd ~ Tecate, CA (on-site recycling)

Inspection Required
Community Development Planning Department Sheriftf’s Office

Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners’ Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



2017 Year To Date

STOREY COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

2,

» Service Call

Hazmat

® Fires = EMS

Fires 15
EMS 223
Hazmat 18
Service Call 14
False Alarm 14
Total 284

Year To Date Call Volume

False Alarm

February 2017 Call Volume

Internal Stat

s Dashboard (2/2017)

Fires 8 Number of Vol. Responses: 3
EMS 97 Average Response Time: 8:55
Hazmat 8 Patient Transports January: 30
Service Call 6 Patient Transports YTD: 61
False Alarm 3 Hours spent out of district on transports 69
Total 122 Highest call volume day of the week: Wednesday

North County Mont

Calls by District (2/2017)

Aid to TMFPD 17 71 (Virginia City) 34
Dist. 74/75 Calls 49 72 (Virginia City Highlands) 26
North Dist. Total 66 74 (Lockwood) 22

75 (McCarran) 40

North Dist. Auto Aid
Calls by district
T o e @
» Aid to TMFPD = Dist. 74/75 Calls o R

Annual Business Inspections
[nspections Feb.. 18
Annual Business
Inspections YTD 39
New Construction
Inspections Feb, 64 1 —
Re-Inspections YTD 27
Number of Fire _ 5
Permits Issued Feb. 10 0 20 40 60 30
Fire Plan Reviews
Completed Feb. 21 Re-Inspections YTO
Burn Permits Issued « New Construction Inspections Feb
Feb. 0 = Annual Business Inspections YTD
30 Foot Clearance » Annual Business Inspections Feb.
Inspections YTD 0

Monthly AOR Completed: (2/2017)

Annual fit testing completed

Ladder service completed

Handheld radio inventory completed

All below ground tanks checked

Standardization completed on all apparatus

All evacuation barrels inspected

# 15



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 03/21/17 Estimate of time required: 60 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4227 and Storey County Sheriff’s Office
Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will commence immediately
following the regular commission meeting.

2. Recommended motion. No action
3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2014-2017 bargaining agreements
between the Storey County Firefighters Association and the Storey County Board of Fire
Commissioners, and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Association and the

Storey County Board of County Commissioners, the bargaining agreements are proposed to
be modified separately as tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Provided at meeting.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
@’ _ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. \8



